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Each of the Issuers, as <efined below, accepts responsibility for the information contained in this
Information Memorandum. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Issucrs (who have taken all reasonable
care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this Information Memorandum is in accordance
with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

Any reference in this Information Memorandum to listing particulars means this Information Memorandum
exchuding all information incorporated by reference. The Issuers and the Guarantor have confirmed that any
information incorporated by reference, including any such information to which readers of this Information
Memorandum are expressly referred, has not been and does not need to be included in the listing panticulars to
satisfy the requirements of the FSMA or the Listing Rules or the Irish Regulations. The Issuers and the Guarantor
believe that none of the information incorporated herein by reference conflicts in any material respect with the
information inciuded in the listing particulars.

This Information Memorandum should be read and construed with any amendment or suppiement thereto
and with any other documents incorporated by refercnce and, in refation to any Series (as defined herein) of
Instruments, should be read and construed together with the relevant Pricing Supplement(s) (as defined herzin).

Diageo ple, Diageo Capital ple, Diageo Finance plc and Diageo Enterprises (each an “Issuer™ and together
the “Issners”) and Diageo pic as guarantor {the “Guarantor”™) have confirmed to the dealers (the “Dealers™)
named under “Subscription and Sale™ below that the information contained in this Information Memorandum is
rrue, accurate and complete in all material respects and is not misleading: that the opinions and intentions
expressed therein are honestly held and based on reasonable assumptions; that there are no other facts in retation
10 the information contained or incorporated by reterence in this Information Memorandum the omission of
which wouid. in the context of the Programme or the issue of the Instrurments. make any statement therein or
opinions or intentions expressed therein misieading n any material respect; and that all reasonable enquiries have
been made to verify the foregoing. This Information Memorandum (subject to being supplemented by the Pricing
Supplement) contains all such information as investors and their professional advisers would reasonably require,
and reasonably expect to find, for the purpose of making an informed assessment of the assets and liabilitics,
financial position, profits and Josses, and prospects of the Issuers and of the rights atraching 1o the relevant
Instruments,

No person has been authorised by the Issuers to give any infommation or to make any representation not
comntained in or not consistent with this Information Memoranduim or any other document entered into in relation
to the Programime or any information supplied by the Issuers or such other information as is in the public domain
and, if given or made, such information or representation should not be relied upon as having been anthorised by
the Issuers or any Dealer.

No representation or warranty is made or implied by any of the Dealers or any of their respective affiliates.
and none of the Dealers and their respective affiliates makes any representation or warranty or accepts any
responstbility as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Information Memorandum,
Neither the delivery of this Information Memorandum or any Pricing Supplement nor the offering, sale or
delivery of any Instrument shall, in any circumstances, create any implication that the information contained in
this Information Memorandum is true subsequent to the date thereof or the date upon which this Infonmation
Memorandum has been most recently amended or supplemented or that there has been no adverse change in the
{inancial situation of any Issuer since the date thereof or, if later, the date upon which this Information
Memoranduin has been most recently amended or supplemented or that any other information supplied in
connection with the Programme is correct at any time subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if
different, the date indicated in the document containing the same.

The distribution of this Information Memorandum and any Pricing Supplement and the offering, sale and
delivery of the Instruments in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this
Information Memerandum or any Pricing Supplement comes are required by the Issuers and the Dealers w
inform themselves about and to observe any such resirictions. For a description of certain restrictions on offers.
sales and deliveries of Instruments and on the distribution of this Information Memoerandum or any Pricing
Supplement and other offering material relating to the Instruments see “Subscription and Sale”. In particular,
Instruments have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (as amended)
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and may include Instruments in bearer form which are subject to U.S. 1ax law requirements. Subject to certain
exceptions, [nstruments may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to 1J.S. persons.

In addition, the Issuers have not authorised any offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the
meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 (the “Regulations”) of Instruments having a
maturity of one year or more which have not been admitted to listing in accordance with Part VI of the FSMA.
Instruments may not lawfully be offered or sold to persons in the United Kingdom except in circumstances which
do not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Regulations or otherwise
in comphance with all applicable provisions of the Regulations.

Neither this Information Memorandum nor any Pricing Supplement constitutes an offer or an
invitation to subscribe for or purchase any Instruments and should not be considered as a recommendation
by any of the Issuers and the Dealers that any recipient of this Information Memorandum or any Pricing
Supplement should subscribe for or purchase any Instruments. Each recipient of this Information
Memorandum or any Pricing Supplement shall be taken to have made its own investigation and appraisal
of the condition {(financial or otherwise) of any Issuer. Neither this Information Memoranduin nor any
Pricing Supplement may be used for the purpose of an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in
which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person to whom it is uniawful to make such
offer or solicitation.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents shall be deemed 10 be incorporated in, and to form part of, this Information
Memorandum:

(1) the most recently published annnal report of cach Issuer from time to time: and

{2y  all amendments and supplements to this Information Memorandum prepared by any Issuer from time
o time,

save that (i} any statement contained in this Information Memorandum or in any of the documents incorporated
by reference in, and forming part of, this Information Memorandum shall be deemed to be modified or
superseded for the purpose of this Fnformation Memorandum to the exient that a statement contained in any
document subsequently incorporated by reference medifies or supersedes such statement provided that any
modifving or superseding statement does not form part of the listing particulars as contained in this Information
Memorandum given in compliance with the Listing Rules and (ii) any documents incorporated by reference do
not form part of the listing particulars as contained in this Information Memorandum given in compliance with
the Listing Rules and. for the purposes of Instruments issued or to be issued by Diageo Enterprises and to be
admitted to the Official List of the Irish Stock Exchange. provided that (a) any medifving or superseding
statement does not form part of the listing particulars as contained in this Information Memorandum given in
compliance with the Irish Regulations and (b) any documents incorporated by reference do not form part of the
listing particulars as contained in this Information Memorandum given in compliance with the listing rules made
under the Irish Regulations.
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In connection with the issue of any Tranche (as defined herein) of Instruments under the Programme,
the Dealer (if any} who is specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement as the stabilising institution {or any
person acting for such Dealer} may over-allot or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market
price of the Instruments of the Series of which such Tranche forms part at a level higher than that which
might otherwise prevail. However, there may be no obligation on such Dealer (or any agent of such Dealer)
to do so. Such stabilising, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time and must be brought to an end
after a limited period. Such stabilising shall be in compliance with all applicable laws, regulations
and rules.




SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

The following is a brief summary only and should be read in conjunction with the rest of this document and,
in relation to any Instruments, in conjunction with the relevant Pricing Supplement and, to the extent applicable,
the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments set our herein.

Issuers:

Guarantor:

Arranger:
Dealers:

Issue and Paying Agent:
Principal Registrar:
Alternative Registrar:
Authorised Adviser:
Irish Listing Agent:

Initial Programme Amount:

Issuance in Series:

Form of Instruments:

Diageo plc, Diageo Capital ple, Diageo Finance ple, Diageo Enterprises
and any other duly appointed subsidiary of Diageo ple. In the event of such
subsidiary being appointed, new listing particulars (which will supplement
the Information Memorandum) will be prepared.

Diageo plc (in the case of an issue of Instruments by Diageo Capital ple,
Diageo Finance pic and Diageo Enterprises).

Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited.

Deutsche Bank AG London, J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd., Lehman Brothers
International (Europe), Mermill Lynch International, Morgan Stanley & Ce.
Imternational Limited, UBS Limited, and any other dealer agpointed from
fime to time by the Issuers either generally in respect of the Programme or
in relation to a particular Tranche (as defined below) of Instruments. Each
issue of Instruments denominated in a currency in respect of which
particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which comply
with such laws. guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements from time to time (see under “Subscription and Sale™).
Citibank. N.A.

Citibank, N.A,

Dexia Bangue Internationale 4 Luxemboure.

Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited.

Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited.

U.$.55,000,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Instruments
outstanding at any one time (and, for this purpose, any Instruments
denominated in another currency shall be translated into U.S. dellars at the
date of the agreement to issuc such Instruments using the spot rate of
exchange for the purchase of such currency against payment of U.S. dollars
being quoied by the Issue and Paying Agent on the date on which the
relevant agreement in respect of the relevant Tranche was made or such
other rate as the relevant [ssuer and the relevant Dealer may agree). The
maximum aggregate principal amount of Instruments which may be
outstanding at any one time under the Programme may be increased frorm
time to time, subject to compliance with the relevant provisions of the
Dealership Agreement (as defined under **Subscripuion and Sale™).
Instruments wili be issued in series (each, a “Series™). Each Series may
comprise one or more tranches (“Tranches™ and cach, a “Tranche”)
issued on different 1ssue dates. The Instruments of each Series will all be
subject to identical terms, except that the issue date and the amount of the
first payment of interest may be different in respect of different Tranches.
The Instrurnents of each Tranche will al! be subject to identical terms in all
respects save that a Tranche may comprise Instruments of different
denominations. Further Instruments may be issued as part of any
existing Series.

Instruments may be issucd in bearer fonm or in registered fonn. In respect
of each Tranche of Instruments issued in bearer form, the Issuer will




Currencics:

Status of Instruments:

Status of Guarantee:

Issue Price:

Maturities:

Redemption:

deliver a temporary global Instrument (a “Temporary Global
Instrament™) or (if so specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement in
respect of Instruments to which U.S. Treasury Regulation
§1.163-5(c)2)XINC) (the “TEFRA C Rules™) applies (as so specified in
such Pricing Supplement)} a permanent global instrument (a “Permanent
Global Instrument™). Each such giobal Instrument will be deposited on
or before the relevant issue date therefor with a depositary or a common
depositary for Eurcclear Bank S.A/N.V., as operator of the Euroclear
System (“Euroclear”) and/or Clearsgeam Banking. sociét€ anonyme
(“Clearstream, Luxembonrg™) and/or any other relevant clearing system.
Each Temporary Global Instrument will be exchangeable for a Permanent
Gilobal Instrument or, if so specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement. for
Instruments in definiiive bearer form (“Definifive Instruments™) and/or
(if so specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement) registered form in
accordance with its terms (“Registered Instruments™). Each Permanent
Global Instrument will be exchangeable for Definitive Instruments and/or
(if so specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement) Registered Instruments
in accordance with its terms. (See further under “Provisions Relating to the
Instruments whilst in Global Form™ below). Definitive Instruments will. if
interest-bearing, either have interest coupons (“Coupons™) attached and, if
appropriate, a talon (*Talon™) for further Coupons and will, if the
principal thereof is repavable by instalments, have payment receipts
(“Receipts™) attached. Each Instrument issued in registered form shall
represent the entire holding of Registered Instruments by the same heolder.
A Registered Instrument may be registered in the name of a nominee for
ong or more clearing system and such an Instrument is referred to herein as
a “Global Registered Instrument”. Instruments in registered form may
not be exchanged for Instruments in bearer fonm.

Instruments may be denominated in any currency or currencics (including
the currency introduced at the start of the third siage of European
Economic and Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty cstablishing the
Europcan Communities, as amended (“Euro®)). subject to compliance
with all applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central bank
requirements. Instruments may, subject to compliance as aforesaid, be
issued as muiti-currency Instruments.

Payments in respect of Instruments may, subject to compliance as
aforesaid, be made in, and/or linked to, any cumency or currencies other
than the currency in which such Instruments are denominated.

Instruments will be issued on an unsubordinated basis.

The obligations of the Guarantor under the guarantee of the Instruments
shall be unsubordinated obligations.

Instrumenis may be issued at any price and either on a fully or partly paid
basis. as specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Any maturity subject, in relation to specific currencies, to compliance with
al] applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central bank requirements and,
in relation to Diageo Enterprises, to a minimurn maturity of one year,

Instruments may be redeemable at par or at such other redemption amount
(detailed in a formula, linked to an index, physical commodity or
otherwise) as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.
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Early Redenmption:

Interest:

Denominations:

Taxation:

Unless permitted by then current laws and regulations, Instruments
(including sterling Instruments) having a maturity of less than one year
(and, in relation to Diageo Enterprises, either the issue proceeds of which
are to be accepted by it in the United Kingdom or the activity of issuing the
Instruments is carried on from an establishment maintained by i in the
United Kingdom} must have a rsinimum redemption amount of £100.000
{or its equivalent in other currencies} or be issued in other circumstances
which do not constitute a contravention of Section 19 of the FSMA by the
relevant Issuer.

Early redemption will be permiited for taxation reasons as mentioned in
“Terms and Conditions of the Instruments — Early Redemption or
Substitution for Taxation Reasons™, but will otherwise be permitted only to
the extent specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Instruments may be interest-bearing or non-interest bearing. Interest {if
any) may accrue at a fixed or floating rate and may vary during the lifetime
of the relevant Series.

Instruments will be issued in such denominations as may be specified in
the relevant Pricing Supplement, subject to compliance with all applicable
legal and/or regulatory andfor central bank requirements.

Usnless pormitted by then current laws and regulations, Instrurnenis
(including sterling Instruments} having a maturity of less than one year
(and, in relation to Diageo Enterprises, the issue proceeds of which are to
be accepted by it in the United Kingdom or the activity of issuing the
Instruments is cairied on from an establishment maintained by it in the
United Kingdom) must have a minimum denomination of £100,000 (or its
cguivalent in other currencies) or be issued in other circumstances which
do not constitute a contravention of Section 19 of the FSMA by the
relevant Issuer.

Instruments which are issued or to be issued by Diageo Enlerprises
(i) must have a minimum denomination of €40,000 (or its equivalent in
other currencies) and {ii) which are not listed on a stock exchange must
have a minimum denomination of £300,000 or its equivalent and, in either
case, subject to comphance with all applicable legal andfor tax and/or
regulatory and/or central bank requirements.

Payments in respect of Instruments will be made without withholding or
deduction for. or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties,
assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed or levied
by or on behaif of the country of incorporation of the relevant Issuer or (if
applicable) the Guarantor or. if different. the country of tax residence of
the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor, or any political subdivision thereof or
any authority or agency therein or thereof having power to tax, unless the
withholding or deduction of such taxes, duties. assessments or
governmental charges is required by law or by the administyation or official
interpretation thereof. In that event, the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor
will (subject to certain exceptions) pay such additional amounts as wiil
result in the holders of Instruments or Coupons receiving such amounts as
they would have received in respect of such Instruments or Coupons had
no such withholding or deduction been required, subject as provided in
Condition 9 of the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments.




Governing Law:

Listing:

Terms and Conditions:

Enforcement of Instruments in
Global Form:

Clearing Systems:

Ratings:

Selling Restrictions:

The Instruments and all related contractual documentation will be
governed by, and construed in accordance with, English faw.

Each Series may be admitted to the Official List of the UKLA and
admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange andfor listed or traded
on any other stock exchange as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer
and the relevant Dealer and specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement or
may be not listed or traded on any stock exchange. Each Series issued by
Diageo Enterprises may be admitted to the Official List of the Irish
Stock Exchange.

A Pricing Supplement wili be prepared in respect of cach Tranche of
Instruments, a copy of which, in the case of Instruments to be listed on the
Official List of the UKL A, will be delivered to the UKLA and, in the case
of Instruments issued or to be issued by Diageo Enterprises and to be listed
on the Irish Stock Exchange, will be delivered to the Irish Stock Exchange.
in each case on or before the date of issue (the closing date) of such
Instruments. The terms and conditions applicable to each Tranche will be
those set out herein under “Terms and Conditions of the Instruments™ as
supplemented, modified or replaced by the relevant Pricing Supplement.

In the case of Instruments in global form. individual investors’ rights will
be governed. in respect of ecach Issuer, by a Deed of Covenant dated
10 May 2000. a copy of which will be avaitable for inspection at the
specified office of the Tssue and Paving Agent.

Eurociear. Clearstream. Luxembourg and/or any other clearing system as
may be specified in the relevant Pricing Suppiement.

The programme has been rated by Moody's Investors Service Limited and
Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, a division of the MoeGraw-Hill
Companies Inc.

For a descrption of certain restrictions on offers, sales and delivedes of
Instruments and on the distribution of offering material in the United States
of America, the United Kingdom, Ireland. Japan. the Republic of France.
the Netherlands and the Federal Republic of Germany see under
“Subscription and Sale”. Further reswrictions may be required in
connection with any particular Series of Instruments. Any such further
restrictions will be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.




TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE INSTRUMENTS

The following are the principal Terins and Conditions of the Instrumenis which, as supplemented, modified
or replaced in relation to any Instruments by the relevant Pricing Supplement. will be applicable to each Series
of Instruments:

The Instruments are issued pursuant to and in accordance with an amended and restated issue and paying
agency agreement (as amended, supplemented or replaced, the “Issue and Paying Agency Agreement”) dated
7 May 2002 and made between Diageo ple, Diageo Capital plc, Diageo Finance ple and Diageo Enterprises (the
“Issuers™ and each an “Issuer”). Diageo plc as guarantor (the “Guarantor”), Citibank, N.A. in its capacities as
issue and paving agent (the “Issue and Paying Agent”, which expression shall include amy successor to
Citibank, N.A. in its capacity as such) and as principal registrar (the “Principal Registrar”, which expression
shall include any successor to Citibank, N A. in its capacity as such), Dexia Bangue Intemnationale & Luxembourg
in its capacity as altermative registrar (the “Alternative Registrar™, which expression shall include any successor
to Dexia Banque Internationale 3 Luxembourg in its capacity as such}, and the paying agents named therein {the
“Paying Agents”, which expression shall include the Issue and Paying Agent and any substitute or additional
paying apents appointed in accordance with the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement). For the purposes of
making determinations or calculations of interest rates, interest amounts, redemption amounts or any other
matters requiring determination or caleulation in accordance with the Conrditions of any Series of Instruments (as
defined below). the relevant Issuer may appoint a calculation agent (the “Calculation Agent™) for the purposes
of such Instruments, i accordance with the provisions of the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement. and such
Calculation Agent shall be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, The Instruments of cach Issuer bave
the benefit of an amended and restated deed of covenant (as amended. supplemented or replaced, the “Deed of
Covenant™) dated 10 May 2000 executed by cach Issuer in relation to the Instruments. The Guarantor has. for
the benefit of the Holders from time to time of Instruments, executed and delivered an amended and restated deed
of guarantce (as amended. suppiemented or replaced. the “Guarantee™) dated 7 May 2002 under which it has
jrrevocably and unconditionally guwarantesd the due and punctual payment of all amounts due by Diageo
Capital plc, Diageo Finance plc or Diageo Enterprises or any other Issuer (other than the Guarantor) under the
Instruments as and when the same shall become duc and pavable. Copics of the Issue and Paying Agency
Agreement. the Deed of Covenant and the Guarantee are available for inspection during normal business hours at
the specified office of each of the Paying Agents, the Principal Registrar and the Alterpative Registrar, All
persons from time to time entitled to the benefit of obligations under any Instruments shall be deemed to have
notice of, and shall be bound by, all of the provisions of the Issuc and Paving Agency Agreement. the Deed of
Covenant and the Guarantee insofar as they relate to the relevant Instruments.

The Instruments are issued in series (each, a “Series™). and each Series may comprise one or mote ranches
{(*Tranches” and each. a “Tranche™) of Instruments. Each Tranche will be the subject of a pricing supplement
(each. a *Pricing Supplement”), a copy of which will be available for inspection during normal business hours
at the specified office of the Issue and Paying Agent and/or, as the case may be, the Registrar (as defined in
Condition 2.02). In the case ot a Tranche of Instruments in relation to which application has not been made for
listing on any stock exchange. copies of the Pricing Supplement will only be available for inspection by a Holder
of or, as the case may be, an Accountholder (as defined in the Decd of Covenant), in respect of such Instruiments.

References in these Terms and Conditions te Instruments are to Instruments of the relevant Series and any
references to Coupons (as defined in Condition 1.02) and Receipts (as defined in Condition 1.03) are to Coupons
and Receipts relating to Instuments of the relevant Series.

References in these Terms and Conditions to the Pricing Supplement are to the Pricing Supplement or
Pricing Supplement{(s) prepared in relation to the Instruments of the relevant Tranche or Serics.

References in these Terms and Conditions to the “Issuer”™ are to the Issuer of Instruments of the relevant
Tranche or Series.

In respect of any Instruments, references herein 1o these Terms and Conditions are to these terms and
conditions as supplemented or modified or (to the extent thercof) replaced by the Pricing Supplement.
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1. Form and Denomination
Form of Instruments

1.01 Instruments are issued in bearer form (“Bearer Instruments™) or in registered form (“Registered
Instruments™), as specified in the Pricing Supplement, and are serially numbered. Registered Instruments are not
exchangeable for Bearer Instruments.

1.02 Interest-bearing Bearer Instruments have attached thereto at the time of their initial delivery coupons
(*Coupons™). presentation of which will be a prerequisite to the paymemt of interest save in certain
circumstances specified herein. In addition, if so specified in the Pricing Supplement, such Instruments have
attached thereto at the time of their initial delivery a talon (“Talon™} for further coupons and the expression
“Coupons” shall, where the context so requires, include Talons.

1.03 Bearer Instruments, the principal amount of which is repayable by instalments (“Instalment
Instruments™) have attached thereto at the time of their initial delivery payment receipts (*“Receipis”™) in respect
of the instalments of principal.

Denomination of Bearer Instruments

104 Bearer Instruments are in the denomination or denominations {each of which denomination is
integrally divisible by each smaller denomination) specified in the Pricing Supplement. Bearer Instruments of one
denomination will not be exchangeable after the initial delivery for Bearer Instruments of any
other denomination.

Denonination of Registered Instrinments

1.05 Registered Instruments are in the minimum denomination specified in the Pricing Supplement or
integral multiples thercof.

Currency of Instruments

1.06 The Instruments are denominated in such currency or currencies as may be specified in the Pricing
Supplement. Any currency may be so spacified. subject to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory
and/or central bank requirements.

Parily Paid Instruments

1.07 Instruments may be issued on a partly paid basis (“Partly Paid Instruments®} if so specified in the
Pricing Supplement. The subscription moneys therefor shall be paid in such nurmber of instalments (“Partly Paid
Instalments™) in such amounts, on such dates and in such manner as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement.
The first such instalment shall be due and payable on the date of issue of the Instruments. For the purposes of
these Terms and Conditions, in respect of any Partly Paid Instrument, “Paid Up Amount™ means the aggregate
amount of all Partly Paid Instalments in respect thereof as shall have fallen due and been paid up in full in
accordance with 1the Terms and Conditions.

Not less than 14 days nor more than 30 days prior (o the due date for payment of any Partly Paid Instalment
{other than the first such instalment) the Issuer shall publish a notice in accordance with Condition 15 stating the
due date for payment thereof and stating that failure to pay any such Partly Paid Instalment on or prior to such
date will entitle the Issuer to forfeit the Instrurnents with effect from such date (“Forfeiture Date™) as may be
specified in such notice (not being less than 14 days after the due date for payment of such Partly Paid
Instalment}, unless payment of the relevant Partly Pald Instalment together with any interest accrued thereon is
paid prior to the Forfeiture Date. The Issuer shall procure that any Partly Paid Instalments paid in respect of any
Instruments subsequent to the Forfeilure Date in respect thereof shall be returned promptly to the persons entitled
thercto. The Issuer shall not be liable for any interest on any Partly Paid Instalment so retumed.

Interest shall accrue on any Partly Paid Instalment which is not paid on or prior to the due date for payment
thereof” at the Interest Rate (in the case of non-interest bearing Instruments. at the rate applicable to overdue
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payments) and shall be caiculated in the same manner and on the same basis as if it were interest accruing on the
Instruments for the period from and including the due date for payment of the relevant Partly Paid Instalment up
to but excluding the Forfeiture Date. For the purpose of the accrual of interest. any payment of any Partly Paid
Instalment made after the due date for payment shall be weated as having been made on the day preceding the
Forfeiture Date (whether or not a Business Day as defined in Condition 6.09).

Unless an Event of Default (or an event which with the giving of notice, the lapse of time or the making or
giving of any determination or certification would constitute an Event of Default) shall have occurred and be
continuing, on the Forferure Date the Tssuer shall forfeit al) of the Instruments in respect of which any Partly Paid
Instalment shall not have been duly paid. whereupon the Issuer shall be entitled to retain all Partly Paid
Instalments previously paid in respect of such Instruments and shall be discharged from any obligation to repay
such amount or to pay interest thercon.

2, Title and Transfer

2.01 Title to Bearer Instrurnents, Receipts and Coupons passes by delivery. References herein to the
“Holders” of Bearer Instuments or of Receipts or Coupons are to the bearers of such Bearer Instraments or
such Receipts or Coupons.

2,02 Title to Registered Instruments passes by registration in the register which the Issuer shall procure to
be kept by the Registrar. For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, “Registrar™ means, in relation to any
Series comprising Registered Instruments, the Principal Registrar or the Alternative Registrar, as specified in the
Pricing Supplement. References herein to the “Holders™ of Registered Instruments are to the persons in whose
names such Registered Instruments are so registered in the relevant register.

2.03 The Holder of any Beacer Instrument, Coupon or Registered Instrument will {except as otherwise
required by applicable law or regulatory requirement} be treated as its absolute owner for all purposes {whether or
not it 1s overdue and regardless of any notice of ownership, trust or any iaterest thereof or therein, any writing
thereon, or any theft or loss thereof) and no person shail be liable for so treating such Holder.

Trunsfer of Registered Instruments and exchange of Bearer Instruinents for Registered fnstruments

2.604 A Registered Instrument may, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Issue and
Paying Agency Agreement, be transferred in whole or in part only (provided that such part is. ot is an integral
multiple of, the minimum deromination specified in the Pricing Supplement) upon the surrender of the
Registered Instrument to be transferred, together with the form of transfer endorsed on it duly completed and
executed, at the specified office of the Registrar. A new Registered Instrument will be issued 1o the transferee and.
in the case of « transfer of part only of a Registered Instrument, a new Registered Instrument in respect of the
balance not transferred will be issued to the transferor.

2,05 If so specified in the Pricing Supplement, a Bearer Instrument (provided that alf unmatured Coupons
appertaining to such Instrument are surrendered therewith} may be exchanged for the same aggregate principal -
amount of Registered Instruments upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Issue and Paying
Agency Agreement. In order to exchange a Bearer Instrument for a Registered Instrument. the Holder thereof
shall surrender such Bearer Instrument at the specified office outside the United States of the Issue and Paying
Agent or of the Registrar together with a written request for the exchange. Each Bearer Instrument so surrendered
must be accompanied by all unmatured Receipts and Coupons appertaining thereto other than the Coupon in
respect of the next payment of interest falling due after the exchange date (as defined in Condition 2.06) where
the exchange date would. but for the provisions of Cendition 2.06, occur between the Record Date (as defined in
Condition 10B.03} for such payrment of interest and the date on which such payment of interest falls due.

2.06 Each new Registered Instrument to be issued upon the transfer of a Registered Instrument or the
exchange of a Bearer Instrument for a Registered Instrument will, within three Relevant Banking Days of the
wransfer date or. as the case may be, the exchange date, be available for collection by each relevant Holder at the
specified office of the Registrar or, at the option of the Holder requesting such exchange or transfer, be mailed (by
uninsured post at the risk of the Holder(s) entitled thereto) to such address(es) as may be specified by such
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Holder. For these purposes, a form of transfer or request for exchange received by the Registrar or the Issue and
Paying Agent after the Record Date in respect of any payment due in respect of Registered Instruments shall be
deemed not to be effectively received by the Registrar or the Issue and Paying Agent until the day following the
due date for such payment. For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions:

(i)  “Relevant Banking Day” means a day on which commercial banks are open for business (including
dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the place where the specified office of
the Registrar is located and, in the case only of an exchange of a Bearer Instrument for a Registered
Instrument where such request for exchange is made to the Issue and Paying Agent, in the place where
the specified office of the Tssue and Paying Agemt is located;

(i)  the “exchange date™ shall be the Relevant Banking Day following the day on which the relevant
Bearer Instrument shall have been surrendered for exchange in accordance with Condition 2.05; and

(ili)} the *““transfer date” shall be the Relevant Banking Day following the day on which the relevant
Registered Instrument shall have beer surrendered for transfer in accordance with Condition 2.04.

207 The issue of new Registered Instruments on transfer or on the exchange of Bearer Instruments for
Registered Instuments will be effected without charge by or on behalf of the Issuer, the Issue and Paying Agent
or the Registrar. but upon payment by the applicant of (or the giving by the applicant of such indemnity as the
Issuer, the Issue and Paying Agent ot the Registear may require in respect of ) any tax, duty or other governmental
charges which may be imposed in relation thereto.

3.  Status of the Instruments

The Instruments constitute direct, unsubordinated and {subject to the provisions of Condition 3) unsecured
obligations of the Issuer and rank pari passu without any preference among themselves and ar least pari passu
with all other unsecured and unsubordinaled obligations of the Issuer. present and future but (in the event of
insolvency) only 1o the extent permitted by applicable laws relating to creditors’ rights and applicable laws of
mandatory application.

4. Status of the Guarantee

The obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee constitute direct. unsubordinated and (subject to the
provisions of Condition 3) unsecured obligations of the Guarantor and claims under the Guarantee will rank at
least pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Guarantor, present and future,
save only for such oblications as may be preferred by mandatory provisions of applicable law.,

5. Negative Pledge

501 So long as any lastrument remains outsianding {as defined in the Issuc and Paying Agency
Agreement), the Guarantor will not, and the Guarantor will procure that no Restricted Subsidiary will. create or
permit o subsist any Encumbrance on the whole or any part of any Principal Property or upon any shares or stock
of any Restricted Subsidiary to secure any present or future indebtedness for borrowed money without making, or
causing such Restricted Subsidiary to make, effective provision whereby the Instruments (together with, if the
Guarantor shall so determine, any other indebtedness of the Guarantor or such Restricted Subsidiary then existing
or thereafter created which is not subordinate to the Instruments) shall be secured equally and rateably with (or, at
the option of the Guarantor or such Restricted Subsidiary, prior to) such indebtedness for borrowed money, so
long as such indebtedness for borrowed money will be so secured. However, such limitation will not apply to:

(a) any Encumbrance subsisting on or prior to the date of the Issue and Paving Agency Agreement;

() any Encumbrance arising by operation of law and not securing amounts more than 90 days overdue
and otherwise being contested in good taith;

(¢)  judgment Encumbrances not giving rise to an Event of Default;
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(d)

e}

)

(b

(1)

o

(k)

(0

(m)

{n)

0)

any Encumbrance subsisting over a Principal Property. share or stock of any Restricted Subsidiary
(which becomes a Restricted Subsidiary after the date of the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement)
prior to the date of such Restricted Subsidiary becoming a Restricted Subsidiary, provided that such
Encumbrance was not created in contemplation of such Restricted Subsidiary becoming a Restricted
Subsidiary;

any Encumbrance over any Principal Property (or documents of title thereto), shares oc stack of any
Restricted Subsidiary acguired by the Guarantor or any Restricted Subsidiary as security for. or
for indebtedness incurred, to finance all or part of the price of its acquisition, development,
redevelopment. modification or improvement;

any Encumbrance over any Principal Property {or documents of title thereto), shares or stock of any
Restricted Subsidiary which is acquired by the Guarantor or any Restricted Subsidiary subject to
such Encumbrance;

any Encumbrance to secure indebtedness for borrowed money incurred in connection with a
specifically identifiable project where the Encumbrance relates o a Principal Property involved in
such project and acquired by the Guarantor or any Restricted Subsidiary after the date of the Issue and
Paying Agency Agreement and the recourse of the creditors in respect of such indebtedness is limited
to such project and Principal Property;

any Encumbrance arising solely by operation of law over any credit balance or cash held in any
account with a financial institution:

rights of financial institutions to offset credit balances in connection with the operation of cash
management programmes established for the benefit of the Guarantor and/or any Restricied
Sabsidiary;

any Encumbrance securing indebtedness of the Guarantor or any Restricted Subsidiary for borrowed
money incurred in connection with the financing of accounts receivable:

any Encumbrance incurred or deposits made in the ordinary course of business, including, but not
limited 10:

{t)  any mechanics’, materialmen’s. carriers’, workmen’s. vendor’s or other like Encumbrances:

(iiy any Encumbrances securing amounts in coanection with workers’ compensation.
unemployment insurance and other types of social security; and

(ili) any casements. rights-of-way, restrictions and other similar charges;

any Encumbrance upon specific items of inventory or other goods and proceeds of the Guarantor or
any Restricted Subsidiary securing the Guarantor’s or any such Restricted Subsidiary’s obligations in
respect of bankers™ acceptances issued or created for the account of such person to facilitate the
purchase. shipment or storage of such inventory or other goods;

any Encumbrance incurred or deposits made securing the performance of tenders, bids, leases,
statgeory obligations., surety and appeal bonds, government contracts, performance and
retum-of-money bonds and other obligations of like nature incurred in the ordinary course of business;

any Encumbrance on any Principal Property of the Guarantor or any Restricted Subsidiary in favour of
the Federal Government of the United States or the government of any State thereof, or the
government of the United Kingdom, or the European Communities, or any instrumentality of any of
them, securing the obligations of the Guarantor or any Restricted Subsidiary pursuant to any contract
or payments owed to such entity pursuani to applicable laws, rules, regulations or statutes;

any Encumbrance securing taxes or assessments or other applicable governmental charges or levies:
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(p} any Encumbrance securing industrial revenue, development or similar bonds issued by or for the
benefit of the Guarantor or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries, provided that such industrial revenue,
development or similar bonds are non-recourse to the Guarantor or such Restricted Subsidiary;

(q) any extension, renewal or replacement (or successive extensions, rencwals or replacements), as a
whole or in part, of any Encumbrance referred to in paragraphs (a) to (p) (inclusive) for amounts not
exceeding the principal amount of the borrowed money secured by the Encumbrance so extended,
renewed or replaced, provided that such extension, renewal or replacement Encumbrance is limited to
afl or a part of the same Principal Property, shares or stock of the Restricted Subsidiary that secured
the Encumbrance extended, renewed or replaced (plus improvements on such Principal Property); and

(r)  Encumbrances in favour of the Guarantor or any Subsidiary of the Guarantor.

5.02 Notwithstanding Condition 5.01, the Guaranter or any Restricted Subsidiary may create or permit to
subsist Encumbrances over any Principal Property. shares or stock of any of the Restricted Subsidiaries so long as
the aggregate amount of indebtedness for borrowed money secured by all such Encumbrances (excluding
therefrom the amount of the indebtedaess secured by Encumbrances set forth in paragraphs (a) to (r) {inclusive}
above) does not exceed 153% of the consolidated sharcholders” equity of the Guarantor.

5.03 So long as any Instruments remain outstanding, the Guarantor will not, and the Guarantor wiil
procure that no Restricted Subsidiary will, enter into any arrangement with any bank. insurance company or other
lender or investor (not inciuding the Guarantor or any Subsidiary), or to which any such lender or investor is a
party, providing for the leasing by the Guarantor or a Restricted Subsidiary for a period. including renewais, in
excess of three years of any Principal Property which has been owned by the Guarantor or a Restricted Subsidiary
for more than six months and which has been or is to be soid or transferred by the Guaranior or any Restricted
Subsidiary to such lender or investor or to any persen Lo whom funds have been or are to be advanced by such
lender or investor on the sccurity of such Principal Property (herein referred to as a “sale and leaseback
transaction™} uniess cither:

{a) the Guarantor or such Restricted Subsidiary could create indebtedness secured by an Encumbrance
{pursuant to the provisions governing limitations on the creation of Encumnbrances set out above) on
the Principal Property to be leased back in an amount cqual to the indebtedness attributable to such
sale and leaseback transaction without equally and rateably securing the Instruments: or

(b} the Guarantor, within onc vear after the sale or transfer will have been made by the Guarantor or a
Restricted Subsidiary, applies an amount equal to the greater of (i) the net proceeds of the sale of the
Principal Property sold and leased back pursuant to such arrangement or (ii) the fair market value of
the Principal Property so sold and lecased back at the time of entering into such arrangement {as
determined by any two Directors of the Guaranior) o the retirement ol indebtedness for money
botrowed, incurred or assumed by the Guarantor or any Restricted Subsidiary which by its terms
matures at, or is extendible or renewable at the option of the obligor to, a date more than twelve
months after the date of incurring, assuming or guaranteeing such indebtedness or (o investment it any
Principal Property.

5.04 For the purposes of this Condition 5, the following terms have the foliowing meanings:
“Encumbrance” means any mortgage, pledge, security interest or licn:

“Principal Property” means any building, structure or other facility (ogether with the land upon
which it is erected and fixtures comprising a part thereof, located in the
United States or the United Kingdom. owned or leased by the Guarantor or
any Restricted Subsidiary, the gross book value {without deduction of any
depreciation reserves) of which on the date as of which the determination
is being made exceeds 2% of the consclidated shareholders’ equity of the
Guarantor. other than 1) any such building, soucture or other facility or
portion thereof which. in the opinion of the Board of Direcrors of the
Guarantor, is not of material importance to the total business conducted by
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the Guaranior and its Subsidiaries as an entirety or (i) any portion of any
such property which, in the opinion of the Board of Directors of the
Guaranior, is not of material importance to the use or operation of
such property;

“Restricted Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary (i) substantially all of the physical properties of
which are located, or substantially all of the operations of which are
conducted. within the United States or the United Kingdom and {ii) which
owns a Principal Property. The term does not include any Subsidiary which
is principaily engaged in leasing or in financing instalment receivables or
which is principally engaged in financing ihe operations of the Guarantor
and its consolidated Subsidiaries; and

“Subsidiary” means 2 company in respect of which more than 30% of the outstanding
voting stock or equity interest having by the terms thereof ordinary voting
power to elect a majority of the Board of Directors of such company
{irrespective of whether at the time stock of any other class or classes of
such company shall have or might have voting power by reason of the
happening of the contingency) is at the time directly or indirectly owned or
controlied by the Guarantor or by onc or more Subsidiaries, or by the
Guarantor and one or more Subsidiaries.

6. Iuterest
Interest

6.01 Instruments may be interest-bearing or non interest-bearing. as specified in the Pricing Supplement.
Words und expressions appearing in this Condition 6 and not otherwisc defined hercin or in the Pricing
Supplement shall have the meanings given to them in Condition 6.09.

Interesr-bearing Instruments

6.02 Instruments which are specified in the Pricing Supplement as being interest-bearing shall bear interest
from their Interest Conunencement Date at the Interest Rate payable in arrear on each Interest Payment Date.

Fivating Rare Instruments

6.03 If the Pricing Supplement specifies the Interest Rate applicable to the Instruments as being Floating
Rate it shall also specify which page (the “Relevant Screen Page™) on the Reuters Screen or Moneyline Telerate
or any other information vending service shall be applicable. If such a page is so specified. the Imerest Rate
applicable to the reievant Instruments for each Interest Accrual Period shall be determined by the Calculation
Agent on the following basis:

(i)  the Calculation Agent will determine the offered rate for deposits {or. as the case may require. the
arithmetic mean (rounded, if necessary. 1o the nearest ten thousandih of a percentage point, 0.00005
being rounded upwards) of the rates for deposits) in the relevant currency for a period of the duration
of the relevant Interest Accrual Period on the Relevant Screen Page as of the Relevant Time on the
relevant Interest Determination Date;

(ity  if, on any Interest Determination Date, no such rate for deposits so appears (or. as the case may be, if
fewer than two such rates for deposits so appear) or if the Relevant Screen Page is unavailable, the
Calculation Agent will request appropriate guotations and will determine the arithmetic mean
{rounded as aforesaid) of the rates at which deposits in the relevant currency are offered by four major
banks in the London interbank market. in the case of LIBOR, or the Euro-zone interbank market, in
the case of EURIBOR, selected by the Calculation Agent. at approximately the Relevant Time on the
Interest Determination Date 1o prime banks in the London interbank market, in the case of LIBOR, or
the Euro-zone interbank market, in the case of EURIBOR, for a period of the duration of the refevant
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Interest Accrual Period and in an amount that is representative for a single transaction in the relevant
market at the relevant time;

(i) if, on any Interest Determination Date, only two or three rates are so quoted, the Calculation Agent
will determine the arithmetic mean (rounded as aforesaid) of the rates so quoted; or

(iv) if fewer than two rates are so quoted, the Calculation Agent will determine the arithmetic mean
(rounded as aforesaid} of the rates quoted by four major banks in the Relevant Financial Centre (or, in
the case of Instruments denominated in Euro, in such financial centre or centres in the Eurc-zone as
the Calcuiation Agent may select) selected by the Calculation Agent, at approximately 11.00 am.
{Relevant Financial Centre time (or local time at such other financial centre or centres as aforesaid))
on the first day of the relevant Interest Accrual Period for loans in the relevant currency to leading
European banks for a period of the duration of the relevant Interest Accrual Period and in an amount
that is representative for a single transaction in the relevant market at the relevant time.

and the Interest Rate applicable to such Instruments during each Intercst Accraal Period will be the sum of the
refevant margin (the “Relevant Margin™) specified in the Pricing Supplement and the rate (cr, as the case may
be, the arithmetic mean (rounded as aforesaid) of the rates) so determined provided, however, that, if the
Calculation Agent is unable to determine a rate (or, as the case may be, an arithmetic mean of rates) in
accordance with the above provisions in relation to any Interest Accrual Pericd, the Interest Rate applicable to
such Instruments during such Interest Accrual Period will be the sum of the Relevant Margin and the rate (or, as
the case may be, the arithmetic mean (rounded as aforesaid) of the rates} determined in relation to such
Instruments in respect of the last preceding Interest Accrual Period.

ISDA Rare Instruments

6.04 If the Pricing Supplement specifies the Interest Rate applicable to the Instruments as being ISDA
Rate, cach Instrument shall bear interest as from such date, and at such rawe of in such amounts, and such interest
will be payable on such dates, as would have applied (regardiess of any Event of Default or termination event or
tax event thercunder) if the Issuer had entered into an imtercst rate swap transaction with the Holder of such
Instrument under the terms of an agreement to which the ISDA Definitions applied and under which:

— the Fixed Rate Paver. Fixed Amount Paver, Fixed Price Paver. Floating Rate Paver. Floating
Amount Paver or, as the case may be, the Floating Price Payer is the Issuer {as specified in the Pricing
Supplement):

— the Effective Date is the Iuerest Commencement Date:

— the Termination Date is the Maturity Date:

~— the Calculation Agent is the Calculation Agent as specified in the Pricing Supplement:
— the Caiculation Periods are the Interest Accrual Periods;

— the Period End Dates are the Interest Period End Dates:

— the Payment Dates are the Interest Payment Datcs;

— the Reset Dates are the Interest Period End Dates;

— the Calculation Amount is the principal amount of such Instrument;

— the Day Coumt Fraction applicable to the calculation of any amount is that specified in the Pricing
Supplement or, if none is so specified, as may be determined in accordance with the ISDA Definitions;

— the Applicable Business Day Convention applicable to any date is that specified in the Pricing
Supplement or. if none is so specified. as may be determined in accordance with the ISDA
Definitions: and

— the other terms are as specified in the Pricing Supplement.
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Meaximum or Minimum Interest Rate

6.05 If any Maximum or Minimum Interest Rate is specified in the Pricing Supplement, then the Interest
Rate shali in no event be greater than the maximum or be less than the minimum so specified.

Accrual of Interest

6.06 Interest shall accrue on the Ouistanding Principal Amount of each {nstrument during each Interest
Accrual Period from the Interest Commencement Date. Interest will cease to accrue as from the due date for
redemption therefor (or, in the case of an Instalment Tnstrument, in respect of each instaiment of principal, on the
due date for pavment of the relevant Instalment Amount) unless upon due presentation or surrender thercof (if
required). payment in full of the Redemption Amount (as defined in Condition 7.10) or the relevant Instalment
Amount is improperly withheld or refused or default is otherwise made in the payment thereof in which case
interest shall continue to accrue on the principal amount in respect of which payment has been improperly
withheld or refused or default has been made {as well after as before any demand or judgment) at the Interest
Rate then applicable or such other rate as may be specified for this purpose in the Pricing Supplement until the
date on which, upon due presentation or surrender of the relevant Instrument (if required), the relevant payment is
made or, if earlier (except where presentation or sumender of the reievant Instrument is not required as a
precondition of payment), the seventh day after the date on which, the Issue and Paying Agent or, as the case may
be, the Registrar having received the funds required to make such payment. notice is given to the Holders of the
lustruments in accordance with Condition 15 that the Issue and Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar
has received the required funds (except to the extent that there is failure in the subsequent payment thereof to the
relevant Holder).

Interest Amountis). Caleudation Agent and Reference Banks

6.07 If a Calculation Agent is specified in the Pricing Supplement, the Calculation Agent, as soon as
practicable after the Relevant Time on cach Interest Determination Date (or such other time on such date as the
Calculation Agent may be required to calculate any Redernption Amount or Instalment Amount, obtain any quote
or make any determination or calculation) will detesmnine the Interest Rate and calculate the amounl((s) of interest
payable (the “Interest Amouni(s)”) in respect of each Denomination of the Instruments {in the case of Bearer
Tnstruments) and the minimum denomination (in the case of Registered Tastruments) for the relevant Interast
Accrual Period, calculate the Redemption Amount or Instalment Amount. obtain such guote or make such
determination or calculation, as the case may be, and cause the Interest Rate and the Interest Amounts for each
Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date or, as the case may be, the Redemption Amount or any
Instalment Amount t¢ be notified to the Issue and Paying Agent, the Registrar (in the case of Registered
Instruments), the Issuer, the Holders in accordance with Condition 15 and. if the Instruments are listed on a stock
exchange and such exchange so requires, such exchange as soon as possible after their determination or
calcujation but in no event later than the fourth London Banking Day thereafier or, if earlier in the case of
notitication to the stock exchange, the time required by the relevant stock exchange. The Interest Amounts and
the Interest Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative arrangements
made by way of adjustment) without notice in the event of an extension or shortening of an Interest Accrual
Period or the Interest Period. If the Instruments becoime due and payable under Condition 8, the Interest Rate and
the accrued interest payable in respect of the Instruments shall mevertheless continue to be calculated as
previously in accordance with this Condition. The determination of each Interest Rate, Interest Amount,
Redemption Amount and Instaiment Amount. the obtaining of each quote and the making of each determination
or calculation by the Calculation Agent, shall (in the absence of manifest error} be final and binding apon the
Issuer and the Holders and neither the Calculation Agent nor any Reference Bank shall have any liability to the
Holders in respect of any determination. calculation, quote or rate made or provided by it.

The Issuer will procure that there shall at all times be such Reference Banks as may be required for the
purpose of detennining the Interest Rate applicable to the Instruments and a Calculation Agent, if provision is
made for one in the Terms and Conditions.




If the Calculation Agent is incapable or unwilling to act as such or if the Calculation Agent fails duly to
establish the Interest Rate for any Interest Accrual Period or lo caiculate the Interest Amounts or any other
requirements, the Issuer will appoint the London office of a leading bank engaged in the London interbank
market to act as such in its place. The Calculation Agent may not resign its duties without a snccessor having
beenr appointed as aforesaid.

Calcularions and Adjustments

6,08 The amount of interest payable in respect of any Instrument for any period shall be calculated by
multiplying the product of the Interest Rate and the Outstanding Principal Amount by the Day Count Fraction,
save that if the Pricing Supplement specifies a specific amount in respect of such period, the amount of interest
payable in respect of such Instrument for such period will be equal to such specified amount. Where any Interest
Period comprises two or more Interest Accrual Periods, the amount of interest payabie in respect of such Interest
Period will be the sum of the amounts of inierest pavable in respect of each of those Interest Accrual Periods.

For the purposes of any calcufations referred to in these Terms and Conditions (uniess otherwise specified in
the Pricing Supplement), {a) all percentages resulting from such caleulations will be rounded. if necessary, to the
nearest one hundred-thousandth of a percentage point (with 0.000005% being rounded up to 0.00001%). (b all
United States Dollar amounts used in or resulting from such caleulations will be rounded to the nearest cent (with
one half cent being rounded up). (¢ all Japanese Yen amounts used in or resulting from such caleulations will be
rounded downwards to the next lower whole Japanese Yen amount and (d) all amounts denominated in any other
currency used in or resulting from such calculations will be rounded to the nearest two decimal places in such
currency, with 0.003 being rounded upwards.

Defnitions

6.09 “Applicable Business Day Convention™ mecans the “Business Day Convention”™ which may be
specified in the Pricing Supplement as applicable to any date in respect ot the Instruments. Where the Pricing
Supplement specifies “No Adjustment” in relation to any date, such date shall not be adjusted in accordance with
any Business Day Convention. Where the Pricing Supplement fails either to specify an applicable Business Day
Convention or “No Adjustment” for the purposes of an Interest Payment Date or an Interest Period End Date,
then in the case of Instruments which bear interest at a fixed rate, “*No Adjustment” shall be deemed to have been
50 specified and in the case of Tnstruments which bear interest at a floating rate, the Modified Following Business
Day Convention shall be deemed 10 have been so specified. Different Business Day Conventions may apply, or be
specified in relation to, the Interest Payment Dates, Interest Period End Dates and any other date or dates in
respect of any Instruments. '

“Banking Day” means, in respect of any city, any day on which commercial banks are open for business
{including dealings in foreign cxchange and forcign currency deposits) in that city.

“Business Day™ means a day {other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign
exchange markets are open for business and seitle payments in the Relevant Financial Centre in respect of the
relevant Instruments or, in relation 1o Instruments payable in Euro, which is a TARGET Business Day.

“Business Day Convention” means a convention for adjusting any date if it would otherwise fall on a day
that 1s not a Business Dayv and the following Business Day Conventions, where specificd in the Pricing
Supplernent in relation to any date applicable to any Instruments. shall have the following meanings:

iy  “Following Business Day Convention™ means that such date shail be postponed to the fisst following
day that is a Business Day;

(i)  “Modified Following Business Day Convention™ or “Modified Business Day Convention” means
that such date shall be postpened to the first following day that is a Business Day unless that day falls
in the next calendar month in which case that date will be the first preceding day that is a
Business Day:
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(i)

(iv)

“Preceding Business Day Convention” means that such date shall be brought forward io the first
preceding day that is a Business Day; and

“FRN Convention” or “Eurodollar Convention™ means that each such date shall be the date which
numerically comresponds to the preceding such date in the calendar month which is the number of
months specified in the Pricing Supplement after the calendar month in which the preceding such date
occurred Provided that:

(a) if therg is 0o such numerically coresponding day in the calendar month in which any such
date should occur, then such date will be the last day which is a Business Day in that
calendar month;

(by if any such date would otherwise fall on 2 day which is not a Business Day, then such date will
be the first following day which is a Business Day unless that day falis in the next calendar
month. in which case it will be the first preceding day which is a Business Day; and

(c) if the preceding such date occurred on the last day in a calendar menth which was a Business
Day, then ali subsequent such dates witl be the last day which 1s a Business Day in the calendar
month which is the specified number of months after the calendar month in which the preceding
such date oceurred.

“Day Count Fraction” means, in respect of the calculadon of an amount for any period of time
{“Calculation Period™)}, such day count fraction as may be specified in the Pricing Sepplement and:

(i}

()

(iii)

(v}

{v)

{¥i)

if “Actual/363 or “Actual/Actual - ISDA™ is so specified, means the actual number of days in the
Calculation Period divided by 363 (or, if any portion of the Calculation Period falls in a leap year. the
sumt of {A) the actual number of days in that pertion of the Calculation Period falling in a leap vear
divided by 366 and {B) the actual number of days in that portion of the Calculation Period falling in a
non-leap vear divided by 363);

if “Actual/365 (Fixed)” is so specified, means the actual number of days in the Calculation Period
divided by 365;

if “Actual/3607 is so specified, means the actual numnber of days in the Calculation Period divided
by 360;

if “30/360™ is so specified, means the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360 (she
number of days to be calculated on the basts of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months (uniess
(1) the last day of the Calculation Period is the 3ist day of a month but the first day of the Calculation
Period is a day other than the 30th or 31st day of a month, in which case the month that includes that
last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (ii} the last day of the
Calculation Period is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of February shall
rot be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month));

if “30E/360 or “Eurobond Basis™ is so specified. means the number of days in the Calculation
Period divided by 360 (the number of days o be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with
12 30-day months, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Calculation Period
unless, in the case of the final Calculation Period, the date of final maturity is the Jast day of the month
of February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day
month}; and

if “Actual/Actnal (JSMA)” is so specified, means:

{a)  where the Calculation Pericd is equal o or shorter than the Reguiar Period during which it falis.
the actwal number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the product of (1) the actual
number of days in such Regular Period and (2) the number of Regular Periods normazlly ending
in any year; and
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(b)  where the Calculation Period is longer than one Regular Period, the sum oft

(A) the actua) number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the Regular Period in
which it begins divided by the product of (1) the actual number of days in such Regular
Period and (2) the number of Regular Period in any year: and

(B) the actual number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the next Regular Pericd
divided by the product of {a} the actual nurber of days in such Regular Period and (2) the
numnber of Regular Periods normally ending in any vear.

“Euro-zone” means the region comprising the member states of the European Union which adopt or have
adopted the Eure as their lawful currency in accordance with the Treaty establishing the European Communities,
as amended.

“Interest Accrual Period” means, in respect of an Interest Period, each successive period beginning on and
including an Interest Period End Date and ending on but excluding the next succeeding Interest Period End Date
during that Interest Period provided ailways that the first Interest Accrual Period shall commence on and include
the Interest Commencement Date and the final Interest Accrual Period shall end on but exclude the date of
final maturity.

“Interest Commencement Date” meuns the date of issue of the Instruments (as specified in the Pricing
Supplement) or such other date as may be specificd as such in the Pricing Supplement.

“Interest Determination Date” means, in respect of any Interest Accrual Period, the date falling such
number (if any) of Banking Days in such citv{ies) as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement prior to the first
day of such Interest Accrual Period. or if none is specified:

(iy  in the case of Instruments denominated in Pounds Sterling, the first day of such Interest Accrual
Period: or

(i) in the case of Instruments denominated in Euro, the date falling two TARGET Business Days prior to
the first day of such Interest Accrual Period; or

(iil) i any other case, the date falling two London Banking Days prior to the first day of such Interest
Accrual Period.

“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dales specified as such in. or determined in accordance with
the provisions of, the Pricing Supplement and. if an Applicable Business Day Convention is specified in the
Pricing Supplement, as the same may be adjusted in accordance with the Applicable Business Pray Convention ot
it the Applicable Business Day Convention is the FRN Convention and an interval of a number of calendar
months ts specified in the Pricing Supplement as being the Interest Period, gach of such dates as may occur in
accordance with the FRN Convention at such specified period of calendar months following the date of issue of
the Instruments (in the case of the first Interest Payment Date) or the previous Interest Payment Date (in any
other case).

“Interest Period™ means each successive period beginning on and including an Interest Payment Date and
ending on but excluding the next succeeding Interest Payment Date provided always that the first Interest Period
shall commence on and include the Interest Commencement Date and the final Interest Period shall end on but
exclude the date of final maturity.

“Interest Period End Date™ means the date or dates specified as such in, or determined in accordance with
the provisions of. the Pricing Supplement and, i an Applicable Business Day Convention is specified in the
Pricing Supplement, as the same may be adjusted in accordance with the Applicable Business Day Convention or,
if the Applicable Business Day Convention is the FRN Convention and an interval of a number of calendar
months is specified in the Pricing Supplement as the Interest Accrual Period, such dates as may occur in
accordance with the FRN Convention at such specified period of calendar months following the Interest
Commencement Date (in the case of the first interest Period End Date) or the previous Intercst Period End Date
(in any other case) or, it none of the foregoing is specified in the Pricing Supplement, means the date or each of
the dates which correspond with the Interest Payment Date(s) in respect of the Instruments.
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“Interest Rate™ means the rate or rates {expressed as a percentage per annumm) Or amount Or amounts
(expressed as a price per unit of relevant currency) of interest payable in respect of the Instruments specified in,
or calculated or determined in accordance with the provisions of, the Pricing Supplement.

“ISDA Definitions™ means the 2000 ISDA Definitions (as amended and vpdated as at the date of issue of
the first Tranche of the Instrumenis of the relevant Series {(as specified in the Pricing Supplement) as published by
the International Swaps and Derivatives Association. Inc.).

“Moneyline Telerate” means, when used iv connection with any designated page and any designated
information. the display page so designated on the Dow Jones Telerate Service (or such other page as may replace
that page on that service. or such other service as may be nominated as the information vendor, for the purpose of
displaving such information).

“Outstanding Principal Amount™ means. in respect of an Instrument, its principal amount less, in respect
of any Instalment Instrument, any principal amount on which interest shall have ceased to accrue in accordance
witn Condition 6.06 or. in the case of a Partly Paid Instrument, the Paid Up Amount of such Instrument or
otherwise as indicated in the Pricing Supplement except that the Paid Up Amouat shall be deemed 1o be nil for
Instruments which have been forfeited by the Issuer on or after the Forfeiture Date as provided for in
Condition 1.07.

“Reference Banks™ means such banks as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement as the Reference
Banks or. if nonc are specified. “Reference Banks™ has the meaning given in the ISDA Definitions,
mutaris mutandis.

“Regular Period™ means:

{1} in the case of Instruments where interest is scheduled to be paid only by means of regular payments,
each perivd from and including the Interest Commencement Date to but exciuding the first Interest
Payment Date and cach successive period from and including one Interest Payment Date to but
excluding the next Interest Payment Date;

{tiY  in the casc of Instruments where, apart from the first Interest Period, interest is scheduled to be paid
only by means of regular payments, each period from and including a Regular Date falling in any year
o but excluding the next Regular Date, where “Regular Date™ means the day and month (but not the
year) on which any Interest Payment Date falls: and

(i1i} in the case of Instruments where, aparl from one Interest Period other than the first Tnterest Period.
interest is scheduled to be paid only by means of regular payments, cach period from and including a
Regular Date falling in any vear to but excluding the next Regular Date, where “Regular Date™
means the day and month (but not the vear) on which any Interest Payment Date falls other than the
Interest Payment Date falling at the end of the irregular Interest Perjod.

“Relevant Financial Centre™ means such financial centre or centres as may be specified in relation to the
refevant currency for the purposes of the definition of “Business Day™ in the ISDA Definitions, as modified or
supplemented in the Pricing Supplement.

“Relevant Time™ means the time as of which any rate is to be determined as specified in the Pricing
Supplement or, if none is specified, at which it is customary to determine such rate.

“Reuters Screen” means, when used in connection with a designated page and any designated information,
the display page so designated on the Reuter Monitor Money Rates Service {or such other page as may replace

that page on that service for the purpose of displaying such information).

“TARGET Business Day™ means a day on which the Trans European Real-Time Gross Settlernent Express
Transfer System is open.
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Non-Interest Bearing Instruments

6.10 If any Redemption Amount {as defined in Condition 7.10) or Instalment Amount in respect of any
Instrument which is non-interest bearing is not paid when due, interest shall accrue on the overdue amount at a
rate per annum {expressed as a percentage per annum) equal Lo the Amortisation Yield defined in, or determined
in accordance with the provisions of. the Pricing Supplement or at such other rate as may be specified for this
purpose in the Pricing Supplement until the date on which, upon due presentation or surrender of the relevant
Instrument (if required), the relevant payment is made or. if earlier (except where presentation or surrender of the
relevant Instrument is not required as a precondition of payment), the seventh day after the date on which, the
Issue and Paving Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar having received the funds required to make such
payment, notice is given to the Holders of the Instruments in accordance with Condition 15 that the Issue and
Paying Agent or, as the case may be. the Registrar has received the required funds (except io the extent that there
is failure in the subsequent payment thereof to the relevant Holder). The amount of any such interest shall be
calculated in accordance with the provisions of Condition 6.08 as if the Interest Rate was the Amortisation Yield.
the Questanding Principal Amount was the overdue sum and the Day Count Fraction was as specified for this
purpose in the Pricing Supplement or, if not so specified. 30E/360 {as defined in Condition 6.09).

7. Redemption and Purchase
Redemption at Maruriry

7.01 Unless previously redeemed. or purchased and canceiled or unless such Instrument is stated in the
Pricing Supplement as having no fixed maturity date, ecach Instument shall be redeemed at its maturity
rederpption amount (the “Maturity Redemption Amount®) (which shall be its Outstanding Principal Amount
or such other redemption amount as may be specified in or determined in accordance with the Pricing
Supplement) or, in the case of Instaiment Instruments, in such number of instalments and in such amnounts
{“Instalment Amounts™) as may be specified in, or determined in accordance with the provisions of. the Pricing
Supplement on the date or dates {or, in the case of Instruments which bear interest at a floating rate of interest, on
the date or dates upon which interest is pavable) specified in the Pricing Supplement.

Early Redemption or Substimtion for Tuxation Reasons

7.02 Ii. in relation to any Series of Instruments as a result of any change tn the laws. regulations or rulings
of the country of incorporation of the Issuer or (il applicable} the Guarantor or, if different., the country of tax
residence of the Issuer or (if applicable) the Guarantor or of any political subdivision thereof or any authority or
agencey therein or thereof having power to tax or in the official interpretation or administration of any such laws,
regulations or rulings which becomes effective on or after the date of issue of such Instruments or earlier other
date specified in the Pricing Supplement, the Issuer or, if any payment were then due under the Guarantee, the
Guarantor would be required to pay additional amounts as provided in Condition 9. the Issuer or, as the case may
be. the Guarantor may, at its option and having given no less than thirty nor more than sixty days” notice {ending,
in the case of Instruments which bear interest at a floating rate, on a day upon which interest is payable) to the
Holders of the Instruments in accordance with Condition 15 (which notice shall be irrevocable):

{A) redeem all (but not some only) of the outstanding Instruments comprising the relevant Series at their
carly tax redemption amount (the “Early Redemption Amount (Tax)™) (which shall be their
Outstanding Principal Amount or, in the case of Instruments which are non-interest bearing, their
Amortised Face Amount {as defined in Condition 7.11) or such other redemption amount as may be
specified in, or determined in accordance with the provisions of, the Pricing Supplement), together
with accrued interest (if any) thereon Provided, however, that no such notice of redemption may be
given carlier than ninety days {or, in the case of Instruments which bear interest at a floating rate a
number of days which is equal to the aggregate of the number of days falling within the then current
inferest period applicable to the Instruments plus sixty days) prior to the carliest date on which the
Issuer or. as the case may be, the Guarantor would be obliged to pay such additional amounts were a
payment in respect of the Instrurments or the Guarantee then duc: or
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(B) substitute, without the consent of any Holders of Instruments provided that no payment in respect of
any such Series is overdue, an Affiliate of the Guarantor to assume liability for the due and punctual
payment of all payvments on all Instruments then outstanding in the relevant Series and the
performance of all the Issuer’s other obligations under all the Instruments then outstanding in the
relevant Series, the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement and the Deed of Covenant.

Upon any such substitution, the assuming company shall succeed to the rights and obligations of the Issuer
{or any previous assuming company) under the Instruments, the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement and the
Deed of Covenant and the Issuer (or any previous assuming company) shall be released from its liability on the
Instruments. the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement and the Deed of Covenant. Such assumptions shall be
permitted oniy if the assuming company and the Guarantor enter into a deed poll (the “Deed Poll®) whereby
(i) the assuming company assumes the obligations of the Issuer under the Instruments. the Issue and Paying
Agency Agreement and the Deed of Covenant, (if) the assuming company and the Guarantor agree to indemnify
each Holder and, if appropriate. each Accountholder (as defined in the Deed of Covenant) against (A) any tax,
duty. fee or governmeatal charge which is imposed on such Holder with respect to such Instrument or, as the case
may be. the Deed of Covenant and which would not have been so imposed had such assumption not been made,
(B) any tax, duty. fee or governmental charge imposed on or relating to the act of assumption and (C) any costs or
expenses of the act of assumption. (ii1) the Guarantor shall unconditionally guarantee {irrespective of the validity,
regularity or enforceability against the assuming company of any Instrument, the Deed of Covenant, the Issue and
Paying Agency Agreement or of any action to enforce the same), all payments in respect of the Instruments, the
Issue and Paying Agency Agreement. the Deed of Covenant and the Deed Poll (upon the terms of the original
guarantec in respect of the original Issuer’s obligations) and (iv) the assuming company and the Guarantor shall
warrant that all necessary governmental approvals and consents for the assumption by the assuming company of
its obligationx and the giving and implementation of the guarantee have been obtained and are in fuil force and
the obligations of the assuming company under the Instruments, the Deed of Covenant, the Issue and Paying
Agency Agreement and the Deed Poll and of the Guarantor under its guarantee to guarantee payments in respect
of the Instruments, the Deed of Covenant, the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement and the Deed Poll are legal,
valid. binding and enforceable Provided that no substitution shali take place pursuant to Condition 7.02(B) unless
the assuming company, the Issuer and the Guarantor shall have obtained legal opinions containing no untoward
qualifications from independent legal advisers in the country of incorporation of the assuming company, the
couniry of incorporaiion of the Issuer and in England to the cffect that the obligations of the assuming company
and of the Guarantor are legal, valid and binding and that all consents and approvals as aforesaid bave
been obtained.

As used herein “Affiliate” means any entity controlled. directly or indirectly, by the Guarantor, any entity
that controls the Issuer, directly or indirectly, or any entity under common control with the Issuer. For this
purpose “control” of the Issuer or any entity means ownership of 2 majority of the voting power of the Issuer or
such entiyy.

Not less than thirty nor more than ninety days prior to the effective date of the assumption by the assuming
company. the Issuer shall procure the notification to the Holders, in accordance with Condition 15, of the
assurnption and stating that copies. or pending execution thercof final drafts, of the Deed Poll and other relevant
documents and of the legal opinions are available for inspection by Holders at the specified offices of the Tssue
and Paying Agent and the Registrar. The originals of the Deed Poll and other documents will be delivered to the
Issue and Paving Agent to hold until there are no claims outstanding in respect of the Instruments, the Deed of
Covenant, the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement or the Deed Poll. The assuming company and the Guarantor
shall in the Deed Poll acknowledge the right of every Holder of any Instrument or. as the case may be, every
Accountholder to inspect such documents at the offices of the Issue and Paying Agent.

Upon the assumption becoming effective. references in these Conditions to the country of incorporation of
the lgsuer and, if different, the country of tax residence of the Issuer, shall be deemed to be replaced by references
o the country of incorporation and, if different. the country of tax residence of the assuming company.
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The Issuer or, as the case may be. the Guarantor may not excrcise the options referred to in this
Condition 7.02 in respect of any Instrument which is the subject of the prior exercise by the Holder thereof of its
option to require the redemption of such Instrument under Condition 7.06.

Optional Early Redemption (Call)

7.03 1f this Condition 7.03 is specified in the Pricing Supplement as being applicable, then the Issuer may,
having given the appropriate notice and subject to such conditions as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement,
redeem all (but not, unless and to the extent that the Pricing Supplement specifies otherwise, some only} of the
Instruments of the relevant Series at their call early redemption amount (the “Early Redemption Amount
{Call)””) (which shall be their Outstanding Principal Amount or. in the case of Instruments which are non-interest
bearing, their Amortised Face Amount (as defined in Condition 7.11) or such other redemption amount as may be
specified in, or determiined in accordance with the provisions of. the Pricing Supplement), together with accrued
interest (if any) thereon on the date specified in such notice.

The Issuer may not exercise such option in respect of any Instrument which is the subject of the prior
exercise by the Holder thereof of its option to require the redemption of such Instrument under Condition 7.06.

7.04 The appropriate notice referred to in Condition 7.03 is a notice given by the Issuer to the Issue and
Paying Agent. the Registrar (in the case of Registered Instruments) and the Holders of the Instruments of the
relevant Series in accordance with Condition 13. which notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify:

— the Series of Instruments subject to redemption:

— whether such Series 15 to be redeemed in whole or in part only and, if in part only, the aggregate
principal amount of and {except in the case of a Temporary Global Instrument or Permanent Global
Instrument) the serial numbers of the Instruments of the relevant Series which are to be redeemed:

— the due date for such redemption. which shall be not less than thirty days or such lesser period as may be
specified in the Pricing Supplement nor more than sixty days after the date on which such notice is given
and which shall be such date or the next of such dates (*Call Option Date(s)”} or a day lalling within
such period (**Call Option Period™), as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement and which is. in the
case of Instruments which bear interest at a floating rate. a date upon which interest is payable; and

— the Early Redemption Amount (Call} at which such Instruments are to be redeemed.

Purtial Redemption

7.05 If the Instruments of a Series are to be redeemed in part only on any date in accordance with
Condition 7.03:

~— in the casc of Bearer Instruments, the Instruments to be redeemed shall be drawn by 1ot in such European
<ity as the Issue and Paying Agent may specify or identified in such other manner or in such other place
as the Issue and Paying Agent may approve and decm appropriate and fair; and

— in the case of Registered Instruments. the Instruments shall be redeemed (so far s may be practicable)
pro iate 1o their principal amounts, provided always that the amount redeemed in respect of each
Instrument shall be equal to the minimum denomination thercef or an integral multiple thereof,

subject always 1o compliance with all applicable faws and the requirements of any stock exchange on which the
relevant Tnstruments may be listed.

In the case of the redemption of part only of a Registered Instrument, a new Registered Instrument in respect
of the unredeemed balance shall be issued in accordance with Conditions 2.04 to 2.09 which shall apply as in the
case of a wansfer of Registered Instruments as if such new Registered Instrument were in respect of the
untransferred balance.
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Optional Early Redemprion (Put)

7.06 If this Condition 7.06 is specified in the Pricing Supplement as being applicable, then the Issuer shall,
upon the exercise of the relevant option by the Holder of any Instrument of the relevant Series. redeem such
Instrument on the date or the next of the dates specified in the relevant Put Notice (as defined below) at its put
early redemption amount (the “Early Redemption Amount (Put)®) (which shall be its Outstanding Principal
Amount or, if such Instrument is non-interest bearing. its Amortised Face Amount (as defined in Condition 7.11}
or such other redemption amount as may be specified in, or determined in accordance with the provisions of, the
Pricing Supplement), together with accrued interest (if any) thereon. In order to exercise such option, the Holder
rmust. not less than forty-five days before the date on which such redempiion is required to be made as specitied
n the Put Notice (which date shall be such date or the next of the dates (*Put Date(s)™) or a day falling within
such period (*Put Period”) az may be specified in the Pricing Supplement), deposit the relevant Instrurnent
(together, in the case of an interest-bearing Instrument in bearer form, with all unmatured Coupons appertaining
theteto other than any Coupon maturing on or before the date of redemption (failing which the provisions of
Condition 10A.06 apply)) during normal business hours at the specified office of. in the case of a Bearer
Instrument, any Paying Agent or, in the case of a Registered Instrument. the Registrar together with a duly
completed early redemption notice (“Put Notice™) in the form which is available from the specified office of any
of the Paying Agents or. as the case may be, the Registrar specifying, in the case of a Registered Instrumen, the
aggregate principal amount in respect of which such option is exercised (which must be the minimum
denomination specified in the Pricing Supplement or an integral multiple thereof). No Instrument so deposited
and option exercised may be withdrawn (except as provided in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreemeat).

In the case of the redemption of part only of a Registered Instrument, a new Registered Instrument in respect
of the unredeemed balance shall be issued in accordance with Conditions 2.04 1o 2.09 which shail apply as in the
case of a transfer of Registered Instruments as if such new Registered Instrument were in respect of the
untransferred balance.

The Holder of an Instrument may not exercise such option in respect of any Instrument which is the subject
of an exercise by the Issuer of its option 0 redeem such Instrument under either Condition 7.02 or 7.03.

Purchase of Instruments

7.07 The Issuer or any of its subsidiaries may at any time purchase Instuments in the open market or
otherwise and at any price.
Cancellation of Redeened and Purchased Insrruments

7.08 All unmatured Instruments and Coupons and unexchanged Talons redeemed or purchased in
accordance with this Conditionn 7 may be held, cancelled. reissued or resold.
Further Provisions applicable 1o Redemption Amount and Instalment Amounts

7409 The provisions of Condition 6.07 and the last paragraph of Condition 6.08 shail apply to any
determination or calcutation of the Redemption Amount or any Instalment Amount required by the Pricing
Supplement to be made by the Calculation Agent.

7.10 References herein 1o “Redemption Amount™ shall mean, as appropriate, the Maturity Redemption
Amount, the final Instalment Amount, Early Redemption Amount {Tax), Early Redemption Amount (Cali). Early
Redemption Amount (Put} and Early Termination Amount or such other amount in the nature of a redemption
amount as may be specified in. or determined in accordance with the provisions of, the Pricing Supplernent.

7.11 1In the case of any Instrumnent which is non-interest bearing. the “Amortised Face Amount™ shall be
an amount equal to the sum of:

(i} the Issue Price specified in the Pricing Supplement; and
(i}  the product of the Amortisation Yield (as specified in the Pricing Supplement) (compounded annualiy)

being applied to the Issue Price from (and including) the Issue Date specified in the Pricing
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Supplement 1o (but excluding) the date fixed for redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon
which such Instrument becomes due and repayable.

Where such calculation is to be made for a period which is not a whole number of years. the calculation in
respect of the period of less than a full year shall be made on the basis of the Day Count Fraction (as defined in
Condition 6.09) specified in the Pricing Supplement for the purposes of this Condition 7.11.

7.12 In the case of any Instrument which is non-interest bearing. if any Redemption Amount {other than
the Maturity Redemption Amount) is improperly withheld or refused or default is otherwise made in the payment
thereof, the Amortised Face Amount shall be calculated as provided in Condition 7.11 but as if references in
sub-paragraph (ii) to the date fixed for redemption or the date upon which such Instrument becomes due and
repayable were replaced by references to the earlier of:

(i}  the date on which, upon due presentation or surrender of the relevant Instrument (if required), the
relevant payment is made; and

{ii) {except where presentation or surrender of the relevant Instrument is not required as a precondition of
payment). the seventh day after the date on which, the Issuc and Paying Agent or, as the case may be,
the Registrar having received the funds required to make such payment, notice is given to the Holders
of the Instruments in accordance with Condition 15 of that circumstance (except to the extent that
there is a failure in the subsequent payment thereof 1o the relevant Holder).

8.  Events of Default
8.01 The following events constitute Events of Default in relation to the Instruments of any Series:

{a) failure to pay any interest or additional amounts in respect of interest on any such Instruments when
due, and such failure continues for 30 days:

{b} failure to pay principal or additional amounts with respect 1o pavment of principal of any such
Instruments when due (and, in the case of technical or administrative difficuities only, such failure
continues Tor five days);

(¢)  failure 1o perform any other covenant of the Issuer or the Guarantor under such Instruments. the Issue
and Paying Agency Agreement and the Deed of Covenant, and such taiture continues for 90 calendar
days after written notice to the Issue and Paying Agent by the holders of at least 10% in aggregate
principal amount of the outstanding Instruments of such Series specifving such default or breach and
requiring it to be remedied;

(&) the entry by a court having jurisdiction in the premises of (i) a decree or order for relief in respect of
the lssuer or the Guarantor in an involuntary case or proceeding under any applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, examination. reorganisation or other similar law, or (ii) a decree or order adjudging the
Issuer or the Guarantor a bankrupt or insolvent, or approving as propetly filed a petition seeking
reorganisation, examination, arrangement, adjustment or composition of or in respect of the Issuer or
the Guaranior under any applicable law of the jurisdiction of incorporation of the Issuer or, in the case
of the Guarantor, England and Wales. or appointing a cusiodian, receiver, liquidator. examiner,
assignee, truslee, sequestrator or other similar official of the Issuer or the Guarantor or of any
substantial part of its property, or ordering the winding up or liquidation of its affairs, and the
continuance of any such decree or order for reliel or any such other decree or order unstated and in
effect for a peried of 90 consecutive days;

(¢} the commencement by the Issuer or the Guarantor of a voluntary case or proceeding under any
applicable bankruplcy, insolvency, examination. reorganisation or other similar law of the jurisdiction
of incorporation of the Issuer or, in the case of the Guarantor, England and Wales or of any other case
or proceeding to be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent, or the cousent by i to the entry ot a decree or
order for relief in respect of the Issuer or the Guarantor in an involuntary case or proceeding under any
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, examination, reorganisation or other similar law of the jurisdiction
of incorporation of the Issuer or, in the case of the Guarantor, England and Wales. or o the
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commencement of any bankruptcy or insolvency case or proceeding against it, or the filing by it of a
petition or answer or consent secking reorganisation, examination or relief under any applicable law of
the jurisdiction of incorporation of the Issuer or, in the case of the Guarantor, England and Wales, or
the consent by it to the filing of such petition or to the appointment of or taking possession by a
custodian, receiver. liquidator, examiner, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or other similar official of the
Issuer or of the Guarantor or of any substantial part of its property, or the making by it of an
assignment for the benefit of creditors. or the admission by it in writing of its inability to pay its debts
generally as they become due, or the taking of corporate action by the Issuer or the Guarantor in
furtherance of any such action; or

(fY  the Guarantee is not, or is claimed by the Guarantor not to be. in full force and effect.

8.02 [f an Event of Default with respect to any Series of Instruments shail occur and be continuing, the
Holders of at least 23% in aggregate principal amnount of the outstanding Instruments of the relevant Series may
give notice to the Issuer {which notice shall be accompanied by the certificate referred to in Condition 8.03
below) that the Instruments of the relevant Series and (if the Instruments are interest-bearing) all interest then
accrued on such Instruments are 1o be forthwith due and payable, whereupon each such Instrument shail become
immediately due and payable at its early termination amount (the “Early Termination Amount™} (which shall
be its Quistanding Principal Amount or. if such Instrument is non-interest bearing, its Amortised Face Amount
{as defined in Condition 7.11) (or at such other ammount as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement)
together with ali interest (it any} accrued thereon without presentment, demand. protest or other notice of any
kind, all of which the Issuer will expressly waive, anything contained in such Instruments fo the contrary
notwithstanding, unless prior to the time when the Issuer receives such notice all Events of Default in respect of
all such Instruments shall have been cured.

8.03 In order to give the notice referred 1o in Condition 8.02 above, a Holder shall. in the case of Bearer
instrurnents, deposit such Instruments with the Tssue and Payving Agent and obtain a certificate from the Issue and
Paying Agent in the form of the Eleventh Schedule to the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement or. in the casc of
Registered Instruments, obtain a certificate from the Registrar in the form of the Eleventh Schedule to the Issue
and Payving Agency Agreement. In either case. no transfer of the Instruments specified in such certificate shall be
permitted for a period of fificen days from the date of such certificate.

9.  Taxation

9.01 Al amounts payable (whether in respect of principal, interest or otherwise) in respect of the
Instruments and the Guarantee will be made free and clear of and without withholding or deduction for or on
account of any present or future taxes, duties. assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed
or levied by or on behalf of the country of incorporation of the Issuer or the Guarantor and, if different, the
country of tax residence of the Issuer or the Guarantor (the “Taxing Jurisdiction™) or any political subdivision
thereof or any authority or agency therein or thereof having power to tax, unless the withholding or deduction of
stch taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges is required by law or by the administration or official
interpretation thereof, In that event, the Issuer or, as the case may be. the Guarantor will pay such additional
amounts as may be necessary in order that the net amounts receivable by the Holder atter such withholding or
deduction shall equal the respective amounts which would have been receivable by such Holder in the absence of
such withholding or deduction; except that no such additional amounts shall be payable in relation to any
payment in respect of any Instrument or Coupon presented for payment:

(i} by or on behalf of a Holder who is liable 1o such raxes. duties. assessments or governmental charges in
respect of such Instrument or Coupon by reason of his having some connection with the Taxing
Jurisdiction other than the mere holding of such Insirament or Coupon:

(ii) where such withholding or deduction is imposed on a payment to an individual and is required to be
made pursuant to any European Union Directive on the taxation of savings implementing the
conclusions of the ECOFIN Council meeting of 26-27 November 2000 or any law implementing or
complving with. ot intreduced in order to couform to, such Direclive:
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{iit) by or on behalf of a Holder who would have been able to avoid such withholding or deduction by
presenting the refevant Instrument or Coupon or Receipt to another Paying Agent in a member state of
the European Union;

{»v)  in relation only 10 any Bearer Instrament or Coupon. more than thirty days afier the Relevant Date.
except to the extent that the relevant Holder would have been entitled to such additional amounts on
presenting the same for payment on or betore the expiry of such peried of thirty days;

(v) by or on behalfl of a Holder who would not be Hable to such taxes. duties, assessments or
governmental charges in respect of such Instrument or Coupon if such Holder had made a declaration
of non-residence or similar claim for exemption to any relevant tax authority: or

(vi) atthe specified oliice of a Paying Agent in the United Kingdom, or at the specified office of a Paying
Agent in Ireland in respect of Instruments issued by Diageo Enterprises.

9,02 For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, the “Relevant Date™ means, in respect of any
payment. the date on which such payment first becomes due and payabile, but if the full amount of the moneys
payable has not been received by the Issue and Paving Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar on or prior to
such due date, it means in relasion to such unreceived part the first date on which the full amount of such moneys
having been so reccived and being available for payment to Holders, notice to that effect shall have been duly
given 1o the Holders of the Instruments of the relevant Series in accordance with Condition 13.

9.03 It the Tssuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor becomes subject generafly at any time 10 any taxing
jurisdiction other than or in addition to the Taxing Jurisdiction, references in Condition 7.02 and Condition 9.01
to the Taxing Jurisdiction shall be read and construed as references to the Taxing Jurisdiction and/or to such other
jurisdiction(s).

964 Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to “principal™ and/or “interest™ in respect of the
Instruinents shall be deemed also o refer 1o any additfonal amounts which may be pavabie under this
Condition 9. Unless the context otherwise requires, any reference in these Terms and Conditions to *principal™
shall include any premium payable in respect of an Instrument, any Instalment Amount or Redemption Amount
and any other amounis in the pature of principal payable pursuant to these Terms and Conditions and “interest™
shall include all amounts payable pursuant e Condition 6 and any other amounts in the nature of interest pavable
pursuant to these Terms and Conditions.,

9.05 The Pricing Supplemem may set forth certain additional tax consequences to Holders of Instruments
of a particular Series.

10. Payments
10A Payments — Bearer Instruments

10A.01 This Condition 10A is applicable in relation to Instruments in bearer form. If the Pricing
Supplement specifies that a Bearer Instrument may be exchanged for a Registered Instrument. Condition 10B
below will be applicable to any payments after such exchange.

10A.02 Payment of amounts (including accrued imterest) due in respect of the redemption of Bearer
Instruments will be made against presentation and (save in the case of partial payment or payment of an
Instalment Amount {other than the final Instalment Amount)) surrender of the relevant Bearer Instruments at the
specified office of any of the Paying Agents.

Paymient of Instalment Amounts {other than the final Instalment Amount) in respsct of an Instalment
Instrument which is a Definitive Iastrument with Receipts will be made against presentation of the Instrument
together with (where applicable) the relevant Receipt and surrender of such Receipt.

The Receipts are not and shall ot in any circumstances be deemed to be documents of title and if separated
from the Instrument to which they rclate will not represent any obligation of the Issuer. Accordingly. the
presentation of an Inserument without the relative Receipt or the presentation of a Receipt without the Instrument
to which it appertains shall not entitle the Holder to any payment in regpact of the relevant Instalment Amount.
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10A4.03 Payment of amounts due in respect of interest on Bearer Instruments will be made:

(i} inthe case of Instruments without Coupons attached thereto at the time of their tnitial delivery, against
presentation of the relevant Instruments at the specified office of any of the Paying Agents outside
{unless Condition 10A.04 applies) the United States; and

(i)  in the case of Instruments delivered with Coupons attached thereto at the time of their initial defivery,
against surrender of the relevant Coupons or, in the case of interest due otherwise than on a scheduled
date for the payment of interest, against presentation of the relevant Instruments, in either case at the
specified office of any of the Paying Agents outside (unless Condition 10A.04 applies) the United
States.

10A.04 Conditions 10A.02 and 10A.03 notwithstanding, payments of amounts due in respect of interest on
the Instruments and exchanges of Talons for Coupon sheets in accordance with Condition 10A.07 will not be
made at the specified office of any Paying Agent in the United States (as defined in the United States Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 and Regulations thereunder) unless {a) payment in full of amounts due in respect of
interest on such Instruments when due or, as the case may be, the exchange of Talons at all the specificd offices of
the Payving Agents outside the Uunited States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other
similar restrictions and (b) such payment or oxchange is permitted by applicable United States law. If
paragraphs (a) and (b) of the previous sentence apply, the Issuer shall forthwith appoint a further Paying Agent
with a specified otfice in New York City,

10A.05 If the due date for payment of any amount due in respect of any Instrument is not a Relevant
Financial Centre Day and a Local Banking Day (each as defined in Condition 10C.03}, then the Holder thereof
will not be cntitied to payment thereof until the next day which is such a day (or as otherwise specified in the
Pricing Supplement) and from such day and thereafler will be entitled to receive payment by cheque on any Local
Banking Day. and will be entitled to payment by transfer to a designated account on any day which is a Local
Banking Day, 2 Relevant Financial Centre Day and a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange
markets sctile payinents in the relevant currency in the place where the relevant designated account is located and
no further payment on account of [pterest or otherwise shall be due in respect of such delay or adjustment unless
there 15 a subsequemt failure to pay in accordance with these Terms and Conditions (in which event interest shall
continue 1o accrue as provided in Condition 6.06 or, if appropriate. Condition 6.10).

10A.06 Each Instrument initially delivered with Coupons, Talons or Receipts attached thereto should be
presented and. save in the case of partial payment of the Redemption Amount. surrendered for final redemption
together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons relating thereto, failing whicis

{iy  if the Pricing Supplement specifies that this paragraph (1 of Condition 10A.00 is applicable (and, in
the absence of specification, this paragraph (1 shall apply 1o Tnstruments which bear interest at a fixed
rate or rates or in fixed amounts) and subject as hercinafler provided, the amount of any missing
untnatured Coupons {or, in the case of a payment not bejng made in full, that portion of the amount of
such missing Coopon which the Redemption Amount paid bears to the total Redemption Amount due}
{excluding, for this purpose. but without prejudice to paragraph (iii) below, Talons) will be dedncted
from the amount otherwise payable on such final redermption. the amount <0 deducted being payable
against surrender of the relevant Coupon at the specified office of any of the Paying Agents at any time
within five vears of the Relevant Date applicable to payment of such Redemption Amount;

(iiy  if the Pricing Supplement specifics that this paragraph (ii) of Condition 10A.06 is applicable {and. in
the absence of specification, this paragraph (i1) shall apply to Instruments which bear interest at a
floating rate or rates or at a margin above or below a floating rate or, otherwise. in variable amounts)
all unmatured Coupons {excluding, for this purpose. but without prejudice to paragraph (iti) below.
Talons) relating to such Tnstruments (whether or not surrendered therewith) shall become void and no
payment shall be made thereafier in respect of them;

{iiiy in the case of Imstrumenis initially delivered with Talons attached thereto. all unmatured Talons
(whether or not surrendered therewith) shall become void and no exchange for Coupons shall be made
thereafter in respect of them; and
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{iv) in the case of Instruments initialty delivered with Receipts attached thereto, ail Receipts relating to
such Instruments in respect of a payment of an Instalment Amount which (but for such redemption)
would have fallen due on a date after such due date for redemption (whether or not surrendered
therewith) shall become void and no payment shall be made thereafter in respect of them.

The provisicns of paragraph (i) of this Condition 10A.06 notwithstanding, if any Instruments should be issued
with a maturity date and an Interest Rate or Rates such thatl, on the presentation for payment of any such
Instrument without any unmatured Coupons attached thereto or surrendered therewith, the amount required by
paragraph (i} to be deducted would be greater than the Redemption Amount otherwise due for payment, then.
upon the due date for redemption of any such Instrument, such unmatured Coupons (whether or not atiached)
shall becorne void (and no payment shall be made in respect thereof) as shall be required so that, upon application
of the provisions of paragraph (i) in respect of such Coupons as have not so become void, the amount required by
paragraph (i) to be deducted would not be greater than the Redemption Amount otherwise due for payment.
Where the application of the foregoing sentence requires some but not all of the unmatured Coupons relating to
an Instrument to become void, the relevant Paying Agent shall determine which unmatured Coupons are to
become void, and shall select for such purpose Coupons maturing on later dates in preference to Coupons
mataring on carlier dates.

10A.07 In relation to Instruments initialty delivered with Talons attached thereto, on or after the due date
for the payment of interest on which the final Coupon comprised in any Coupon sheet matures, the Talon
comprised in the Coupon sheet may be surrendered at the specified office ol any Paying Agent outside (undess
Condition 10A.04 applies) the United States in exchange tor a further Coupon sheet (including any appropriate
further Talon}, subject to the provisions of Cendition 11 below. Each Talon shall, for the purpose of these
Conditions. be deemed to mature on the Interest Payment Date on which the final Coupon comprised in the
relative Coupon sheet matures.

108 Payments — Registered Instriments
16B.01 This Condition 10B is spplicable in velation to Instruments in registered form.

16B.02 Payment of the Redemption Amount {together with accrued interest) due in respect of Registered
Instruments will be made against presentation and. save in the case of partial payment of the Redemption
Amount. surrender of the relevant Registered Instruments ac the specified office of the Registrar. If the due date
for payment of the Redemption Amount of any Registered Instrument is nol 4 Relevant Financial Centre Day (as
defined in Condition 10C.(3), then the Holder thereof will not be entitled to payment thercof until the next day
which is such a day. and from such day and thereafter will be entitled 10 receive payment by chegue on any Local
Banking Day, and will be entitied te paymene by transfer 1o a designated account on any day which is a Local
Banking Day, a Relevant Financial Centre Day and o day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange
markets setlle payments in the relevant currency in the ptace where the relevant designated account is located and
no turther payment on account of interest or otherwise shall be dug in respect of such postponed payment unless
there is 2 subsequent failure 1o pay in accordance with these Terms and Conditions in which event interest shall
continue to accrue as provided in Condition 6.06 or, as appropriate, Condition 6.10.

10B.03  Payment of amounts {whether principal, interest or otherwise) due (other than the Redemption
Amount} in respect of Registered Instruments will be paid 1o the Holder thereof (or, in the case of joint Holders.
the first-named) as appearing in the register kept by the Registrar as at opening of business (local time in the place
of the specified office of the Registrar) on the fifteenth Relevant Banking Day (as defined in Condition 2.06)
before the due date for such payment {the “Record Date™).

10B.04 Notwithstanding the provisions of Condition 10C.02, payment of amounts {whether principal.
interest or otherwise) due (other than the Redemption Amount} in respect of Registered Instruments will be made
in the currency in which such amount is due by cheque and posted at the Holder's risk to the address (as recorded
in the register held by the Registrar) of the Holder thercof (or, in the case of joint Holders, the first-named) on the
Relevant Banking Day (as delined in Condition 2.06) not later than the relevant due date for payment unless prior
to the relevant Record Date the Holder thereof (or. in the case of joint Holders. the first-named} has applicd to the
Registrar and the Registrar has acknowledged such application for payment to be made o u designated account
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denominated in the relevant currency in which case payment shall be made on the refevant due date for payment
by transfer to such account. In the case of payment by transfer {0 an account. if the due date for any such payment
is not a Relevant Financial Centre Day, then the Holder thereof will not be entitled 0 payment thereof until the
first day thereatter which is a Relevant Financial Centre Day and a day on which commercial banks and foreign
exchange markets settle payments in the relevant currency in the place where the relevant designated account is
located and no further payment on account of interest or otherwise shall be due in respect of such postponed
payment unltess there is a subsequem fatlure 1o pay in accordance with these Terms and Conditions in which event
interest shall continue to accrue as provided in Condition 6.06 or, as appropriate, Condition 6.10.

10C Payments — General Provisions

10C.01  Save as otherwise specifiad in these Terms and Conditions. this Condition 10C is applicable in
relation to Instruments whether in bearer or in registered form.

10C.02 Payments of amounts due (whether principal. interest or otherwise) in respect of Instruments wiil
be made in the currency in which such amount is due (&) by cheque or (b) at the option of the pavee. by ransfer
10 an account denominated in the relevant currency specified by the payee. Pavments will, without prejudice to
the provisions of Condition 9, be subject in all cases (o any applicable fiscal or other laws and regulations.

HC.03  For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions:

(11 “*Relevant Financial Centre Day™ means, in the case of any currency other than Euro, a day on
which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the Relevant Financial
Centre and in any other Relevant Financial Cenire specified in the Pricing Supplement or in the case
of payment in Euro. a day which is a TARGET Business Day: and

(iiy “Local Banking Day™ means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday? on which commercial banks
are open lor business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the
place of presentation of the relevant Instrament or, as the case may be, Coupon.

10C.04  Ne commissions or cxpenses shall be charged to the Holders of Instruments or Coupons in respect
of such payments.

10D Payments — Euro Provisions
Instruments Denominated in the Currencies of EC Member Siates

D01 i, pursuant to the Treaty esiablishing the European Communities. as amended by the Treaty on
European Union {tegether, the “Treaty™), the Euro 1s further substituted for all or some of the currencies of the
member countries of the EC. the Issuer may at its option (or shall, if so required by applicable law) effect the
puyment of principal of. premium, i any, or interest on, the Insiruments denominated in such currencies in Euro
in conformity with legally applicable measures taken pursuant to, or by virtue of, the Treaty.

Redenonination

10D.02  In the case of Instruments denominated in the currency of an EC member state not currcnily
participating in the third stage of European Economic and Monetary Union (“EMU™), if that EC member siate al
a later date does so participate, the Issuer may, without the consent of the Holders of Instruments on giving at
least 50 days’ prior notice to the Holders of Instruments as described below {which notice shall detail the manner
in which any such acton by the Issuer shall be effected) elect that, with effect from any Interest Payment Date
thercafter or, for Instruments that do not bear interest, any other date thereafier as may be specified in such notice
{the “Redenomination Date”), cach Instrument shall be deemed to be redenominated in such amount of Euro as
is eguivalent to its denomination in s original currency of denomination converted into Huro at the rate for the
conversion of such currency established by the Council of the European Union pursuant to Article 123(4) of the
Treaty and rounded to the nearest cent. or otherwise in compliance with rules refating to rounding of applicable
EC regulations. On and after the Redenomination Date all payments in respect of such Instruments will be made
solely in Euro. including payments of interest with respect to periods before the Redenomination Date.
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Renominalisarion

10D.03 In connection with any such redenomination and simultaneously therewith, the Issuer may,
without the consent of the Holders of Instruments and upen giving notice in the manner set forth in
Condition 10D.02 above, elect that the nominal amount of each such redenominated Instrument shall be altered in
such manner and subject to such procedures as the Issuer, after consultation with the Issue and Payving Agent,
shall determine to be consistent with market practices applicable for the renominalisation of eurcbonds held in
international clearing systems. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, any fraction, if
amy, arising from such renominalisation will be paid in Euro to the Holder of the Instrument on the
Redenomination Date, in addition to the payment of interest otherwise payable on such date.

In connection with any such redenomination and simultaneously therewith, the Issuer may also, without the
consent of the Holders of Instruments, and upon giving notice in the manner set forth in Condition 10D.02 above,
elect that the nominal amount of any Instrument deemed to have been redenorninated in an amount of Euro shall
be divided into smaller nominal amounts deemed to be denominated in Euro in such manner and subject to such
procedures as the Issuer, after consultation with the Issue and Paying Agent, shall determine to be consistent with
market practices applicable for the renominalisation of eurobonds held in national and intemational clearing
systemns. Upon such division, the Instrument will be deemed to be denominated in such smaller nominal amounts
of Euro provided and any fraction arising therefrom will be paid in Euro to the relevant Holder on the
Redenomination Date.

In connection with any such redenomination and/or renominalisation and either simultaneously therewith or
on such later Interest Payment Date or other date as the Issuer may specify (the “Specified Date™) the Issuer may
also, without the comsent of the Holders of Instruments and upon giving notice in the manner set forth in
Condition 10D.02 above, elect that. with effect from such Specified Date, the then ¢xisting Instraments shall be
exchangeable at the specified office of the Issue and Paying Agent and at the specified offices of the Paying
Agents, for tew Euro Instruments having an cquivalent nominat amount in Euro (subject as set out above) as the
deemed nominal amount of the original Instruments so exchanged.

Miscelianeoits

10D.04 Reference in these Terms and Conditions to any Business Day, Day Count Fraction or other
conventions (whether for the calculation of interest, determination of payment daies or otherwise} may. at the
election of the Issuer, with effect from the Redenomination Date. be deemed to be modified to comply with any
conventions applicable to euro-denominated debt obligations pursuant to applicable requirements of relevant
monetary. stock exchange or other authorities, applicable laws and regulations of the EC. the participating
member states. as applicable and such market practices consistent therewith as the Issuer, after consultation with
the Issue and Paying Agent, shail determine to be applicable for the redenomination. renominalisation and
exchange of eurobonds held in national and international clearing systems, and the terms of the Instruments will
be deemed to be amended accordingly. Determinations of the Issuer pursuant to this Condition 10D will, in the
absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding on the Holders of Instruments and related Coupons.

11. Prescription

11.01 Claims against the Issuer or the Guarantor for payment of principal and interest in respect of
Instruments wilt be preseribed and become void unless made, in the case of prineipal, within ten years or, in the
case of interest, five years after the Relevant Date tas defined in Conditon ©.02) for payment thereof,

11,02 In refation to Definitive Instruments initially delivered with Talons attached thereto, there shall not
be included in any Coupon sheet issued upon exchange of a Talon any Coupen which would be void upon issue
pursuant to Condition 10A.06 or the due date for the payment of which would fall after the due date for the
redemption of the relevant Instrument or which would be void pursuant to this Condition 11 or any Talon the
maturity date of which would fall after the due date for redemption of the relevant Instcument.
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12. The Paying Agents, the Registrars and the Calculation Agent

12.01 The initial Paying Agents and Registrars and their respective initial specified offices are specified
below. The Calculation Agent in respect of any Instruments shall be specified in the Pricing Supplement. The
Issuer and the Guarantor reserve the right at any time to vary or terminate the appoinument of any Paying Agent
(including the Issue and Paying Agent). the Registrar or the Calculation Agent and to appoint additional or other
Paying Agents or another Registrar or Calculation Agent Provided that they will at all times maintain (i) an Issue
and Paying Agent, (ii) in the casc of Registered Instruments. a Registrar. (iii) a Paying Agent (which may be the
Issue and Paying Agent) with a specified office in a continental European city, {iv) so long as the Instrurnents are
listed on the Official List of the UKLA and the rules of the UKL A so require, a Paying Agent {which may be the
Tssue and Paying Agent) and a Registear each with a specified otfice in the United Kingdom and so long as the
Instruments issued by Diageo Enterprises are listed on the Irish Stock Exchange and the rules of such exchange
s0 require, a Paying Agent with a specified office in Dubiin. (v) in the circumstances described in
Condition 10A.04, a Paying Agent with a specified office in New York City, (vi} if the conclusions of the
ECOFIN council meeting of 26-27 November 2000 are implernented and so far as reasonably possible, a Paying
Agent in an EU member state that will not be obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to any European Union
Directive on the taxation of savings implernenting such conclusions and {vii} a Calculation Agent where required
by the Terms and Conditions applicable to any Instruments (in the case of (i). (i), (i) and (vii) with a specified
office located in such place (if any) as may be required by the Terms and Conditions}. The Paying Agents, the
Registrar and the Calculation Agent reserve the right at any time to change their respective specified offices to
some other specified office in the same city. Notice of all changes in the identities or specified offices of any
Paying Agent, the Registrar or the Calculation Agent will be given promptly by the Issuer to the Holders in
accordance with Condition 135.

12.02 The Payving Agents, the Registrar and the Caiculation Agent act solely as agents of the Issuer and the
Guaranior and, save as provided in the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement or any other agreement enfered into
with respect {0 its appointment. do not assume any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for any
Holder of any Instrument, Receipt or Coupon and each of them shall only be responsible for the performance of
the duties and obligations cxpressly imposed upon it in the Issuc and Paying Apency Agreement or other
agreement entered into with respect to its appoiniment or incidental thereto,

13. Replacement of Instruments

It any Instrument, Receipt or Coupon is lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, it may be replaced at
the specified office of the Issue and Payving Agent or such Paying Agent or Paying Agents as may be specified for
such purpose in the Pricing Supplement (in the case of Bearer Instruments and Coupons) or of the Registrar (in
the case of Registered Instruments) (“Replacement Agent™). subject to all applicable laws and the requirements
of any stock exchange or listing authority on which the Instruments are traded or listed, upon payment by the
clatmant of all expenses incurred in conneclion with such replacement and upon such ferms as to evidence.
security. indemnity and otherwisc as the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Replacement Agent may require. Mutilated
or defaced Instruments, Receipts and Coupons must be surrendered before replacements will be delivered
therefor.

14. Meetings of Holders and Modification

The Issue and Paying Agency Agreement contains provisions (which shall have effect as if incorporated
herein) for couvening meectings of the Holders of [nstrurnents of any Series to consider any mateer affecting their
imerests, including (without limitation) the modification by Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the Issue and
Paying Agency Agreement} of these Terms and Conditions and the Deed of Covenant insofar as the same may
apply to such Instruments. An Extraordinary Resolution passed by a written resolution or at any meeting of the
Holders of Instruments of any Series will be binding on ail Holders of the Instruments of such Series, whether or
not they are present at the meeting, and on all Holders of Coupons relating to Instruments of such Series, except
that any modification, inter alia, varying the date of maturity of Instruments of any Series or any date for payment
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of interest thereon, or reducing or cancelling the principal amount or the redemption amount, as the case may be,
or the interest payment in respect of such Instruments or Coupons or altering the currency or payment of
Instruments of any Series or the Coupons thereto to be effected by the Extraordinary Resolution passed at a
mecting of the Holders of such Instruments, will only be binding if passed at @ meeting of Holders of such
Instruments (or at any adjournment thereof) at which a special quorum provided for in the Issue and Paying
Agency Agreement is present.

The Issue and Paying Agency Agreement may be amended by further agreement among the parties thereto
without the consent of the Holders of any Instruments or Coupons.

The Issuer may, with the consent of the Issue and Paying Acent, but without the consent of the Holders of
the Instrurnents of any Series or Coupons, amend these Terms and Conditions and the Deed of Covenant insofar
as they may apply to such Instruments and modify the Instruments if such amendment or modification is not
materially prejudicial to the interests of the Holders of such Instruments or Coupons or which is of a formal,
minor or technical nature or to any modification which is necessary to comrect a manifest error. Subject as
aforesaid. mo other modification may be made to these Terms and Conditions or the Deed of Covenant except
with the sanction of an Exiraordinary Resolution.

15. Notices
To Holders of Bearer Instrumenis

15.01 Notices to Holders of Bearer Instruments will, save where another means of effective
cominunication has been specified herein or in the Pricing Supplement. be deemed to be validly given if
published in a leading dally newspaper having general circulation in London (which is expected to be the
Financial Times) and, if so long as the Bearer Instruments issued by Diageo Enterprises are iisted on the Irish
Stock Exchange. and the rules of that exchange so reguire, in a leading daily newspaper having general
circulation in Ireland (which is expected to be The frish Times), and/or, if such publication is not practicable, if
published in a leading English language daily newspaper having general circulation in Europe (or, if permitted by
the relevant stock exchange, in the case of a Temporary Global Instrument or Permanent Global Instrument, if
delivered 10 Euroclear and Clearstrearn, Luxembourg and/or anmy other relevant cleardug system for
communication by them to the persons shown in their respective records as having interesis therein). The Issuer
shall also ensure that nolices are duly published in comphance with the requirements of each stock exchange on
which the Iastruments are listed. Any notice so given will be deemed to have been validly given on the daie of
first such publication (or, it required to be published in more than one newspaper. on the first date on which
publication shall have been made in ali the required newspagpers). Holders of Coupons will be deemed for all
purposes to have notice of the contents of any notice given (o Holders of Bearer Instruments in accordance with
this Condition.

To Holders of Registered Instruments

15.02 Notices 1 Holders of Registered Instruments will be decmed to be validly given if sent by first class
mail (or equivalent) or (if posted to an overseas address) by air mail to them (or, in the case of joint Holders, to
the first-named in the register kept by the Registrar) at their respective addresses as recorded in the register kept
by the Registrar. and will be deemed to have been validly given on the second Business Day after the date of such
mailing or, if posted from another country, on the fifth such Business Day. If and for so long as the Regisiered
Instruments issued by Diageo Enterprises are listed on the Irish Steck Exchange, and the rules of that exchange
0 require. all notices regarding such Registered Instruments shall be published in a leading daily newspaper
having general circulation in Ireland (which is expected to be The Irish Times).

16. Further Issues

The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the Holders of any Instruments or Coupons but
with the consent of the Guarantor. if applicable. create and issue further instruiments, bonds or debentures having
the same terms and conditions as such Instruments in all respects (or in all respects except for the first payment of
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interest, if any, on them and/or the denomination thereof) and having the benefit of the Guarantee so as to form a
single series with the Instruments of any particular Series.

17, Waiver and Remedies

No failure to exercise, and no delay in exercising, on the part of the Holder of any Instrument, any right
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or panial exercise thereof preclude any other or
future exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right. Rights hereunder shall be in addition to all other rights
provided by law. No notice or demand given in any case shall constitute a waiver of rights to take other action in
the same. similar or other instances without such netice or demand.

18, Law and Jurisdiction

18.01 The Instruments, the Issue and Paying Agency Agreement, the Deed of Covenant and the Guarantee
are governad by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law.

18.02 The courts of England shall have jurisdiction to hear and determine any suit. action or proceedings.
and to settle anmy disputes, which may arise out of or in connection with the Instruments (respectively.
“Proceedings” and “Disputes™) and, for such purposes, the Issuer and the Guarantor irevocably submit to the
jurisdiction of such courts.

18.03 The Issuer irrevocably waives and the Guarantor has waived any objection which it might now or
hereafter have to the courts of England being nominated as the forum to hear and determine any Proceedings and
1o settle any Disputes and the Issuer agrees, and the Guarantor has agreed, not 1o claim that any such court is not
a convenient or appropriate forum.

18.04 The Issuer (if incorporated outside England and Waies) agrees that the process by which any
proceedings in England are begun may be served on it by being delivered to the Guaraotor at 8 Henrietta Place.
London WIG ONB or, if different, its registered office for the time being or any address of the Tssuer in Great
Britain on which process may be served on it in accordatice with Part XXHI of the Companies Act 1985 (as
modified or re-enacted from time to time). If the appointment of the person mentioned in this Condition 13.04
ceases o be eifective. such Issuer shall forthwith appoint a further person in England to accept service of process
on its behalf in England and notify the name and address of such person to the Issue and Paying Agent and,
tailing such appointment within fifteen days, any Holder of an Instrument shall be entitled to appoint such a
person by written notice addressed to such Issuer and delivered to such Issuer or to the specified office of the
Issue and Paying Agent. Nothing contained herein shall affect the right of any Holder of an Instrument to serve
process in any other manner permitted by law.

18.05 The submission to the jurisdiction of the courts of England shall not (and shall not be construed so
as to) limit the right of the Issuer. the Guarantor or the Holders of the Instruments or any of them io take
Proceedings in any other court of competent jurisdiction nor shall the taking of Proceedings in any one or more
jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceediags in any other jurisdiction (whether coacurrently or not) if and to
the extent permitted by applicable law.

19. Third Parties

No person shall have any right to enforce any term or condition of any Insirument under the Coatracts
(Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.
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PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE INSTRUMENTS WHILST IN GLOBAL FORM

(A) Relationship of Accountholders with Clearing Systems

Each of the persons shown in the records of Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other clearing
system as the holder of an Instrument represented by a Global Instrument (which expression includes a
Temporary Global Instrument and a Permanent Global Instrument) must look solely to Euroclear, Clearstream,
Luxembourg or such other clearing system (as the case may be) for such person’s share of each payment made by
the relevant Issuer (the “Issner™) or the Guarantor to the bearer of such Global Instrament {or the registered
holder of the Global Registered Instrument. as the case may be), and in relation to all other rights arising under
the Global Instruments. subject to and in accordance with the respective rules and procedures of Euroclear,
Clearstream, Luxembourg or such clearing system (as the case may be). Such persons shall have no claim directly
against the Tssuer or the Guarantor in respect of payments due on the Instruments for so long as the Instruments
are represented by such Global Instrument or Global Registered Instrument and such obligations of the Issuer and
the Guarantor will be discharged by payment to the bearer of such Global Instrument (or the registered holder of
the Global Registered Instrument, as the case may be). in respect of each amount so paid. References in these
provisions relating to the Instruments in global form to “holder™ or “accountholder™ are (o those persons
shown in the records of the relevant clearing system as a hoider of an Instrument.

{B) Form and Exchange — Bearer Global Instruments

() TEFRA D or TEFRA C: The Pricing Supplement shall specify whethey U.S. Treasury Reguiation
$1.163-3(c)(2%i YD) (the “TEFRA D Rules™) or U.S. Treasury Regulation § 1.163-5(c}2)(i{C) tthe “TEFRA
C Rules™} shall apply, Each Tranche of Bearer Instruments is represenied upon issue by a temporary global
Instrument (a “Temporary Global Imstroment™), uniess the Pricing Supplement specifies otherwise and the
TEFRA D Rules apply.

Where the Pricing Supplement applicable to @ Tranche of Bearer Instruments specifies that the TEFRA C
Rules apply, such Tranche is (unless otherwise specificd in the Pricing Supplement) represented upon issue by a
Permanent Global Instrument.

Interests in a Temporary Global Instrument may be exchanged for:
(i)  interests in a permanent global Instrument (a “Permanent Global Instrument™); or

(i) i so specified in the Pricing Supplement, definitive Instruments in bearer form (“Definitive
Instruments™) and/or (if so specified in the Pricing Supplement) Registered Instraments.

Exchanges of interests in a Temporary Global Instrument for Definitive Instruments or, as the case may be, a
Permaneni Global Instrument will be made only on or after the Exchange Date (as specified in the Pricing
Supplement) and (unless the Pricing Supplement specifies that the TEFRA C Rules are applicable to the
Instruments) provided certification as to the beneficial ownership thereof as reguired by U.S. Treasury regulations
{in substanually the form set out in the Temporary Global Instrument or in such other form as is customarily
issued in such circumstances by the relevant clearing system) has been received. An exchange for Registerad
Instruments will be made at any time or from such date as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement, in each
case without any requirement for certification.

{2} Limiration on entitfement under o Tempeorary Global Instrument after Exchange Date: Holders of
interests in any Temporary Global Instrument shall not (unless, upon due presentation of such Temporary Global
Instrument for exchange (in whole but not in part only) for a Permanent Global Instrument or for delivery of
Definitive Instruments and/or Registered Instruments, such exchange or delivery is improperly withheld or
refused and such withholding or refusal is continuing at the relevant payment date) be entitled to receive any
payment in respect of the Instruments represented by such Temporary Global Instrument which falls due on or
after the Exchange Date or be entitled to exercise any option on a date after the Exchange Date.

(3) Certification of non-U.S. beneficial ownership: Unless the Pricing Supplement specities that the TEFRA
C Rules are applicable to the Instruments and subject to paragraph (2) above. if any date on which a payment of
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interest is due on the Instruments of a Tranche occurs whilst any of the Instruments of that Tranche are
represented by a Temporary Global Instrument, the related interest payment will be made on the Temporary
Global Tnstrument only to the extent that certification as to the beneficial ownership thereof as required by
U.S. Treasury regulations (in substantially the form set out in the Temporary Global Instrument or in such other
form as is custornarily issued in such circumstances by the relevant clearing system) has been received by
Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear Systern (“Eureclear”) or Clearstream Banking, société
anonyme (“Clearstream, Luxemnbourg™) or any other relevant clearing system which may be specified in the
Pricing Supplement. Payments of amounts due in respect of a Permanent Global Instrument or {subject to
paragraph (2} above} g Temporary Global Instrument (if the Pricing Supplement specifies that the TEFRA C
Rules are applicable to the Instruments) will be made through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any
other relevant clearing system without any requirement for certification.

(4) Exchange for Definitive Instruments; Interests in a Permanent Global Instrument will be exchanged
(subject 1o the peried allowed for delivery as set out in (i) below), in whole but not in part only and at the reguest
of the Holder of such Global Instrument, for Definitive Instruments and/or (if so specified in the Pricing
Supplentent) Registered Instruments (a) if Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other relevant clearing
system is closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days {other than by reason of legal holidays) or
announces an intention permanently o cease business or (b) any of the circumstances described in Condition 8
oceurs or (¢) at any time on the request of the bearer, if 50 specified in the Pricing Supplement. Whenever a
Permanent Global Instrument is to be exchanged for Definitive Instruments and/or Registered Instruments, the
Issuer shali procure the prompt delivery of such Definitive Instruments and/or Registered Instruments, duly
authenticated and where and to the extent applicable, with Receipts, Coupons and Talons attached (each as
defined in Condition 1.02 and Cordition 1.03), in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of
such Permanent Global Instrument 1o the Holder of the Permanent Global Instrument against its surrender at the
specified office of the Issue and Paying Agent within 30 days of the Holder requesting such exchange,
Furthermore. if:

(i)  Definitive Instruments have not been delivered in accordance with the foregoing by 5.00 p.m. (London
time} on the thirticth day after the Holder has requested exchange. or

(i)  the Permanent Global Instrument {or any part thereof} has become due and payable in accordance
with the Conditions or the date for final redemption of the Penmanent Global Instrument has occarred
and, in either case, payment in fuli of the amount of the Redemption Amount (as defined in
Condition 7.10) together with ail accrued interest thercon has not been made to the Holder in
accordance with the Conditions on the due date for payment,

then such Permanent Global Tostrument (including the obligation to deliver Definitive andior Registered
Instruments) will become void at 5.00 p.m. {(London time} on such thirtieth day (in the case of (i) above) or at
5.00 p.m. (London time) on such due date (in the case of (ii) above) and the Holder of the Permanent Global
Instrument will have no further rights thereunder {but without prejudice to the rights which such Holder or others
may have under the Deed of Covenant). Under the Deed of Covenant, persons shown in the records of Euroclear
andfor Clearstream, Luxembourg (of any other relevamt clearing system) as being entitled to interests in the
Instruments will acquire directly against the Issuer all those rights to which they would have been entitied if.
immediately before the Permanent Global Instrument became void. they had been the Holders of Definitive
Instruments in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of Instruments they were shown as
holding in the records of Euroclear and/or Clearsiream, Luxembourg or any other relevant clearing system (as the
case may bel.

(C) Form and Exchange — Global Registered Instruments

(1) Global Registered Instrument; Registered Instruments held in FEuroclear and/or Clearstream.
Luxembourg (or any other clearing svstem) will be represented by a Global Registered Instrument which will be
registered in the name of a nominee for, and deposited with, a common depositary for Eurociear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg (or such other relevant clearing system).
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{2) Exchange: The Global Registered Instrument will become exchangeable in whole. but not in part, for
individual Regisiered Instruments if (2) Euroclear or Clearstream., Luxembourg is closed for business for a
continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of legal holidays) or announces an intention permanentiy to
ceasc business, (b) any of the circumstances described in Condition 8 occurs, or (¢) at any time at the request of
the registered Holder if so specified in the Pricing Supplement.

Whenever the Global Registered Instrument is to be exchanged for Registered Instruments, such Registered
Instruments will be issued in.an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Global
Registered Instrument within five business days of the delivery, by or on behalf of the registered Holder of the
Global Registered Instrument, Euroclear and/or Clearstream. Luxembourg. to the Registrar of such information as
is required 1o complete and deliver such Registered Instruments (including, without limitation. the names and
addresses of the persons in whose names the Registered Instruments are to be registered and the principal amount
of cach such person’s holding) against the surrender of the Global Registered Instrument at the Specified Office
of the Registrar. Such exchange will be effected in accordance with the provisions of the Issue and Paying
Agency Agrecment and the regulations concerning the transfer and registration of Insttuments scheduled thereto
and, in particular, shall be effected without charge to any Holder, but against such indemnity as the Registrar may
require in respect of any tax or other duty of whatsoever nature which may be levied or imposed in connection
with such exchange.

If (a) Registered Instruments bave not been tssued and delivered by 5.00 p.m. {(London time}) on the thictieth
day after the date on which the same are due to be issued and delivered in accordance with the terms of the
Global Registered Instrument or (b) any of the Instruments evidenced by the Global Registered Instrument has
become due and payable in accordance with the Conditions or the date for final cedemption of the Instruments
has occurred and, in either case. payment in full of the amount of prineipal falling due with all accrued interest
thereon has not been made to the Holder of the Global Registered Instrument on the due date for payment in
accordance with the terms of the Global Registered Instrument, then the Global Registered Instrument (including
the obligation to deliver Registered Instruments) will become void at 3.00 p. {London time) on such thirtieth
day (in the case of (a) above) or at 5.00 p.m. (London time) on such due date {in the case of (b) above) and the
Holder will have no further rights thereunder (but without prejudice to the rights which the Holder or others may
have under the Deed of Covenant). Under the Deed of Covenant, persons shown in the records of Euroclear and/
or Clearstream, Luxembourg (or any other relevani clearing system) as being entitled to interests in the
nstruments will acquire directly against the Issuer and the Guarantor all those rights to which they would have
been entitled if, immediately before the Global Registered Instrument became void. they had been the registered
Holders of Instruments in an aggregate principal amount cqual to the principal amount of Insttuments they were
shown as holding in the records of Euroclear. Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other relevant clearing system {as
the case may be).

{D) Amendment to Conditions

The Temporary Global Instruments, Permanent Global Instruments and Global Registered Instruments
contain provisions that apply to the Instruments that they represent. some of which modify the effect of the Terms
and Conditions of the Instruments set out in this Information Memorandum. The following is a summary of
certain of those provisions:

(1) Meerings: The holder of a Permanent Global Instrument or of the Instruments represented by a Global
Registered Instrument shall (unless such Permanent Global Instrument or Global Registered Instrument
represents only one Instruiment) be treated as being two persons for the purposes of any quorum requirements of a
meeting of holders ard, at any such meeting, the holder of a Permanent Global Instrument shall be treated as
having one voie in respect of each minimum Denomination of Instruments for which such Global Instrument may
be exchanged. (All holders of Registered Instruments are entitled to one vote in respect of each Instrument
comprising such holder’s holding, whether or not represented by a Global Registered Instrument.)

(2} Cancellution: Cancellation of any Instrument represented by a Permanent Global Instrurnent that is
required by the Conditions to be cancelled (other than upon its redemption} will be effected by reduction in the
principal arount of the retevant Permanent Global Instrument,
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{3) Purchase: Instruments represenied by a Permanent Global Instrument may be purchased by the Issuer or
any of its subsidiaries at any time in the open market or otherwise and at any price.

(4) Issuer’s Options: Any option of the Issuer provided for in the Conditions of the Instruments while such
Instruments are represented by a Permanent Global Instrument or a Global Registered Instrument shali be
exercised by the Issuer giving notice to the holders within the time limits set out in and containing the
mformation required by the Conditions, except that the notice shall not be required to contain the serial numbers
of Instruments drawn in the case of a partial exercise of an option and accordingly no drawing of Instruments
shall be required. In the event that any option of the Issuer is exercised in respect of some but not all of the
Instruments of any Series, the rights of accountholders with a clearing system in respect of the Instruments will
be governed by the standard procedures of Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other clearing system (as
the case may be).

{5} Holders® Options: Any opticn of the holders provided for in the Conditions of any Instruments while
such Instruments are represented by a Permanent Global Instrument or a Global Registered Instrument may be
exercised by the Holder of such Permanent Global Tnstrument or Global Registered Instrument, giving notice o
the Issue and Paying Agent within the time Iimits relating to the deposit of Instruments with a Paying Agent or
the Registrar, in the case of a Global Registered Instrument substantialty in the form of the notice available from
any Paying Agent (or the Registrar, in the case of a Global Registered Instrument), except that the notice shatl not
be required to contain the serial numbers of the Instruments in respect of which the option has been exercised,
and stating the principal amount of Instruments in respect of which the option is exercised and at the same time
presenting for notation the Permanent Global Instrument or the Global Registered Instrument to the Issue and
Paying Agent. or to a Paying Agent acting on behalf of the Issue and Paying Agent (or the Registrar. in the case
of a Global Registered Instrument).

(6) Notices: So long as any Instruments are represeated by a Temporary Global Instrument, Penmanent
Global Instrument or Global Registered Instrurnent and such Temporary Global Instrument, Permanent Global
Instrument or Global Registered Instrument is held on behalf of a clearing svstemn, notices to the holders of
Instruments of that Series may be given by delivery of the relevant notice o the clearing system for
commurnication by it to entitied accountholders in substitution for publication as required by the Conditions or by
delivery of the relevant notice to the Holder of the Permanent Global Instrument or Glebal Registered Instrument.

(E} Partly Paid Instruments

While any Partly Paid Instalments due from the holder of Partly Paid Instruments are overdue, no interest in
a Permanent Global Instrutnent or Global Registered Instrument representing such Instruments may be exchanged
for an interest in a Permanent Global Instrument or for Definitive Instruments or a Registered Instrument (as the
case may be). If any holder fails to pay any instalment due on any Partly Paid Instruments within the time
specified. the Issuer may forfert such Instruments and shall have no further obligaton to such holder in respect of
them.




FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Pro Forma Pricing Supplement for an issue by the relevant Issuer under the Programme for the Issuance of Debt
Instruments

If the Instruments have a marurity of less than one year, the minimumn denomination must be £100,000 or its
equivalent in any other currency.

PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Series No.: [ ® ]
Tranche No.:. | @ ]

[NAME OF ISSUER]
(incorporated with limited liability in[ @ J*
with registered number { @ )

PROGRAMME FOR THE ISSUANCE OF DEBT INSTRUMENTS

Issue of
[Aggregate Principal Amount of Tranche]
[Title of Instruments]

[The Issuer (a) has complied with its obligations under the listing rules of the Irish Stock Exchange in
relation to the admission to and continuing listing of the Programme and of any previous issue made under the
Programme and isted on the same exchange; (b) confirms that it wiil have complied with its obligations under the
listing rules of the Irish Stock Exchange in relation 1o the admission to listing of the Instruments by the time the
Instruments are so admitted: and (¢) has not, since the last publication of information in compliance with the
listing rules of the Trish Stock Exchange about the Programme. any previous issucs made by it under the
Programme and listed on the Irish Stock Exchange, or the Instruments, having made all reasonable enguiries.
become aware of any change in circumstances which could reasonably be regarded as significant and adversely
affecting its ability to meet its obligations as Issuer in respect of the Instruments as they fall due.J**

This Pricing Supplement {as referred (o in the Information Memorandum in relation to the above
Programme) relates to the Tranche of Instrauments referred to above. The particulars to be specified in reiation to
such Tranche are as follows:

i, Issuer: fName]
[Guarantor: . Diageo plc]
2, [Armanger[s}]: [Name]
3. Relevant Dealer/Lead Manager: {Name]
4. Syndicated: {Yes/Nol
3. Other Dealers/Managers (if any): {Name]
6. Staws: Unsubordinated
7. Currency: [Specify]
—  of Denomination
—  of Payment
(Condition 1.06)
8. Aggregate Principal Amount of Tranche: [Specify]
9. If fungible into an existing Series: [Specify details of existing Series and date from which
fungible]

10, Issue Dare: ' [Specify]

% [n the case of Diageo Enterprses, replace “limited™ with “unlimired”.

== Incluede in the case of Instruments issued or o be issued by Diageo Ewterprises andd o be listed on the [rish Stock Exchange.
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.

12

13.
14

16.

19.

20.

Issue Price:
[Commission Payable:
[Selling Concession:
[Expenses:

(a) Form of Instruments:

{b) Bearer Instruments exchangeable for
Registered Instruments:

If issued in Bearer form:

(a) Initially represented by a Temporary
Global Instrument or Permanent Global
Instrument;

(b} Temporary Global Instrument

exchangeable for Definitive Instruments

[only.] [and/or Registered Instruments]:

[Specify date from which exchanges for

Registered Instruments will be made.]

Permanent Global Instriment

exchangeable:

(c)

(d) Talons for future Coupons to be attached
to Definitive Instruments:

(Condition 1.02}

Definitive Instruments to be in IPMA or

successor format:

{e)

. Denomination(s):

(Condition 1.04 or 1.05)

. Partly Paid Inswuments:

(Condition 1.07)

If ves, specify number, amounts and dates for,
and method of, payment of instalments of
subscription moneys and any further additional
provisions {including Forfeiture Dates in respect
of late payment of Partly Paid Instalinents)

If issued in Registered Form:

Registrar:

{Condition 2.02)

Interest:

(Condition 6)

. Interest Rate:

(Condition 6.02)

. Relevant Screen Page:

(Condition 6.03)
Relevant Margin:
(Condition 6.03)
ISDA Rate:

(Condition 6.04)

. Minimum Interest Rate:

(Condition 6.05)
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[ @& ] % fla]
[ @& %]

{If Definitive Instruments specify that the Issuer must
bear the cost for producing Definitive Instruments]
[Bearer/Registered]

IYes/No]

[Specify. If nothing is specified and this Pricing
Supplement does not specify that the TEFRA C Rales
apply. Instruments will be represented initially by a
Temporary Global Instrument.]

[Yes/No. Specify Exchange Date.]

[If nothing is specified, exchanges will be made at any
fime.]

For Definitive Instruments [only] [and/or Registered
Instriments] in the circumstances specified in
“Provisions Relating 1o the Instruments whilst in
Glebal Form™ paragraph (4) [(a) and (b) only.
(clearing svstem failure and Evenr of Defauit)}/]ic). {at
any rime af the option of the Holder)]

[Yes/No}

[Yes/No. If nothing is specified Definitive Instruments
will be in the form of the Giobal Instruments.]
[Specify]

[Yes/Noj

[Give details]

[Name and specified office]
{Interest bearing/Non-interest bearing]

Specify rate {(if fixed) or Floating Rate (if floating) or
ISPA Rate or formula.]

{Reuters Screen/Moneyline Telerate/Other]

page[ @ L
{Plus/Minus] [ @ ] % per annum.

Issuer is [Fixed Rate/Fized Amount/Fixed Price/
Floating Rate/Floating Amount/Floating Price] Paver.
| @ ] % per annum




26.

29.

Maximum Interest Rate:
(Condition 6.05)

Interest Payment Dates or (if the Applicable
Business Day Convention is the FRN

Convention) Interest Period:

. Interest Period End Dates or (if the Applicable
Business Day Convention is the FRIN
Convention) Interest Accrual Period:
Applicable Business Day Convention:

—  for Interest Payment Dates:
—  for Tuterest Period End Dates:

—  for Maturity Date:
—  any other date:
Relevant Financiai Centres:
(Condition 6.09)
(Condition 10C.03)

. Day Count Fraction:

(Condition 6.09)

2. Ingerest Commencement Date:

(Condition 6.09)

. Interest Determination Date:

(Condition 6.09)
Relevant Time:
(Condition 6.09)
Default Interest Rate:
(Condition 6.06)
Calculation Agent:
(Condition 6.07)
Reference Banks:
{Condition 6.09)

If non-interest bearing:
-—  Amortisation Yield
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[ @ ] 9% per annum

{Specify all dates or (if the Applicable Business Day
Convention is the FRN Convention) number of months}

{Specify all dates. If nothing is specified Interest Period
End Dates will comespond with Interest Payment
Dates.]

{Specify. If no adjustment is required then specify “No
Adjustment”. Note that these conventions are only 1o
apply for the purposes of accrual of interest. Thus. a
fixed rate Instrument should normally specify “No
Adjustment””, but for purposes of payment, a
modification may be required to match a swap (see
paragraph 47 — Payments below). Care should be
taken to match the maturity date (as well as other key
dates} of the Instruments with any underlyving swap
transaction. Since maturity dates do not automatically
move with business dav conventions under ISDA, it
may be necessary to specify “No Adjustment” in
relation to the maturity date of the Instruments to
disapply the Applicable Business Day Convention.}

[ ® |}

[ & ]
[ o ]
[ ® ]

{Specify any Relevant Financial Centres which may be
required for the purposes of the definition of Business
Days (adjustment of Interest Payment Dates and
Interest Period End Dates for accrual — not usually
relevant for fixed rate Instruments, see above at
paragraph 29) and for the definition of Relevant
Financial Cenmtre Day (adjustment of dates for
payment). If nothing is specified, the ISDA Definitions
for the relevant currency will  apply (see
Condition 6.09 — definition of Relevant Financial
Centre).]

[Specifv]

[Specity, if different from the Issue Date}

[Specify number of Banking Days in which city(ies), if
different from Condition 6.09)

{ @ lam/p.m.][Spccify city] time

[Specify if different from the Interest Rate]

[Name and specified office]

[Specify]

[Specify]




39.

40.

4].

42.

43.

47

—  Rate of interest on overdue amounts
—  Day Count Fraction

Maturity Date®:

(Condition 7.01)

Dates for payment of Instalment Amounts
(Instalment Instruments):

(Condition 7.01)

Maturity Redemption Amount:
{Condition 7.01)

Instalment Amounts:

(Condition 7.01)

Early Redemption for Taxation Reasons:
(Condition 7.02)

(a) Early Redemption Amount (Tax):

(t)  Date after which changes in law, ctc.

entitle Issuer to redeem:
Optional Early Redemption (Call):
{Conditicn 7.03)
(a) Early Redemption Amount {Call):

(by  Serics redeemable in part:

(¢y  Call Option Date{s)/Call Option Period:
. Optional Early Redemption (Put):

(Condition 7.06)
(a)  Early Redempiion Amount (Put):

(b) Put Date(s)/Put Period:
Events of Default:

{Condition 8.01)

ta) Early Termination Amount:

()  Any additional (or modifications {o)
Events of Default:

Payments:

(Condition 10}

{a)  Unmatured Coupons missing upon Early

Redemption:

(& Specify any modification to the adjustment

provistons for payment dates:
(Condition 10A.05)

[Specify. if not the Amortisation Yield)

[Specify for the purposes of Condition 6.10 and
Condition 7.11]

[Specify date (or Interest Payment Date occurring in
month and vear if FRN Convention applies)]

[Specify dates (or Interest Payment Dates occurring in
months and years if FRN Convention applies)]

[Specity, if not the Outstanding Principal Amount]

{Specify)

[Specify, if not the Outstanding Principal Amount or,
in the case of anv Instruments which are non-interest
bearing, the Ameortised Face Amount}

[Specify. if not the Issue Datcl

[Yes/No]

[Specify. if not the Outstanding Principal Amount or.
in the case of any Instruments which are non-interest
bearing, the Amortised Face Amount|

[Specify. otherwise redemption will only be permitted
of entire Serics]

[Specify]

[Yes/No]

{Specify, if not the Outstanding Principal Amount or,
in the case of any Instruments which are non-interest
bearing. the Amortised Face Amount]

[Specify]

{Specify, if not the Outstanding Principal Amount or.
in the case of any Instruments which are non-interest
bearing, the Amortised Face Amount]

[Specify]

{Specify whether paragraph (1} of Condition 10A.06 or
paragraph (ii) of Condition 10A.06 applies. If nothing
is specified paragraph (i) will apply to fixed rate or
fixed coupon amount Instruments and paragraph (i)
will apply 1o floating rate or variable coupon amount
Instrumenis]

[Specify  whether. e.g. the Modified Following
Business Day Convention should apply for purposes of
payment].

# 1f Instruments are issued or are 1o be issved by Diageo Enterprises, such Instruments must have @ minimum wmaterity of 366 days.
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Replacement of Instruments:

(Condition 13)
Notices:
(Condition 15)

Listing:

Selling Restrictions:
United States of America:

Other:

. Stabilising Institution:

ISIN:
Common Code:
Common Depositary:

Any Clearing System other than Euroclear and

Clearstream, Luxembourg:
Settlement Procedures:

Other Relevant Terms and Conditions:

CONFIRMED

[In the case of Bearer Instruments specify Replacement
Agent, if other than (or in addition to) the Issue and
Paying Agent]

[Specify any other means of effective communication]

[Yes/No] [if Yes, specify which listing authority and/or
stock exchange(s)]

Regulation S Category 2 restrictions apply to the
Instruments [Specify whether the Instruments are
subject to TEFRA C or TEFRA D Rules. In the
absence of specification TEFRA D Rules will apply]

[Specify any medifications of or additions to selling
restrictions contained in Dealership Agreement]

{In connection with the issue of the Instruments,
{name of stabilising institution] (or any person
acting for [pame of stabilising institution]) may
over-allot or effect transactions with a view to
supporting the market price of the Instruments at a
level higher than that which might otherwise
prevail. However, there may be no obligation on
[name of stabilising institution] (or any agent of
[name of stabilising agent]) to do so. Such
stabilising, if commenced, may be discontinued at
any time and must be brought to an end after a
limited period. Such stabilising shall be in
compliance with all applicable laws, regulations
and rules.]

[

J
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

[Specify whether customary medium term note/
curobond/other settlement and payment procedures
apply]

[ & ]

[DIAGEO ple/DIAGEC CAPITAL ple/DIAGEQ FINANCE ple/DIAGEQ ENTERFPRISES]




USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds of the issue of each Tranche of Instruments will be used for the general corporate purposes
of Diageo plc and its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Diageo group”) unless otherwise specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement.




DIAGEO CAPITAL PLC
Introduction

Diageo Capital plc, 2 wholly owned subsidiary of Diageo plc. was incorporated as a private limited company
in Scotland on 10 Avgust 1964 under the Companies Act 1948 (registered number 40795) under the name
Nutress Laboratories Limited. Diageo Capital ple changed its name to Hayes Lyon Limited on 16 August 1990.
On 16 Apnl 1992 Diageo Capital plc re-registered as a public limited company under the name of Guinness
Finance PLC and on 15 December 1997 changed its name to Diageo Capitat ple.

The authorised and issued share capital of Diageo Capital plc comprises 100,000 ordinary shares of £1 each
of which 99.999 are held by Diageo ple and one is held by Precis (175) Limited on trust for Diageo plc.

Diagee Capital plc acts as a financing vehicle for the Diageo group’s operating companies and has no
independent operations, other than the holding of cash or US government securitics from time to time, and
substantially all proceeds of its borrowings are lent to one or more of those companies.

Directors

The directors of Diageo Capital pic and their respective business occupations are:

Name Business occupation
Paviter Singh Binning Director
Matthew John Lester Director
Jocl Walters Director

On 31 January 2003, Robert Joseph Moore resigned and Matthew John Lester was appointed as a director of
Diageo Capital pic. On 31 March 2003, Roger Hugh Myddelton resigned as a director of Diageo Capital plc. On
18 April 2003, Alistair Williams resigned as a director of Diageo Capital plc.

The business address of each of the directors above is 8 Henrietta Place, London W1G (ONB.
None of the directors hold directorships of companies or institutions outside the Diageo group.

At 31 March 2003, the directors had no interests in the share capital of Diageo Capital ple. At 31 March
2002, the aggregate interests of directors in the ordinary shares of Diageo ple, inclading their share options and
conditional rights to acquire shares, was less than 1% of Diageo plc’s total issued share capital.

The company secretary of Diageo Capital ple is John James Nicholls.

The registered office of Diageo Capital ple is at Edinburgh Park, 5 Lochside Way, Edinburgh EHI2 9DT.
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DIAGEO CAPITAL PLC
INDEBTEDNESS AND CAPITALISATION

The following table sets out the capitalisation and indebtedness {excluding balances with other Diageo group
undertakings) of Diageo Capital plc based on the audited financial statemnents as at 30 June 2002.

30 June
2002
£ million
Borrowings'"

Short term borrowings (including current portion of long term borrowings) 2,031.0
Long term borrowings 1.458.8

Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares™ 0.1
Retained carnings 251.1
Total indebtedness and capitalisation 3.741.0

Notes:
{13 On 19 November 2002, Diageo Capital ple 1ssued a $1 billion zlobal bond due November 20607, paying interest at 3.5%. On 20 March

2003. Diageo Capital ple issued a $1 billion globat bond due March 2008, paying interest at 3.3753%. Between 30 June 2002 and
18 December 2002 Diageo Capital ple issued various retail notes with a total principal amount of $60.5 million, with maturity dates of
between 3 te 10 years, paying interest at circa 5%. The amount of oatstanding commercial paper has reduced frem $2.432 miltion

¢£1.601 million) at 30 June 2002 10 $1,86% million (£1,183 million) at 28 March 2003.

121 None of the borrowings, in the table and note (1} above, are seeured on the assety of Diageo Capital plke or the Diageo group. The
harrowings of Diageo Capital ple are guaranteed by Diageo ple.

(3) At 30 Jane 2602, the otal avthorised share capital of Diageo Capita! ple was £0.1 million. consisting of 100.000 ordinary shares of £1
cach. At such date, 106,000 erdinary shares were issued and fully paid, with an aggregate nominzl valwe of £0.1 million.

{4) At 30 June 2002, there were no contingent liabilities or guerantess.

(5) There has been ne material change in the capitalisation. indebtedness. contingent labilities or guarantees of Disgeo Capital ple since
30 June 2002 except as disclosed in note {1} above.

47




DIAGEO FINANCE PLC
Introduction

Diageo Finance ple, a wholly owned subsidiary of Diageo plc, was incorporated as a private limited
company in England and Wales on 23 April 1926 under the Company Acts 1908 tw 1917 (registered
number 213393) under the name The Mayfair Hotel Company Limited. Diageo Finance plc changed its name to
Grand Metropolitan (Finance) Limited on 26 January 1973, On 2 November 1981 Diageo Finance plc re-
registered as a pablic limited company under the name of Grand Metropolitan {Finance) Public Limited
Company. On 1} December 1981 Diageo Finance plc changed its name to Grand Metropolitan Finance Public
Limited Company and on 16 December 1997 changed its name o Diageo Finance plc.

The issued share capital of Diageo Finance plc comprises 73.200.000,000 ordinary shares of 3 pence each,
alt of which are held by Diageo plc.

Diageo Finance ple acts as a financing vehicle for the Diageo group’s operating companies and has no
independent operations apart from the management of the Diageo group’s foreign exchange exposure.
Directors

The directors of Diageo Finance plc and cheir respective business occupations are:

Name Business occupation
Paviter Singh Binning Director
Matthew John Lester Director
Joel Walters Director

On 31 Januvary 2003, Robert Joseph Moore resigned and Matthew John Lester was appeinted as a director of
Diageo Finance ple. On 31 March 2003, Roger Hugh Myddelon resigned as a disector of Diageo Finance ple. On
18 April 2003, Alistair Williams resigned as a director of Diageo Finance pic.

The busingss address of cach of the dircctors above is 8 Henrictta Place. London W1(G ONB.
None of the directors hold directorships of companies or institations outside the Diageo group.

At 31 March 2003, the directors had no interests in the share capital of Diageo Finance ple. At 31 March
2003, the aggregate interests of directors in the ordinary shares of Diageo ple including their share options and
conditional rights to acquire shares, was less than 1% of the total issued share capital of Diageo plc.

The company secretary of Diageo Finance ple is John James Nicholls.

The registered office of Diageo Finance ple is at 8 Henrietta Place, London WiG ONB.
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DIAGEO FINANCE PLC
INDEBTEDNESS AND CAPITALISATION

The following table sets out the capitalisation and indebtedness (excluding balances with other Diageo group

undertakings) of Diageo Finance ple based on the audited financial statements as at 30 June 2002,

30 June
2002
£ mitlion

Borrowings'"’

Short term borrowings (including current portion of long term borrowings) 130.9

Long term borrowings 199.6
Shareholders’ equity

Ordinary shares' 3,660.0

Retained eamings 960.3

Total indebtedness and capitalisation 4,950.8

Notes:

{1} None of the borrowings in the table above are secured on the assets of Diageo Finance ple or the Diageo group. The borrewings of
Diageo Finance ple are guaranteed by Diageo ple.

123 At 30 fune 2002, the motal authorised share capitel of Diageo Finance ple was £5.665 million. consisting of 74,300.000.060 ordinary
shares of 3 pence cach and 1.930,000,000 snclassified shares of £1 cach. At such date 73,200,000.000 ordinary shares were issued and
fully paid, with sn aggregate nominal value £3,660 million.

(33 Diageo Finance plc enters into various forward dated transactions to manage the Diageo group's interest and foreign exchange rate

(5%

exposures. in the period from 1 July 2002 w 23 April 2003 o gain of £16 million had been reulised. As a1 23 April 2003, the fair value of
contingent Mabilities in respect of apen foreign exchange cylnders was £2 millon.

On 13 December 2002, Disgeo Finance ple entered into a five year $850,000.000 Credit Facility Agreement, following the sale of the
Burger King Corporation by the Diageo group. Under the terms of this Agreement. Diageo Finance ple together with Diagee ple and
Diageo Enterprises, on a joinc and several basis guarantee in full, e up to a2 maximum of $850,000,000. the payment obligations of
Burzer King and its subsidiaries to the original lending financial instirutions. These leans have a term of five years although Diacec and
Burger King have agreed o structure their amrangements to encourage refinancing by Burger King on a nor-guarantzed basis prior o the
end of tive vears.

On 20 December 2002, 2 zuaraniors’ vo-operstion agreement was entered into by Diageo Enlerprises. Diageo Finance ple, Diageo ple
and Diageo Venture Limited (“DVEY). Under the terms of this co-operation agreement, DVE is table for all amounts pavable by any
guaranior under the temms of the Credit Facility Agreement and DVL is entitled to any payment received by any gvarmeor ender the
terms of the Credit Facility Agreowment.

There has begn no material change in the capitalisaton, indebtedness, contingent liabifities or goarantees of Diageo Finance pic since
30 June 2002 except as described in notes (3) and (4) above.
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DIAGEO ENTERPRISES
Introduction

Diageo Enterprises, a wholly owned subsidiary of Diageo plc, was incorporated as a private unlimited
company in Ireland on 15 June 1992 under the Compantes Acts. 1963-1990 (registered number 190267) under
the name Bravura Enterprises. Diageo Enterprises changed its name to Guinness Enterprises on 25 January 1994
and changed it again to Diageo Enterprises on 24 February 1998. On 28 July 1999 Diageo Enterprises was re-
registered as a public unlimited company.

The issoed share capital of Diageo Enterprises consists of 173.603.524 ordinary shares of USS1 each,
10.000 ordinary shares of GBPEL each. 13 ordipary shares ot €1.27 each and 2 ordinary shares of CADS each.
all of which are held by Diageo Holdings Nederland BV,

Diagec Enterprises provides lending services to the Diageo group and manages surplus cash within the
Diageo group.

Diageo Enterprises has five subsidiary undertakings which are Diageo Enterprises International, Diageo

Enterprises Canada, Diageo Enterprises Germany, Diageo Enterprises Spain and Guinness United Distillers
Europeuan Collections Limited. These subsidiaries are currently in voluntary lquidation.

Directors

The dircctors of Diageo Enterprises and their respective business occupations are:

Name Business occupation
Charles Coase Director
David Gillard Director
Melanie Halpin Birector
Patrick Keeley Director

On 4 September 2001. Philip Gooding resigned as a director of Diageo Enterprises. Taun Dimatieo was
appointed as a director of Diageo Enterprises on 4 Septernber 2001,

On 16 May 2002, Paul Byme resigned as director of the company. On 11 June 2002, Chris Day resigned as
director of the company. On 12 June 2002, Taun Dimatteo and Gerry Dempsey resigned as directors of the
company and on the same day Melanic Halpin, David Gillard, Charles Coase and Patrick Keeley were appointed
directors of the company.

On 10 June 2002 Peter Murphy resigned as company secretary and on 12 June 2002 Jim McLoughlin was
appointed company secretary.

The business address of Charles Coase, Melenic Haipin and Patrick Keeley is at St James’s Gate, Dublin §,
Ircland and the business address of David Gillard is 8 Henrietta Place. London W1G ONB.

None of the directors hold directorships of companies or institutions outside the Diageo group.
AL 31 March 2003, the directors had no interests in the share capital of Diageo Enterprises. At 31 March
2003, the aggregate interests of directors tn the ordinary shares of Diageo ple inciuding their share options and

conditipnal rights to acquire shares, was less than 1% of the total issued share capital of Diageo plc.

The registered office of Diageo Enterprises is at Finance Building, Front Offices, St James™s Gate, Dublin 8,
Trelang.
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DIAGEO ENTERPRISES
INDEBTEDNESS AND CAPITALISATION

The following table sets out the capitalisation and indebtedness (excluding balances with other Diageo group

undertakings) of Diageo Enterprises based on the audited financial staternents as at 30 June 2002.

30 June
2002
$ million

Short term borrowings™’

Commercial paper / raedium term notes 666.0

Shareholders’ equity

Ordinary shares® 318.3
Retained carnings 319

Total indebtedness and capitalisation 1,0162

Notes:

{1} None of the borrowings in the wable above are secured on the assets of Dageo Enterprises or the Diagen group. The borrowings of
Diageo Enterprises are guaranieed by Diageo ple.

{2) At 30 June 2002, the wotal authorised share capital of Diageo Enterprises was $35.089 million. consisting of 2.000.000,060 ordinary shares
of £1 each, 2.000.000.000 ordinary shares of $1 each, F0.000.400 ordinary shares of £1.27 each and 60.000,000 ordinary shares of
CADS] cach. At such dale 71.344.390 ordinary shares of £1 each. 200.850,000 ordinary shares of S1 sach. 13 vrdinary shares of €1.27
cach and 2 ordinory shares of CADST each were issued and folly paid, with an aggregate nominal value of 5315 million.

Since 30 June 2002 and ep to 24 March 2003, 71,334,390 ordinary shares of £1 each were redeemed. 30.000,600 ordinary shares of $]
cach were redeemed and 13,733,324 ordinary shares of 57 cach wore issued,

(33 Singe 30 June 2002, a majority of the short 1enm borrowings have been repaid. At 30 April 2003, short term borowings was
$123 miliion.

td) On 13 December 2002, Diagen Enterprises entered into a five year $850.000,000 Credit Facility Agrezment following the sale of the

Burger King Corporation by the Diageo group. Under the werms of s Agreement, iageo Enterprises ogether with Dizgeo plc and
Diageo Finence ple, on 2 joint and several basis guaramtee in foll, e wp 10 2 maximem of $830.000,000, the payment obligations of
Burger King and its subsidiaries to the criginal lending financial institudons, These loans have a term of five years although Diageo and
Burger King have agreed (o structyre their arrangements to encourage refinancing by Burger King on a non-guaranteed basis prior to the
end of five years,
On 20 December 2002, 3 guarantors’ co-operation agreement was entered into by Diageo Enterprises, Diagceo Finance ple, Dizgeo ple
and Diageo Venwre Limited ("DVL™}, Under the terms of this co-operation agreement. DV, is liable for all amounts payable by any
guarantor under the terms of the Credit Facility Agreement and DVL i entitled to any payment received by anv gvarantor uader the
terms of the Credit Facility Agreament.

{3) At 30 June 2002, there were no contingent Habiiitdes or guarantees.

(6} There has been no material change in the indebtedness. capitslisation, contingent Habilities or guarantees nor the authersed and issued
share capital of Diagee Enterprises since 30 June 2002 except as disclosed in notes (2) w (4} above.

{7) Exchange rates ased in the fable above to translate balances at 3¢ June 2002 were £-— 5! = 068, € — 51 = 101 and CADS —$! =152




DIAGEO PLC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Introduction

Diageo ple (*Diageo”). a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, is one
of the world’s leading premium drinks business with a portfolio of international brands. Diageo plc was the
eleventh largest publicly owned company in the United Kingdom in terms of market capitalisation on 25 April
2003 with a market capitalisation of approximately £21.4 billien,

Diageo was formed by a merger of Grand Metropolitan PLC and Guinness PLC (the “Merger™) which was
announced on 12 May 1997. On 7 December 1997, the Merger became effective. as a result of which Grand
Metropolitan PLC became 4 wholly-owned subsidiary of Guinness PLC, and Guinness PLC was renamed Diageo
plc.

Diageo’s strategy is to focus on its branded drinks businesses which has international potential. Diageo
considers its brands to be important to its operations and the focus of its business strategy is to strengthen and
increase international consumer appeal for its key brands. Diageo completed the disposal of its quick service
restaurants business on 13 December 2002 and the combination of the group’s packaged {ood business with
General Milis, Inc on 31 October 2001.

Business
Diageo’s principal businass activities are as follows:-

Prestiwm drinks. Diaged’s premium drinks business 15 the world’s leading branded premium spirits
business by volume, sales revenue and operating profit. Diageo also brews and markets beer and produces and
setls wine, It produces and distributes a wide range of premium brands, including Smirnotf vodka, Jehnnie
Walker Scotch whiskies, Guinness stowi, Baileys Original Trish Cream liqueur, J&B Scotch whisky, Captain
Morgan rum and Tanqueray gin.

Diageo also has exclusive distribution rights for the Cuervo tequila brand in the United States unttl 2013
and, in additien, Diageo owns 34% of Moét Hennessy SA (“MoéEt Hennessy™). Moét Hennessy is based in
France and is a leading producer and exporter of champagne and cognac. Diageo and Mo#t Hennessy have
established a nuraber of joint distribution amrangements in the United States. Asia and France.

Generel Mills.  Dingeo owns an equity investment of 21% in General Mills. Tnc (“General Mills™)
comprising 79 million shares of common stock, following the disposal on 31 October 2001 of its worldwide
packaged food businesses to General Mills. General Mills is a leading food manufacturer and distributor of food
products operating primarily in the United States.

Recent developments

Sale of Burger King. On 13 December 2002, Diageo completed the disposition of Burger King
Corporaiion to the Burger King Acquisition Corporation, a newly formed company owned by Texas Pacific
Group. Bain Capital and Goldman Sachs Capital Partners. The disposition was made pursuant to an agreement
which amended and restated an earlier stock purchase agreement signed on 25 July 2002 between Diageo and
Burger King Acquisition Corporation. Diageo reccived approximately $1.2 billion in cash and a subordinated
debt instrument issued by the holding company then owning all of the capital stock of Burger King in a principal
amount of $212.3 million. The balance of the consideration was settied by the assuroption of net debt. estimated
by Diageo o be $86 million. Tn connection with the disposal, Diageo and certain of its wholly owned subsidiaries
agreed to guarantee a $750 million term loan and a $100 million revolving line of credit on behalf of Burger King
and its subsidiaries. These loans have a term of five years although Diageo and Burger King have agreed to
structure their arrangements to encourage refinancing by Burger King on a non-guaranteed basis prior to the end
of five vears.

As a division of Diageo, Burger King was 4 leading company in the worldwide quick service restaurant
industry and sold a range of hamburger, chicken and associated products. For the six months ended 31 December
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DIAGEO PLC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

2002, quick service restaurants contributed £479 million to turnover. £55 million to operating profit before
goodwill amortisation and cxceptional items and £53 million to operating profit.

Dor Julio joint venmre. On 7 March 2003, Diageo announced the creation of a 50/50 joint venture with
José Cuervo S.A. (“José Cuervo™) relating to the Don Julio and Tres Magueves tequilas. Under the terms of the
Joint venture, José Cuervo will acquire a 50% ownership interest in Tequila Don Julio. S.A. de CV. and its
affiliates from Diageo.

Legal proceedings

The Diageo group has extensive international operations and is 2 defendant in a number of legal proceedings
incidental 1o these operations. The group does not expect the outcome of such proceedings. either individually or
in the aggregate. to have a material effect on the group’s operations or financial position. Provision is made in the
consolidated financial statements for all liabilities which are expected 10 malterialise.

Directors

The directors of Diageo pk and their respective business occupations are:

Name Business occupation

Lord Blyth of Rowington Chairman, Non-executive director
Paui § Waish Chief Executive, Executive director
Nicholas C Rose Finance Director, Executive director
Rodney F Chase Non-exccutive director

Lord Hollick of Nowing Hill Noun-execulive director

Maria Lilja Non-executive director

John K QOates Non-executive director

William S Shanahan Non-excculive director

Paul A Walker Non-executive director

Sir Robert P Wilson Non-executive director

The business address of each of the directors above is at § Henrietta Place, Londor WG ONB.
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DIAGEO PLC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

The principal activities of the following directors performed by them ouside th
directorships or senior posts of the companies or institutions as set out below:

Name
Lord Bivth of Rowington

Paul Steven Walsh

Nicholas Charles Rose

Rodney Frank Chase

Lord Hollick of Notting Hil!

Mariz Lilja

Joihn Keith Qates
William Stephen Shanahan
Faul Ashton Walker

Sir Robert Peter Wilson

Company/Institution

Anixter Inc

Greenhill & Company

Centrica ple

Federal Express Corporation
General Mills. Inc

Mo#t Hennessy SNC

Scottish Power plc

Computer Sciences Corporation
Lehman Brothers

Tesco PLC

United Business Media pic
Institute of Public Policy Research
South Bank Centre

Bilia AB

Cell Network AB

Investment AB BURE

Intrum Justitia BV,

Poolia AB

Skandia AB

Coutss Bank, Mosaco
Colgate-Palmolive Company
The Sage Group pic

MyTravel Group pl¢

Ric Tinte ple

BG Group ple

The Economist Newspaper Lid.

e Diageo group are

At 31 March 2003, the aggregate interests of directors in the ordinary shares of Diageo ple including their
share options and conditional rights to acquire shares. was less than 1% of the total issued share capital of Diageo

plc.

The company secretary of Diageo ple is Susannc Margaret Bunn.

The registered office of Diageo ple is § Henrietta Piace, London W1G ONB.




DIAGEO PL.C AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
INDEBTEDNESS AND CAPITALISATION

31 December
2002
{unaudited)

£ miflion

Short term borrowings (inciuding current portion of long term borrowings) 3,521

Long term borrowings
Due from one to five vears
Due after five years

Minority interests (equity and non-equity)
Shareholders’ equity

Called up share capital

Share premium account

Revaluation reserve

Capital redemption reserve

Profit and loss account

Total indebtedness and capitalisation

Notes:

{1} Sinee 31 December 2002

2,848
615

3,463
535

wloup to and iacieding 30 Apnl 2003, 23 million ordinary shares have been purchased for immediate

cancetiation at 2 cost of £151 miftlion. On 30 April 2003, Disgeo received = fina! cash pavment of 3273 million (£173 million) from
General Mills Inc. under the terms of the October 2007 agreement for MHageo’s sale of Pillsbury.

(2; Ar 31 Degember 2003, €

due afier more thar one year were secured.

(3 AL 31 Doecember 2002
share option schames,

(4} At 31 December 2002, the toral authorised share capital of Diageo consisted of 5,329.052.300 ordinary shaves of 2

A5 million of the group’s net borrowings due within one year and £219 million of the group’s net borrowings

here were polential issues of approximately 3 milifon new erdinary shares outstanding under Diageo’s cmpiovee

tox pence each. At

such date, 3,143,761 236 ondinary shares were tssued and fully paid.

(3% In connection with the disposal of the quick service restavrants busingss, Diagee has guaranteed up to S830 million (£528 million) of
external borrowings of Burger King. These loans have a terme of five years zlthough Diageo and Burger King have agreed 1o structure
their arangements 1o encosrage refinancing by Burger King on a pon-guaranteed basis prior o the end of fve years, At 30 June 2002, in
connection with the disposal of Pillsbury, Diageo has guarantead the debt of a third party to the amount of 3200 million {£132 miilion;
uatil 13 November 2009, Inciuding this guarantee. but net of the amount provided in the financial statsments. at 30 june 2002, tiie group
has given performunce guarantees and indemnities to third parties of £102 miliion. Apart from the items referred to above, there has been
no material chenge sinee 30 Jung 2002 in the proug’s continsent Hobilities amd guarantees.

(0} There has been no matwerial change in the capitalisation and indebtedness of the Disgeo group since 3t December 2002, except a5

disclosed in note (i) above.

£365 miliion.

3 At 31 December 2002 the group had cash at hank and louoid resources of £1.360 miilion and interest rate and forcign currency swaps of

Lh
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DIAGEO CAPITAL PLC

Independent auditors’ report

Reproduced below is the full text of the independent auditors’ report on the financial statements of Diageo
Capital plc in respect of the year ended 30 June 2002, The references to page numbers within this report relate o
the pages within those financial statements and not this document.

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Diageo Capital plc

We have audited the financial statements on pages 7 to 15",

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors” report and. as described on page 5, the financial
statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards. Our respousibilities. as
independent auditors, are established in the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing Practices Board and by our
profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, We also report to you if, in our opinion. the directors’
report is not consistent with the firancial statements, if the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we
have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. or if information specificd by law
regarding directors’ remuncration and transactions with the company is not disclosed.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis. of evidence relevant 10 the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adeqguately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other uregularity or error. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at
30 June 2002 and of its result for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1983,

KPMG Audit plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

& Salisbury Square
London EC4Y SBB
19 December 2002

' Pages 57 to 64 of the information Memorandum.

2 page 65 of the Infonmation Memorandum,




DIAGEQO CAPITAL PLC
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial information set out below on pages 57 to 64 does not constitute Diageo Capital ple’s statutory
accounts within the meaning ol Section 240 of the Companies Act. The information for the vears ended 30 June
2002 and 30 June 200] has been extracted, without material adjustment, from the audited financial statements of
Diageo Capital pic.

Profit and Loss Acconnt

Year ended Year ended
30 June 20 June
2002 2001
Notes £ million £ million
Net interest receivable 2 154.9 490.8
Other operating income / (expense) 4 2.1 (18.6)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1570 47272
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities ] {10y —
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 156.0 4722
Dividends (500.0) —
{Deficit)/profit for the vear transferred (from)/te reserves (344.0) 472.2

There are no recognised gains or losses other than the profit for the year and consequently a statement of
total recognised gains and losses has not been presented as purt of the tinancial stateruents.

There is no difference between the result for the year and the historical cost result for the year and
consequentiy no note of historical cost resuits has been presented as part of the financial statements.

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2002 2001

£ million £ million

Profit for the vear 136.0 472.2
Dividends (500.0) —
Net (decrease)increase in shareholders’ funds (344.0) 4722
Sharcholders” funds at beginning of the vear 595.2 123.0
Sharcholders” funds at end of the year 2512 595.2




DIAGEQ CAPITAL PLC
Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2002

30 June 30 June
2002 2001
Notes £ million £ million
Current assets
Debtors — due within one year 6 10,573.9 8.479.7
Cash 7 1.7 34
10.575.6 8.483.1
Creditors — due within one year
External borrowings 9 (2,031.0; {1,335.4)
Other creditors 11 (6.834.6) {4,392.2)
(8.863.6) (6.227.6)
Net current assets 1.,710.0 225355
Creditors — due after one vear
External borrowings 9 (1,458.8) (1.660.3)
231.2 595.2
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital — equity i2 0.1 0.
Profit and }oss account 13 251.1 595.1
251.2 5952

Notes to the Financial Statements
1.  Accounting policies
Busis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared uader the historical cost convention. and comply with applicable UK
accounting standards.

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Diageo ple and iz included in the consolidated financial
statements of Diageo ple, which are publicly available. Conseguently, the company has taken advantage of the
exemption from preparing a cash flow statement under the wrms of Financial Reporting Standard No 1 (Revised
1996). The company is also exernpt under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard No 8 from disclosing related
party transactions (but not balances) with entities that are pact of the Diageo plc group or investees of the
Diageo plc group.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of cxchange at the date of the transaction or. if
hedged forward, at the ratc of exchange under the related forward cwrvency contract. Assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies arc translated into sterling at the financial year end exchange rates, or if hedged forward, at the
rate of exchange under the related forward currency contract. Exchange gains and losses are taken to the profit
and loss account.
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Financial instrumenis

The compaay participates in the Diageo group’s interest rate managerent and uses interest rate swaps,
forward starting swaps, forward rate agreements and bought and sold options in the management of the interest
rate exposure arising on the Diageo group’s borrowings.

Instruments accounted for as hedges are structured so as to reduce the market risk associated with the
underlying transaction being hedged and are designated as a hedge at the inception of the contract. Hedge
accounting is applied to swaps and other hedging instruments with interest recognised on an accruals basis with
no adjustments made to reflect fluctoations in market values.

If the underiying transaction to a hedge ceascs 10 exist, the hedge is terminated and the profits and losscs on
termination are recognised in the profit and loss account immediately. If the hedge transaction is terminated the
profits and losses onr termination are held in the balance sheet and amortised over the life of the original
underlying transactions. Finance costs associated with the debt issuances are charged to the profit and ioss
account over the life of the issue.

Taxation

Taxation is calculsted based on the results for the year and takes into account deferred taxation. Full
provision is now made for ali material timing differences. Any potential deferred tax asset is recognised only
when, on the basis of all material evidence, 1t can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

2. Interest
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 lune
2002 2001
£ million £ million
Interest receivable
Loans to Diageo group undertakings 476.8 932.6
Other deposits and swaps 39.5 i17.6
536.3 1,030.2
Inrerest pavuble .
Loans from Diageo group ondertakings (108.2) (258.7)
Other loans and swaps (273.2) (300.7)
(381.4) (359.4)
Net interest receivable 154.9 490.8

3. Operations

During the financial period the company was engaged in treasury management for Diageo pic and its
subsidiary wndertakings. The business and geographical segments that it lont 10 are as disclosed in the
consolidated statutory accounts of Diageo ple. The company’s operations are based in the United Kingdom. It
raiscs the external funds it requires principaliy using the London and New York financial markets.
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4. Operating costs

The company has no employees.

Operating costs include a foreign exchange gain for the vear ended 30 June 2002 of £3.1 million (2001: loss
of £18.5 million}.

Fees in respect of services provided by the auditors were: statutory audit £37.500 (2001: £11.750); and other
non-audit work £391,000 (2001: nil).

5.  Taxation

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 Jure
2002 2001
£ million £ miilion
Factors affecting the current tax charge:
Profit before taxation 157.0 472.2
Corporation tax at 30% (47.13 (141.7)
Group retief received for nil consideration 47.1 141.7
Adjustment in respect of prior vear (1. —
Current tax charge (1.0 —
6. Debtors — due within one year
20 June 30 June
2002 2001
£ million £ million
Amounts owed by Diageo group undertakings 10.536.8 8.471.9
Corporation tax 1.4 23
Other debtors 15.7 54
10,573.9 83.479.7

7. Cash

£0.4 million of cash at bank represents group scheme balances and supports overdrafts of other Diageo
group undertakings (2001 — £3.4 million).

8. Fair values

The estimnated fair values of borrowings at 30 June 2002 are set out below. The fair values of quoted
borrowings are based on period end mid-market quoted prices. The fair values of other borrowings are estimated
by discounting the future cash flows 10 net present values using appropriate market rates prevailing at the year
end, These are based on fair values obtained from third partics.
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30 Junc 2002 30 June 2001
Net carrving  Estimated Net carrying  Estimated
amount  fair value amaount fair value
£ million £ million £ million £ million
Primary financial instruments:
Loans from Diageo group undertakings (6.790.5) (6.820.7) (4.868.6) (4,896.2)
External borrowings including overdrafts (3,489.8) (3,589.8) £2.993.7) (3.048.3)
Derivatives — interest rate centracts:
Interest rate swaps with Diageo group
undertakings:
— positive values 2.0 65.5 29 492
— negative values — — — —
Interest rate swaps with third parties:
— positive values 0.1 19 — 23
— negative values {(11.2y (7870 {0.3) {3.6)
Collars (4.0} (20.3) — {4.2)

Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are not recognised until the exposure that is being hedged
is itself recegnised. The table below shows the extent to which the group has unrecognised gains and losses on
financial instruments. and deferred gains and losses in respect of financial instruments and terminated financial
instruments used as hedges. at the beginning and end of the year.

Unrecognised

Gains Losses Total

£ million £ miilion £ million

On hedges at 30 June 2001 48.4 (12.5) 359

Arising in previous years recognised during 2002 33.6 (13.8) 218

On hedges at 30 June 2002 722 (90.7) {18.5)
Of which gains/{losses) expected to be recognised in:

= vear ending 30 Junc 2003 237 (29.6) (3.9

— vyear ending 30 June 2004 or later 46.5 (61.1) (14.6)

inherent in the instrument based on valvations at 30 June 2002. The volatile nature of the markets means that
values at any subsequent date could be significantly different from the values reported above.

9. Maturity of financial liabilities

30 June 2002 30 June 2001
Loans from Loans from
eroup Other group Other
undertakings  Overdrafis loans Totat  undertakings  Overdrafis [oans Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ milion £ million £ willion
Analysis by vear of
repayment;
After five years —_ — {231.8; 2318 —_ —— 2113 (2113
From two to five yeuars v —_ {3310y (3310 — — (10600 (1,060.0;
From one to two years —_ — (896.0) (896.0} —_ — (389.0; (389.G;
Due after more than one
vear —_— — (14588 (14585 — — (1.660.3)  (1,660.3:
Due withia one vear 6,790.55 1.0y (203007 (B,821L.%) 4.868.6) (0.4  (1.335.0)  6.204.0)
(6,790.3) (1.0y  (3.488.8) (10,280.3) 14.868.6) .4 (2.993.33 {7.864.3}
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Other loans comprise:

Guaranteed bond 2003
Guaranieed bond 2004
Guaranieed bond 20035
Commercial paper
Mediom term notes
Retail notes

MAGEO CAPITAL PLC

Currency

US dollar
US doilar
US doliar
US dollar

Various
US dotlar

Year end
interest rates
%

6.0

6.625

6.125
Various
Various
Varicus

30 Junc 30 June
2002 2001

£ million £ million
(328.5) {353.6)
(656.7} (707.3)
(327.6) (352.7)
(1,600.6)  ¢1.150.3)
(537.6) {431.4)
(37.8) —
(3,488.8)  (2,995.3)

The interest rates shown above are contracied on the underlying borrowings before taking into account any

interest rate protection. The company has no committed bank facilities at 30 June 2002,

10. Interest rate risk management

At 30 June 2002, after taking account of interest rate swaps and ¢ross currency interest rate swaps and
forward agreements, the currency and interest rate profile of the financial Habilities and assets of the company

were as follows:

Financial Tiabilities:
US dollar

Euro

Sterling

Other

Financial assets:
US dollar

Euro

Sterling

Other

Net financial assets/(liabilities)

Floating
rate

Fixed
rate Total

£ million £ milion £ million

(36719 (2,
(473.8)

{3.359.2) {
(6.5}

140.3)  (5.812.2)
— (473.8)
628.6) (3,987.8)
— (6.3)

(7,511.4) (2,

768.9) {10.280.3)

32,7987 — 57987
473.1 — 473.1
42804 - 472804
6.3 — 6.3
10,558.5 — 10.558.5
3.047.1 {2,768.9}) 278.2
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DIAGEQ CAPITAL PLC

At 30 June 2001, after taking account of interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps and
forward agreements, the currency and interest rate profile of the financial liabilities and assets of the company
were as foliows:

Weighted
Weighted average
average  period for
Floating Fixed fixed  which rate
rate rate Total rate is fixed
£ milion £ million £ miilion % Years

Financial liabilities,
US doliar (925.9)  (1,950.9) {2.876.8) 6.6 39
Euro (423.5) — {423.5) — —_
Sterling (4,429.5) {1283y {43380 6.7 37
Other (6.0) — (6.0 —— —_
(5.784.9) (2.0794) (7.864.3) 6.6 3.9

Financial assets:

US dotlar 2.857.5 — 2.837.5 — —
Euro 4231 —_ 4231 — —
Sterling 51853 —— 31853 o —
Other 6.0 — 6.0 — —
8.471.9 — 84719 — —
Net financial assets/(liabilitias) 2,687.0 (2,079.4% 607.6 6.6 39

Financial liabiiities comprise bonds. medium term notes, commerctal papers and borrowings from Diageo
group undertzkings. Floating rate linancial Habilities comprise borrowings from Diageo group undertakings and
bear interest based on short term interbank rates {predominantly 6 month LIBOR). Financial assets comprisc
arnounts due rom Diageo group undertakings.

In addition to the interest rate and currency swaps reflected in the tables above, Diagee Capital ple has

£602 million notional principal US dollar interest rate collars which mature between 1 July 2003 and 1 Janoary
2006 and have floors of 3.05% — 5.44% and caps of 3.64% — 7.98%.

11. Other creditors — due within one vear

30 June 30 June

2002 2001

£ million £ million

Amounts owed o Diageo group undertakings 6.790.3 4.868.6
Other — 3.1
Accruais and deferred income 441 205

6.834.6 4.892.2

12. Share capital

30 June 30 June
2002 2001
£ milkon £ mullion
Authorised, issued and fully paid:
100,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 0.1 0.1
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13. Reserves

2002 2001
£ million £ million

Profir and loss account:

Balance brought forward 5951 122.9
{(Deficit)/profit for the year (344.00 472.2
Balance carried forward 251.1 595.1

i4. Ultimate parent undertaking

Diageo Capital plc is a wholly owned subsidiary of Diageo pic. a company incorporated and registered in
England. Its accounting period end is 30 June.

The consolidated financial staternents of Diageo ple for the vear ended 30 June 2002 can be obtained from
the Registered Office at 8 Henrietta Place, London W1G ONB.
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Directors’ Responsibilities

Reproduced below is the full text of the statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial
staternents of Diageo Capital plc for the vear ended 30 June 2002. The references o page numbers within this
statement relate to the pages within those financial staterments and not this document.

Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the preparation of financial statements
P B

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the independent auditor’s report set out
overleaf'”” is made with a view to distinguishing for sharcholders the respective responsibilities of the directors
and of the auditor in relation to the financial statements.

The directors are required by the Companies Act 1983 to prepare financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial vear and of the
result for the financial year.

The directors, in preparing the financial statements on pages 7 to 15, consider that the company has used
appropriate accounting policies. consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates, that all accountiag standards which they consider 0 be applicable have been followed, and that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statemnents on the going concern basis.

The directors have responsibility for ensuring that the company keeps accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy the firancial position of the company and which enable them 10 ensurce that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 1983,

The directors have general responsibiiity for taking such steps as are reasonably open 1o them to safeguard
the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

U Puge 56 of the Information Memorandum,

@ Pages 57 to 64 of the Information Memorandum.




DIAGEQ FINANCE PLC

Independent auditors’ report

Reproduced below is the full text of the independent auditors’ report on the financial statements of Diageo
Finance plc in respect of the vear ended 30 June 2002. The references to page numbers within this report relate to
the pages within those financial statements and not this document,

Independent anditors’ report to the members of Diageo Finance ple

‘We have audited the financial statements on pages 6 to 19,

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and. as deseribed on page 4, the financial
statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards. Qur responsibilities. as
independent auditors, are established in the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing Practices Board and by our
profession’s cthical guidance.

We report 1o you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1983, We also repoert to you if, in our opinion. the directors’
report 1S not consistent with the financial statements, if the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we
have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit. or if information specified by law
regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions with the company is not disclosed.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board, An
audit includes examination. on a test basis. of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
staterments. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s
circumstances, consistently applicd and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit =0 as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstaternent. whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at
30 June 2002 and of its profit for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985,

KPMG Audit Pl
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

8 Salisbury Square
London EC4Y 8BB
19 December 2002

i

Pages 67 w 78§ of the Information Memorandum.

¥ Page 79 of the Information Memorandum.
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DIAGEO FINANCE PLC

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial information set out below on pages 67 to 78 does not constitute Diageo Finance plc’s statutory
accounts within the meaning of Section 240 of the Companies Act. The information for the years ended 30 June
2002 and 30 Fune 2001 has been extracted, without material adjustment. from the andited financial statements of

Diageo Finance ple.

Profit and Less Account

Net interest receivable
Oiher operating income
Operating costs

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation
Non-equity dividends

Profit for the vear transferred to reserves

Year ended  Year ended

30 June 30 June

2002 2001

Noies £ million £ million
2 371.2 375.5
16.7 —
4 4.0 (11.4)
383.8 364.1
3 7.2 (3.4)
391.0 360.7
6 — {166.3)
14 391.0 194 4

There are no recognised gains or losses other than the above profit for the vear and consequenty 2 statement
of total recognised gains and losses has not been presented as part of the financial statements.

There is no difference between the profit for the year and the historical cost profit for the year and
consequently no noic of historical cost profits has been presented as part of the financial statements.

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

Profit tor the year

Non-equity dividends

Net inercase in shareholders” funds
Shareholders™ funds at beginning of the year
Sharchelders” funds al end of the vear

Year ended  Year ended

30 June 30 June

2002 2001

£ million £ million

391.0 360.7
6 — (166.3)
391.0 194 .4

4,2203 4.034.9

4.620.3 42293
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Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2002

30 June 30 June
2002 2001
Notes £ million £ million
Current assets
Debtors — due within one vear 7 35.993.3 24,157.7
Debtors — due after one year 7 4,195.0 45222
Investments 8 3.1 144.6
Cash at bank 9 79.7 39.0
40,2711 28,8635
Creditors ~— duc within one ycar .
Extemnal borrowings 10 (130.9 (317.71
Qther creditors 12 (30,1319} (18,6921
(30.262.8) (19,010.4)
Net current assets 10,008.3 9.853.1
Creditors — due after one year
External borrowings 10 (199.6) (201.6)
Other creditors i2 {5,188.4) (5.422.2)
(5.388.0) {5,623.8)
4,620.3 4.229.3
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital — cquity i3 3,660.0 655.0
Calied up share capital — non-equity 12 — 3.005.0
3,660.0 3,660.0
Profit and loss account 14 960.3 569.3
4,620.3 42293

Notes to the Financial Statements
1. Accounting policies
Basis of prepurarion

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and comply with applicable
UK accounting standards.

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Diageo plc and is included in the consolidated financial
statements of Diageo ple which are publicly available. Consequently. the company has taken advantage of the
exerption from preparing a cash flow statement under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard No 1 (Revised
1996). The company is also exempt under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard No 8 from disclosing related
party transactions (but not balances) with entities that are part of the Diageo plc group or investees of the Diageo
plc group.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in forcign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction or, if
hedged forward, at the rate of exchange under the related forward currency contract. Assets and liabilities in
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foretgn currencies are translated into sterling at the financial year end exchange rates, or if hedged forward, at the
rate of exchange under the related forward currency contract. Exchange gains and losses for transactions are
taken to the profit and loss account.

Financial instrumenis

The company participates in the Diageo group’s hedging of foreign exchange exposures arising on Diageo
group’s transaction costs and the translation of the results and underlying net assets of Diageo group’s foreign
subsidiaries by using forward contracts, currency swaps, Cross currency interest rate swaps and corrency options
in this respect.

Foreign exchange contracts and options used for managing transactional and translational exposure are
generally matched with offsetting positions with other Diageo group vndertakings. Foreign exchange gains or
losses resulting from any unmatched residual positions are taken to the profit and loss account.

Foreign exchange options used o protect against the tramslation of profits of Diageo group forcign
subsidiaries are recognised in the underlying hedging periods.

The company participates in the Diageo group’s interest rafe management and uses interest raic swaps,
forward starting swaps. forward rate agreements and bought and sold options in the management of the interest
rate exposure arising on the Diageo group’s borrowings.

Instruments accounted for as hedges are structured so as to reduce the market nisk associated with the
underlying transaction being hedged and are designated as a hedge at the inception of the coniract. Hedge
dceounting 1s appiied to swaps and other hedging instruments with interest recognised on an accruals basis with
no adjustments made to reflect fluctuations in market valves.

If the underiving transaction to a hedge ceases to exist. the hedge 1¢ terminated and the profits and josses on
termination are recognised in the profit and loss account immediately. If the hedge transaction is terminated. the
profits and losses on termination are held in the balance sheet and amortised over the life of the original
underlying transactions. Finance costs assoclated with the debt issuances are charged ro the profit and loss
account over the life of the issue.

Current asser investments

Current assel investments are stated at cost plus. where appropriate, accrued interest.

Taxation

Taxation is calculated based on the results for the year and takes into account deferred taxation. Full
provision is now made for all material timing differences. Any potential deferred tax asset is recognised only
when, on the basis of all material evidence. it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.
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2. Interest

Interest receivable

Loans to Diageo group undertakings
Income from swaps

Other deposits

Option premia

Interest pavable

Bank loans and overdrafis

Loans from Diageo group undertakings
Other loans

Option premia

Net interest receivable

3. Operations

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2002 2001
£ million £ million
1,552.7 2,116.5
121.6 38.3
18.5 9.7
1.0 —
1.693.8 2,164.3
{6.4) (153.0%
(1.283.00 (1,736.5)
(33.2) (37.2)
— (0.3)
(1.322.6) (1,789.0)
371.2 375.5

During the linancial year the compuny was engaged in treasury management for Diageo pic and its
subsidiary undertakings. The company’s operations are based in the United Kingdom. It raises the external funds
it requires principally vsing the London financial mackets.

4. Operating costs

The company has no employees. Fees in respect of services provided by the auditors were: statutory audit
£15.600 (2001: £21.779); and other non-audit work £10,500 (2001: £15,809).

5. Taxation

Factors affecting the current tax charge:
Profit before taxation

Corporation tax at 30%

Group relief received for nil consideration
Adjustment in respect of prior year

Current tax charge

Year ended

Year ended

30 June 30 June
2002 2001

£ mition £ million
383.8 364.7
(115.1} (109.4
115.1 109.4
7.2 (3.4
7.2 (3.4
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6. Dividends

Non-equity:

3.8% ‘E’ cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 each
5.0% 'F° cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 each

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2002 2001

£ million £ million
— (116.3)
— (50.0)

— (166.3)

On 25 July 2001, the ‘E’ and "F’ cumulative preference shares were converted into a total of

60.100,000,000 ordinary shares of 5p each.

7.  Debtors

Amounts owed by Diageo group undertakings
Corporation tax
Other debiors

8.  Investments

Term deposits

9. Cash at bank

30 June 2002 30 June 2001

Due within @ Due after  Due within Due after
onec year  one year one year  one year
£ million £ million £ million £ million
35.805.5 4,195.0 24,034.8 4,5222
15.3 e 14.0 —
1723 e 108.9 —
359933 4.195.0 24 1577 45222
30 June 30 June

2002 2001

£ million £ million

31 144.6

£66.1 million of cash at bank represents group scheme balances and supports overdrafts of other Diageo

group undertakings (2001 £7.6 million).
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10. Borrowings, facilities and financial liabilities

Financial instruments comprise net borrowings, including borrowings from Diageo group undertakings,
together with other instruments deemed to be financial instruments under FRS 12 including long term debtors and
other long term creditors. Disclosures dealt with in this note exclude short term debtors and creditors where
permitted by FRS 13, but include short term borrowings to and from Diageo group undertakings.

(i)  External borrowings:

Year end 30 June 30 June

interest rates 2002 2001

Currency % £ million £ million

Guaranteed bond 2005 Sterling 9 199.6 199.5
Bank !oans and other Various Various 1.3 4.6
Bank overdrafts Various Various 129.6 315.2
3305 519.3

The interest rates shown in the table above are those contracted on the underlying borrowings before taking
into accourt any interest rate protection. The above loans are stated net of unamortised finance costs of
£1.0 million (2001 — £0.8 million). Nene of the borrowings are secured on assets of the Diageo group.

(ir) Maturity of financial linbilities

30 Junce 2002 30 June 2001

Bank loans Bomowings Bank loans Bemowings

and Other  from group and Other  from group
ovardrafts loans  undertakings Total  overdrafts loans  undertakings Total
£ million £ mitlion £ million £ million £ million £ mitlion £ million £ million

Analvsis By yvear of repaymeni

From two (o five vears — 199.6 — 195.6 — 199.5 4.5222 47217
From ong o two years —_ — 5,1884 51884 21 — 0.0 %021
Due after one vear — 199.6 51884 538380 2! 19%.5 34222 56238
Due within one vear 1309 —_ 300598 30,1907 317 —_— 18,6186 159303
130.9 199.6 35,2482 35,5787 3198 i99.5 24.040.8  24.5060.1

Financial liabilities are net of interest rate andt foreign cummency swaps.
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After taking account of interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps and forward agreements,
the currency and interest rate profile of the financial liabilities and assets of the company was as follows:

At 30 June 2002

Impact of Weighted
foreign Weighted  average
Floating Fixed currency average time to
rate rate swaps Total fixed rate  maturity
£ million £ million £ mllion £ million % Years
Financial liabilities:

US dollar (7,302.0) (2,565.8) {10.7y  (9,938.5) 10.6 1.4
Euro (1.671.0y  (587.7) (767.8) (3,026.5) 48 22
Sterling (22,646.13  (349.6) 10335 (22,162.2) 7.9 0.7
Other (196.3} — (212.4) (408.9) — —
(31.875.6) (3.703.1) 42,6 (35.536.1) 9.3 1.4

Financial assets:
US dollar 99326 — —_ 9,932.6 - o
Euro 30579 — — 3.057.9 — —
Sterling 26.709.2 — — 267092 — —
Other 383.6 — — 3836 e —
400833 — — 40,0833 — —
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 82077 (3,703.D 42.6 45472 9.3 1.4

At 30 June 2601
Impact of Weighted
foreign Weighted  average
Floating Fixed cwrency average time (o
Tie fate SWaps Total fixed rate  maturity
£ million £ million £ million £ million % Years

Financial lisbilities:

US doliar (4,455.8) (2,572.3) (8.2) {7.036.3} 9.5 —
Euro {7584y {328.8) (7413 (2,028.5) 43 3.1
Sterling (15,109.7)  (1.024.5) 969.6  (15.164.6) 72 1.9
Other (1123 — (203.8) (316.3) — —
(20,436.4) (4,125.6) 163 (24,3457 83 09

Financial assets:
VS doltar 7.017.3 e —_ 7.017.5 — —
Euro 2,0332 — — 2,033.2 — —
Sterling 193716 — — 19,3716 — —
Other 318.3 — — 3183 — —
28.740.6 — — 28,7406 — —
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 83042 {4.123.6) 16.3 4,194.9 8.3 0.9
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Interest bearing financial liabilities comprise bonds, medium term notes. money market loans and bank
overdrafts. Floating rate financial Labilitics include borrowings from Diageo group undertakings and bear interest
based on short term interbank rates (predomivantly 6 month LIBOR). Financial assets comprise cash, term
deposits and amounts due from Diageo group undertakings.

The company had availablc undrawn committed bank facilities with third partics at 30 June 2002 as follows:

£ million
Expiring in one year or less 1,250.0
Expiring in more than two years 855.3

21053

Commitment fees are paid on the undrawn portion of these facilities. Borrowings under these facilities will
be at prevailing LIBOR rates plus an agreed margin, which is dependent on the period of the drawdown. These
facilitics can be used for general corporate purposes and together with cash and cash equivalents support Diageo
group’s commercial paper programme.

A large number of major international financial institutions are counterparties to the interest rate swaps,
forward exchange contracts and deposits. The company continually monitors its positions and the credit ratings of
its counterparties and, by policy, limits the amouint of agreements or contracts it enters into with any one party.

11. Disclosure relating to derivative financial instriaments
{ij Fuair values

The estimated fair valucs of borrowings and associated derivative financial instruments at 30 June 2002 are
set out below. The fair values of quoted borrowings are based on period end mid-market guoted prices. The fair
values of other bommowings and derivative financial instruments are estimated by discounting the future cash flows
o net present values using appropriate market rates prevailing at the vear end. These are based on fair values
obtained from third parties.
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Primary financial instruments:
External borrowings due within one year including overdratts
External borrowings doe after one vear

Borrowings from Diageo group undertakings due within
ong year

Borrowings from Diageo group undertakings due after one vear
Cash at bank aad investments
Derivatives — interest rate coniracts:
Interest Tate swaps with Diageo group undertakings

— positive values

— negative values
Interest rate swaps with third parties:

— positive values

- nsgative values
Other interest rate contracts
Derivatives — foreign exchange contracts:
Transaction - posiuve valugs

— nagative values
Balance sheet translation - positive values

- pegative values
Foreign exchange options (profit translation)

~ posirive values

~ negative values

30 lune 30 June
2002 2002

Net carrving  Estimated
amount  fair value

£ milliecn £ million

(130.9) {(130.9)
(199.6) (218.9)

(29,8374.7y  (29.882.2)
{5,188.4) (5,188.4)

82.8 32.8
0.1 —
22 (69.6)
71.0 178.4
(1.9 (8.9)
(2.6) _
_ 136.4
— (137.1)
96.1 98.0
(4.5 (64.5)
— 18.2
— (6.3}

20 hune
2001

Net carrying
amount

£ miliion

(31771
(201.6)

(i8,617.8)

(3.422.2)
183.6

0.1
(2.8
36.0

(L)

(1.6}

9.6

30 June
2001
Estimated
fair vaine
£ million

(3.7
(220.1)

(18,626.2)
(5,422.2)
1836

0.8
(48.4)

110.8
{6.1)

102.6
{99.6)
34.1
(37

16.8
(33.6

The difference between net carrving amount and estimated fair vatue reflects the unrealised gains or losses
inherent in the instrument based on valuations at 30 June 2002, The volatile pature of the markets means that
values at any subscquent date could be significantly different from the values reported above.

{ii) Hedges

Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are not recognised until the exposure that is being hedged
is itself recognised. The table below shows the extent to which the company has recognised the gains and losses
on financial instruments, and deferred gains and losses in respect of financial instruments and terminated financial
instruments used as hedges. at the beginning and end of the year.




Gains and losses:

On hedges at 1 July 2001

Arising in previous years
recognised in vear ended
30 June 2002

At 30 June 2002

Of which gains and losses
expecied to be recognised in the
vear ending 30 June 2003

{ifi} Option cylinders

DIAGEO FINANCE PLC

Unrecognised Deferred

Gains Losses Total Gains Losses Total

£ million £ milion £ million £ million £ million £ million
187.8 {189.0) (1.2} 0.2 (1.0 (0.8}
190.4 (171.1 193 0.1 0.4 (0.3
265.6 {218.6) 47.0 0.1 0.9 (0.8)
1614 (126.10 353 —_ {0.4) (0.4}

As at 30 June 2002. currency cylinders forwards and options protect the tanslation of estimated overseas
profits for the vear ending 30 June 2003 within the following weighted averaged ranges:

US doilar — cyiinders
- forwards

Euro — cylinders
— options

12. Other creditors

Amounts owed (o Diageo group undertakings

Accreals and deferred income

30 June 2002 30 June 2001

Hedged Weighted Hedged Weighted
amount average range amount average range
£ million {against £) £ million (against £}
— — 713 144 — 149

214 1.41 121 1.43

38 1.52 — 1.64 233 1.56 — 1.04

250 1.56 i08 1.73

30 June 2002

320 June 2001

Due within  Due after  Due within Due after
one year one vear one year  one year
£ miliion £ million £ million £-million
30,059.8 5,188.4 18.6158.6 5422.2

72.1 — 74.1 -—
20,131.9 5,188.4 18.692.7 5,422.2
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13. Share capital

30 June 30 June
2002 2001
£ million £ million
Aurhorised:
Equity
Brought forward from 2001: 13,100,000,000 ordinary shares of 5p each 655.0 635.0
Converted preference shares: 61.200,000,000 ordinary shares of 5p each 3.060.0 —
37150 655.0
Non-equity
2,005,000,000 5.8% ‘E’ cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 cach — 2,005.0
1.055,000,000 5.0% °F’ cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 each — 1.055.0
1.950.000.000 unclassified shares of £1 each 1.950.0 1,930.0
3,663.0 5,665.0
Allotred, called up and fully paid:
Equity
Brought forward from 2001: 13,100.000,000 ordinary shares of 5p cach 633.0 655.0
Converted preference shares: 60,100,000,000 ordinary shares of 5p each 3,005.0 —
3.660.0 635.0
Non-equity
2.003.000.000 5.8% 'E’ cumulative redecmable preference shares of £1 each — 2.005.0
1,000,000,000 5.0% °‘F’ cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 each — 1,000.0
3,660.0 3,660.0

On 25 July 2001, the ‘E’ and ‘F" cumulative redeemable preference shares were converted into a total of

60, 100,000,000 ordinary shares of 3p each.

Ordinary shares are entitled to one vote cach.

14. Reconciliation of movenients in reserves

2002

£ million

Profir and loss account:

2001
£ million

Balance brought forward 3693 3749
Retained profit for the year 291.0 194.4
Balance carried forward 960.3 369.3

15. Contingent liabilities

Diageo Finance plc enters into various forward dated transactions to manage the Diageo group’s interest and

exchange rate exposures.
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16. Post balance sheet event

On 13 December 2002 the company entered into a 5 vear US$850.000.000 credit facility agreement.
following the sale of the Burger King Corporation by the Diageo group. Under the terms of this agrecment the
company, together with other group companies, on a joint and several basis has guaraneed in full, i.e.uptoa
maximum of US$850,000,000, the payraent obligations of the Burger King Corporation and its subsidiaries to the
original lending financial institutions.

17. Related party transaction

In connection with PS Walsh’s (Chief Executive Officer, Diageo plc. ultimate parent undertaking) relocation
from the United States to the United Kingdom, Diageo Finance plc has entered into three forward foreign
currency transactions with him to buy an aggregate of USS3.5 million for £2.33 million. One transaction for
US$0.5 miilion was outstanding at 30 June 2002. These transactions were hedged with a third party or identical
terms and involved no cost to the company.

18. Ultimate parent undertaking

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Diageo ple. Diageo ple is incorperated and registered in
Eugland and has an accounting year end of 30 June.

The consolidated financial statements of Diageo ple for the vear ended 30 June 2002 can be obtained from
the Registered Office at § Henrietta Place, London W1G ONB.

8




DIAGEO FINANCE PLC

Directors’ Responsibilities

Reproduced below is the full text of the statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements of Diageo Finance plc for the vear ended 30 Junc 2002. The references to page numbers within this
report relate 1o the pages within those financial statements and not this document.

Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the preparation of financial statements

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the independent auditors’ repert set out
overleaf'”, is made with a view fo distinguishing for sharcholders the respective responsibilitics of the directors
and of the auditors in relation to the financial statements.

The directors are required by the Companies Act 1985 to prepare financial statements tor each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit or less of the company for the financial year.

The directors, in preparing the financial statements on pages 6 to 19, consider that the company has used
appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates, and that accounting standards they consider to be applicable have been followed, and thart it is
appropriale to prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis.

The directors have responsibility for ensuring that the company keeps accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the company and which enable them to ensurce that the financial
statements comply with the Companics Act 1985.

The directors have general responsibility for taking such steps that are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

' Pags &6 of the Information Mamorandum.

2 Pages 67 to 78 of the Information Memorandum.
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Auditors' Report

Reproduced betow is the full text of the anditors’ report on the financial statements of Diageo Enterprises in
respect of the year ended 30 June 2002. The references to page numbers within this report relate to the pages
within those financial statements and not this document.

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Diageo Enterprises

3

We have audited the financial statements on pages § to 237,

Respective responsibilities of directors and independent auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and, as described on page 5, the financial
statements in accordance with applicable Irish law and accounting standards. Our responsibilities, as independent
auditors. are established in Ireland by statute, the Aoditing Practices Board and by our profession’s ethical
guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts. As also required by the Acts, we state whether we have
obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit, whether the financial statements agree
with the books of account and report to you our opinion as to whether

» the company has kept preper books of account;
* the directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements;

» at the balance sheet date a financial situation existed that may require the company to hold an
extraordinary general meeting. on the grounds that the net assets of the company, as shown in the financial
statements, are less than half of its share capital,

We also report to you if, in our opinion. mformation specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and
transactions with the company is not disclosed.

Basis of andit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards isswed by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination. on a test basis, of evidence relevant 1o the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial staternents, awd of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order 10 provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonabie assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In foriming
our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our epinion. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the company as
at 30 June 2002 and of its profit for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companics Acts. 1963 to 2001. and all Regulations to be construed as one with those Acts.

) Pages 82 w 90 of the Infornaton Memorandum.

b Page 91 of the Information Memoranduin.
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We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our
audit. In our opinion. proper books of account have been kept by the company. The financial statements are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion. the information contained in the directors’ report on pages 2 10 4 is consistent with the
financial statements.

The net assets of the company. as stated in the balance sheet on page 11, are more than half of the amount
of its called up share capital and, in our opinion, on that basis, there did not exist at 30 June 2002 a financial
sitwation which, under Section 40(1) of the Companies {Amendment) Act, 1983 would require the convening of
an extraordinary general meeting of the company.

KPMG
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditors

5 George’s Dock
IFSC

Dublin 1. Ircland
12 December 2002

% Page 83 of the Information Memaorandum.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial information set out below on pages 82 1o 90 does not constitute Diageo Enterprises’ statutory
accounts within the meaning of Section 240 of the Companies Act. The information for the years ended 30 June
2002 and 30 June 2001 has been extracted, without material adjustment, fror the audited financial statements of
Diageo Enterprises.

Profit and Loss Account

Year ended  Year ended

30 June 30 June

2002 2001

Notes $ miliion 3 miliion
{nterest pavable 2 (25.00 {(17.0)
[ncome — continuing operations 3 30.7 119.1
Administrative expenses 4 (1.5} (0.8)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 24.2 101.3
Taxarion on profit on ordinary activities 3 20N (3.7)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 21.5 97.6
Dividends 6 — (146.5)
Profit for the fimancial year 215 1489
Profit and loss account at beginning of the year 0.9 35.9
Transfer from share capital arising from foreign exchange movement (0.5} (0.1
Profit and loss account at the end of the year 319 10.9

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

There were no recognised gatns or Josses other than those reflected in the above profit and loss account.

Note of Historical Cast Profits and Leosses

There were no material differences between the results as disclosed in the profit and loss account for the
vears ended 30 June 2002 and 30 June 2001 and the resuits for those periods on an historical cost basis.

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

Year ended  Year ended

30 June 30 June
2002 2001
$ million $ million
Total recognised gains for the vear 215 976
Dividends — (146.5)
Issue of share capital — 979.8
Redemption of share capital (1,221.2) {%40.7)
Transfer from sharc capital arising from foreign exchange movement (0.5) 0.1}
Net increase in shargholders™ funds (1,200.2) (9.9}
Sharcholders’ funds at beginning of the year 1,550.4 1,560.3
Sharcholders” funds at end of the year 350.2 1,350.4
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Fixed assefs
Tangible assets
Finangial asseis

Current assets
Debtors — due within one year
Cagh at bank

Creditors — duc within one vear
Other creditors

Net current assets

Capital and reserves
Calied up share capital — eguity
Profit and loss account

1. Accounting policies

Basis of prepuration

DIAGEO ENTERPRISES

Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2002

Notes to the Financial Staterments

Notes

i0

30 June 30 June
2002 2001
$ million  $ million
0.7
953 995.0
95.5 9957
9234 1,262.4
0.1 0.2
9233 1,262.6
(668.8) {707.9)
254.7 554.7
350.2 1,550.4
3183 1,329.3
31.9 10.9
330.2 1.550.4

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principics under the
historical cost convention, and comply with financial reporting standards of the Accounting Standards Board, as
promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland.

Reporting currency

The financial statements are prepared in US dollars.

Income recognition

Interest income comprises interest on intra Diageo group loans and bank deposits and is recognised on an
accruals basis. Dividend income from subsidiary undertakings is recognised on a declared basis.

Foreign currency transiarion

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in cwrrencies other than US dollars are translated into
US doilars at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date (except to the extent that exchange gains or
losses have been hedged) and revenues, costs and non-monetary assets at the exchange rates ruling at the date of
transactions, Monetary asscts are monies held and amounts to be received in money; all other assets arc non-

monetary.
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Profits and losses arising from currency translations and on settlement of amounts receivable and pavable in
currencies other than US dollars are dealt with through the profit and loss account.

Since the company is a public unlimited company, where share capital is denominated in a currency other
than US dollars and to the extent that it is matched by net monetary assets in the same currency. a transfer is
made each period from er to the profit and loss account reserve in order to record the US dollar equivalent of the
foreign currency denominated share capital at the closing rate. Other share capital is translated into US dolars at
the rate ruling at the date of issue,

Unguoted investments

Unquoted investments are stated at cost less provision for any permanent diminution in value.

Loan advances

Loan advances included under current assets are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Taxation

Corporation tax is provided on taxable profits at rales relevant to the company’s activities.

Off balanee sheet transactions

The company uses derivatives, such as currency and interest rate swaps for hedging purposes. Dertvatives
entered into for hedging purposes are recognised in the financial statements in accordance with the accounting
treatrment of the underlying asset or lability,

2. [Interest pavable

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2002 2001

$ million $ million

On loans wholly repayable within five veacs 25.0 17.0

3. Income — continuing operations

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2002 2001

$ million $ million

Interest income 49.7 56.6
Dividend income 0.3 62.5
Other income 0.7 —
50.7 1191
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4. Administrative expenses
Year ended  Year ended

30 June 30 June

2002 2001

$ million $ million

Wages and salaries 0.3 0.3
Depreciation 0.2 02
Other administrative expenses 0.2 0.3
Exceptional item 0.8 —
1.5 0.8

The average number of people employed by the company during the yvear was 3 (2001 — 3).
Directors™ remuneration is bome by a group undertaking.

During the year the company moved offices from L.a Touche House. International Financial Services Centre
{(“IFSC™), Dublin 1 to Front Offices, Finance Building, St James’s Gate, Dublin §. The company had entered into
an operating lease on its building in the IFSC on which a premium of US$1.1 million was paid. The unamortised
portion of the lease premium USS$0.5 million has been written off in the current year. The company also incurred
USS0.3 million in reiation to rental costs up to the lease breakage date and reorganisation costs resulting from
this relocation of premises. The tax effect of these costs reduced the tax charge by US$0.1 million.

5. Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2002 2001

$ million $ million

Corporation wx charge for the vear 27 37

Tax is caiculated at a rate of 10% on profits for the year as the company gualifics for the International
Financial Services Centre licence tax rate of 10%.

Factors affecting current tax charge

The tax assessed for the period is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax. The differences are
explained below:

Year ended Year cnded

30 June 360 June

2002 2001

$ million § million

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 24.2 1013
Profit on ordinary activitics multiplied by 10% 24 10.1
Items not chargeable for tax purposes — (6.2)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 0.3 (0.2)
Current tax charge 27 3.7
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6. Dividends

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2002 2003
$ miilion $ miilion
Paid during the year on:
USD ordinary shares — 84.0
CAD ordinary shares — 3.8
DEM ordinary shares — 7.8
ESP ordinary shares — 12.9
GBP ordinary shares — 380
— 146.5
7. Financial assets
30 June 30 June
2002 2001
$ mitlion $ million
Unguoted investments in Diageo group companies:
At beginning of the vear 995.0 878.0
Foreign exchange translation differences - —
Share capital redemption in Diageo Enterprises Spain (6.0} (736.3}
Share capital redemption in Diageo Enterprises Germany (7.6} (89.7)
Share capital redemption in Diageo Enterprises Canada (0.5} (37.4)
Share capital (redemption)injection in Diageo Enterprises International (835.4) 980.4
At end of the year 95.5 995.0
8. Debtors — due within one year
30 June 30 June
2002 2001
$ million $ million
Amounts due from Diageo group undertakings 0.2 2.0
Loan advances to Diageo group undertakings 9232 1,260.4
9234 1,262.4
9. Other creditors — due within one vear
30 June 30 June
2002 2001
$ miltion $ million
Amounts due to Diageo group undertakings 0.1 11.5
Corporation tax 24 43
Commercial paper/medium term notes 666.0 692.0
Accruals 0.3 0.1
668.8 7079
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10. Share capital

Authorised: :
Ordinary shares of CADI1 each
Ordinary shares of DEM] each
Ordinary shares of IEP1 each
Ordinary shares of ESP1 each
Ordinary shares of GBP1 euch
Ordinary shares of USDI each
Ordinary shares of EUR1.27 each

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of CADI each
Ordinary shares of DEM1 each
Ordinarv shares of IEP] each
Ordinary shares of ESPI each
Ordinary shares of GBP1 each
Ordinary shares of USD1 each
Ordinary shares of EURL.27 cach

DIAGEO ENTERPRISES

30 June
2002
Number

60,000,600

2,000,000,000
2.000.000,000
10.000.000

2

71.344.590
209,850.000
13

30 Tune
2001
Number

60.000,000
350,000.000
30,000
250,600,000,000
2.000.000.000
2,000,000,000

800,000
17,500,000
30,000
1,183,441 383
695,344,590
544,850,000

Under the Articles of Association, the dircctors’ authorisation to allot relevant securitics as defined for the
purposes of Section 20 of the Companies (Amendment} Act, 1983 up 1o an amount of USD1,790,130,000,
GBP1,925.655.410. CADS9.999,998, EUR12,699,983 shall expire on 27 January 2004.

The company had issued share capital of CADE00,000 on 1 July 2001. On 235 October 2001 the company
redeemed ordinary share capital of CAD780,000 and on 23 November 2001 the company redeemed ordinary
share capital of CAD19,998 decreasing the issued share capital to 2 ordinary shares of CADI each.

The company had issued share capital of USD544,850,000 on 1 July 2001. On 12 Becember 2001 the

company redeemed ordinary share capital of USD300,000,000 and on 22 February 2002 the company redeemed
ordinary share capital of USD335,000,000 decreasing the issued share capital to 209.850.000 ordinary shures of

USD1 each.

The company had issued share capital of GBP695.344,590. During the year the company redeemed the

following shares:

5 Qclober 2001

12 October 2001
18 Ociober 2001
26 Ocrober 2001
31 Ociober 2001
12 December 2001
& May 2002

At 30 Junc 2002 the remaining tssued share capital is GBP7],344,590.

The company had issued share capital of DEM 17,500,000 on | July 2001. On 25 October 2001 the company
redeemed ordinary share capital of DEM16,800,000 and on 23 November 2001 the company redeemed ordinary
share capital of DEM699,998 decreasing the issued share capital 1o 2 ordinary shares of DEMI each.

The company had issucd share capital of ESPI,183,441.383 on 1 July 2001. On 10 July 2001 the company
redeemed ordinary share capital of ESP953,268,182, on 25 October 2001 the company redeemed ordinary share
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capital of ESP190,000,000 and on 23 November 2001 the company redeemed ordinary share capital of
ESP39,999.997 decreasing the issued share capital to 173,204 ordinary shares of ESP! ecach.

On 27 November 2001 the company increased its authorised share capital through the creation of
10.000.000 shares of EURL.27 each on the same day the company decreased its authorised share capital 1o
173,204 ordinary shares of ESPI each when 249.999.826,796 shares of ESP1 were cancelled and 2 ordinary
shares of DEM! cach when 349,999,998 shares of DEM1 each were cancelled.

On the same day, the company redeemed the 173,204 shares of ESP1 each, 2 ordinary shares of DEM1 each
and 30,000 shares of IEP] and issued 13 shares of EUR1.27 cach.

11. Tltimate parent undertaking
Diageo Enterprises is a wholly owned subsidiary of Diageo Holdings Nederland B.V., a company
incorperated in the Netherlands. Its ultimate holding company is Diageo ple, a company incorporated and

registered in England.

The consolidated financial statements of Diageo ple for the vear ended 30 June 2002 can be obtained from
the Registered Office at 8 Henrietta Place, London WIG ONB.

12. Subsidiary andertakings

Name Principal activity
Guinness United Distillers European Collections Limited
(100% contrelled) Inter group cash management
Diageo Enterprises Germany (100% controlled} Inter group lending
Diageo Enterprises Canada {100% controlied) Tnter group lending
Diageo Enterprises Spain (100% controlied) Inter group lending
Diageo Enterprises Tnternational (100% controlled) Inter group lending

The five companics are incorporated in the Republic of Ireland. The registered office of cach company is
La Touche House, Iaternational Financial Services Centre, Dublin 1.

The capital and reserves of the companies at 30 June 2002 and profit afier taxation for the vear then ending
are;

Capital and Profit/(loss)for

reserves financial year

GUD European Collections Limited GBP 323.663 GBP 17,958
Diageo Enterprises Germany EUR 2,011 EUR 129,642
Diageo Enterprises Canada CAD 116 CAD 1417
Diageo Enterprises Spain EUR 714 EUR (10,083
Diageo Enterprises Intermational GBP 87,807,000 GBP 14,766,600

13. Swap transactions

The company has entered into currency swap transactions o cover any loans not issued in its reporting
currency. The swaps are held with Diageo Finance ple (a wholly owned subsidiary of Diageo pic).
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Accrued

Hedged interest

Principal vajue hedged value

value GBP'000 GBP 000

CAD/USD CAD 68.500 45,054 5
SEK/USD SEK 159.736 11,213 10
MXN/USD MXN 140,000 14.374 28
70,641 43

i4. Post balance sheet events

On 30 Seplember 2002, the company purchased loans from Diageo Enterprises International. with a market
value of AUD35,000,000, EUR108,238,372 and CAD23.049.000 by means of a novation agreement.

On 13 December 2002, the company entered into a five year US$850.000.000 Credit Facility Apreement.
following the sale of the Burger King Corporation by the Diageo group. Under the terms of this Agreement, the
company together with Diageo plc, and Diageo Finance ple. on a joint and several basis would guarantee in fuil
i.e. up to a maximum of USS830.000.000 the payment obligations of Burger King and its subsidiaries to the
original lending financial institutions.

15. Related party transactions

The company is exempt under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard No & from disclosing related party
transaclions {but not balances} with eatities that are part of the Diageo ple group or investess of the Diageo ple
group.

16. Commitments

At 30 June 2002, the company had commitments under an operating lease payable dering the next twelve
months amounting to US30.3 miilion. Comunitments under this lease expire in 2004, although the company has a
break clause which it can exercise on 14 July 2003,

17. Pension scheme

The company has continued (0 account for pensions in accordance with the Accounting Standard SSAP 24
and the disclosures given in (4) are those required by that standard. The new accounting standard on pensions,
FRS 17 — Retirement Benefits. was issued in November 2001 but will not be fully applicable until 2005. The
transitienal disclosures required under the new standard, to the extent not given in (&) are set out in (b).

{(a) The company participates in a group defined benefit scheme operated by R&A Bailey & Co. The defined
benefit scheme is independently funded and the assets of which are vested in independent trustees for the
benefit of members and their dependants. The contributions are based on the advice of independent
professionally qualified actuaries on an annual basis.

The latest actuarial valuation of the scheme was at | October 1999 and used the Projected Unit Methed.
The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows:

« Rate of long term investment returmns will exceed the rate of pensionable salary increases by 5.5%

» Rate of long term investment returns will exceed the rate of post retirement pension increases by 3.3%

The actuarial report showed that at that date the market value of the scheme’s assets was €84.7 million
which was sufficient to cover 180% of the accrued liabilities. based on current earnings, and 124% of the
accrued liabilities allowing for expected future increases in carnings.
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The pension charge for the year amounted to US56,000 (2001 — US$15.000). The actuarial report is not
available for public inspection.

FRS 17 retirement benefits

The group operates a multi-emplover defined benefit scheme and the company is unable to identify its share
of the underlying assets and liabilities in the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. Because of this, as
permitted by FRS 17. the scheme will be accounted for by the company, when the accounting standard is
fully adopted. as if the scheme was a defined contribution scheme.

The valuations of the defined benefit scheme used for the purpose of FRS 17 disclosures have been based on
the most recent actuarial valuations as identified and updated by our independent actuaries to take account of
the requirements of FRS 17 in order to assess the liabilities as at 30 June 2002, Scheme assets are stated at
their market value at the balance sheet date.

The financial assumptions used to calculate the retirement benefit fabilities under FRS 17 were as follows:

2002 2001
Valuation tethod Projected unit Projected unit
Discount rate 6% 6%
Inflation rate 3% 3%
Increase t pension in payment 3% 3%
Salary increases 45% 4.3%

The market value of the assets in the pension scheme and the expected rate of return were:

Expected long Expected long

term rate of Value at term rate of  Value at

relurn at 30 Junc return at 30 June

30 June 2002 2002 30 June 2001 2001

% €000 7 €000

Equities 83 67.000 8.1 94.000
Other 3.3 200 3.6 3,200
Total market value of pension scheme assets 67,200 97,200
Present value of pension schemes liabilities {66.8300) (59.000)
Total net retirement benefit surplus 400 38.200
Related deferred iax liability (36) (4,775)
Total net retirement benefit surplus 350 33425

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the directors on 12 December 2002,
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Directors’ Responsibilities

Reproduced below is the full text of the statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements of Diageo Enterprises for the vear ended 30 June 2002.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial period which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss tor that period. In preparing those
financial statements. the directors are required to:

* select suitable accounting policics and then apply them consistently

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

company will continue in business,

The directors are responsible for keeping proper books of account which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the financial staicments
comply with the Companiss Acts, 1963 to 2001. and alt Regulations to be construed as one with those Acts. They
have general responsibitity for taking such steps as are rcasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

On behalf of the board

P. Kecley C. Coase
Director Director
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UNAUDITED INTERIM ANNOUNCEMENT

The following operating and financial review has been extracted, without material adjustments, from the
announcement. dated 20 February 2003. made by the Diageo group setting out its interim results for the six
month period ended 31 December 2002,

Explanatory notes

Unless otherwise stated., percentage movements given throughout this statement for volume. tamover. nat
salcs, marketing investment. contribution after marketing and operating profit arc organic movements (at level
exchange rates and after adjusting for acquisitions and disposals) for continuing operations. They are before
goodwill amortisation and exceptiova} itemns. Comparisons are with the equivalent period last year.

Volume has been measured on an cquivalent servings basis to nine litre cases of spirits. Equivalent cases are
calculated as tollows: beer in hectolitres is divided by 0.9, wine in nine litre cases is divided by 3, ready to drink
(RTD) in nine litre cases is divided by 10, An t:{;ui\'alem case rapresents approximately 272 servings. A serving
comprises 35ml of spirits; 165mi of wine; or 330ml of RTD or beer.

Net sales arc wrnover less excise duty.

The market data contained in this results announcement is taken from independent mdustry sources in the
markets in which Diageo operates.

This announcement includes names of Diageo’s products which constitule trademarks or trade names which
Diagee owns or which others own and licence te Diageo for its use.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
for the six months ended 31 December 2002

OPERATING REVIEW
Diageo

On a reported basis, tumover decreased by £1,050 million (16%) from £6.478 million in the six months
ended 31 December 2001 1o £5,428 million in the six months ended 31 December 2002, following the disposals
of Pillsbury ir October 2001 and Burger King in December 2002. For continuing operations, turnover increased
by £491 million (119%) from £4,458 million in the six months ended 31 December 2001 to £4.949 miilion in the
six months ended 31 December 2002. On an organic basis, tumover grew 4%. The Seagram spirits and wine
businesses, which were acquired on 21 December 2001, contributed £630 million to turnover during the period.

Reported operating profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items increased £7 million from
£1.236 million to £1,243 million. Reperted operating profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items,
for continuing operafions, increased by £221 million (23%) from £967 miilion to £1,188 million. On an organic
basis, operating profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items for continuing operations increased
6%. The Scagram spirits and wine businesses contributed £211 million to operating profit before goodwill
amortisation and exceptional items.

On a reported basis. marketing investment for continuing operations increased 21% from £554 million to
£668 miilion. Organicalty. marketing investment increased 13%.

Reported profic before goodwill amortisation. exceptional items, taxation and minority interests increased by
£67 miliion (3% from £1,228 million in the six months ended 31 December 2001 to £1.295 million in the six
months caded 31 December 2002, In Jocal currency terms this was an increase of 3%. The net interest charge
increased by £44 million (26%) from £170 million in the prior period to £214 milbon in the six months ended
31 December 2002.

Exceptional items before taxation were a charge of £1.500 million in the six months ended 31 December
2002, After goodwill amortisation and exceptional itemns, the result before taxation and minority interests
decreased by £31.483 million from a profit of £1,275 million to & loss of £208 million in the six months ended
31 Deceraber 2002, The result for the period decreased by £1.269 million from a £810 million profit to a loss of
£459 million.

Premium drinks

Reported sumover increased by £491 million (11%) from £4.458 million in the six months ended
31 December 2001 1o £4,949 million in the six months ended 31 December 2002, Reported operating profit
before goodwill amoertisation and exceptional ftems increased by £221 million (23%) from £967 million o
£1.188 million. On an organic basis, wrnover increased 4% and operating profit increased 6%.

Reported volume increased 13% as a result of the addition of 9.4 million equivalent cases from the Seagram
acquisition and organi¢c volume growth of 1%. Organic volurne growth in global priority brands was 4%, local
priority brands declined 3% and category management brands (all brands other than global priority brands and
local priority brands) declined 4%. Volume growth of the global prority brands excluding RTD was 34,
compared to 4% in the six months ended 31 December 2001. Overall, global priority brand voleme performance
reflects a more consistent performance across the brands than in prior periods. Johnnie Walker Black Label and
Red Label both grew volume. up 6% and 5% respectively. and J&B was the only brand on which volume
declined. Local priority brand volume was down 3%, reflecting 2 341,000 cquivalent case reduction of Dimple in
South Korea and the reduction in volume of Buchanan's in Venezuela as a result of economic conditions.
Excluding the impact of these, overall performance was in line with the same peried last year. Category
management brands remained in decline due 1o weaker volume of low value vodkas in North America, Spey
Roval in Thailand and Gilbey’s Gin in the Philippines.
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Reported net sales increased 11% from £3.341 mitlion to £3,723 million, driven by £518 million of net sales
from the Scagram acquisition, a 1% organic increase in volume and a 3% improvement in price and mix. On a
reported basis, RTD net sales increased 9% from £382 million to £416 million. Net sales of the global pricrity
brands excluding RTD increased 5%, in line with iast year.

Reported marketing mvestment increased 21% to £668 million and organic growth was 13%. Marketing
investment in the global priority brands grew 15% to £421 million, particularly behind Smirnoff Ice, Tanqueray
and Guinness. In many markets, particularly in North America, Great Britain and Ireland, share of voice in
marketing spend increased as Diageo continued to invest. even in difficult times, behind the drivers of future
growth. including pew product launches.

The acquisition of certain Scagram businesses, which isclude the brands Captain Morgan. Crown Royal,
Seagram’s 7, Scagram’s VO, Cacigue. Windsor Premier, Myers’s Rum and Sterling Vineyards. completed on
2] December 2001, During the six months ended 31 December 2002, volurne of these brands was 9.4 million
equivalent cases, net sales were £518 million and attributable operating profit was £211 million atter a charge of
approximately £18 million in respect of the cost of discontinuing Captain Morgan Gold which was launched in
May 2002.

Volume and net sales growth by brand classification

Eguivalent  Volume — Net sales

cases  growth growth
{miilions) % %
Smirnofl 12,6 6 13
Johnnie Walker 6.3 5 5
Guinacss 57 — 5
Baileys 4.0 12 14
J&B 35 (& (7)
Cuervo 2.0 —_ (1
Tangueray 1.0 2 3
Total global priority brands 35.1 4 7
Loca! priority brands 7.2 (3) (5
Category management brands 14.2 {4) —_
36.5 i 4
Acquisitions
Seagram brands 9.4
Total 63.9
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Muarket review

Volume growth
Major markets
North America
Great Britain
Irciand
Spain

Koy markets
Venture markets
Total

Net sales growth
Major markets
North America
Great Britain
Treland
Spain

Key markets
Venture markets
Total

Review by marker
Nortlr America

Volume up 1%
Turnover up 1%
Net sales up 1%
Marketing up 8%

Opcrating profit up 5%

Key drivers:
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Reported turnover was up 29% from £1,147 million to £1.476 million in the six months ended 31 December
2002. On an organic basis. this represented growth of 1%. Volume was up 1% and net sales also grew 1%. During
the period. organic operating profit growth was 3% and the Scagram spirits and wine businesses contributed
£154 million to the total reported operating profit of £413 million.

Diageo North America continued to make good progress on a number of strategic initiatives. The
ex-Seagram brands were successfully integrated into the business, providing Diageo with the critical mass
necessary to execute the Next Generation Growth initative. Diageo has now appointed new distribution partners
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committed to providing a sales force dedicated to Diageo brands in 26 staies. This represents over 70% of
Diageo’s volume in the United States.

The global priority brands continued to perform well, and volume grew 4% over the comparable peried with
strong performances from Smimnoff, up 4%. Johnnie Walker Black Label, up 9%, and Baileys. up 12%. Cuervo
and Tanqueray aiso showed volume improvements versus the compargble period with volume up 4% and 1%,
vespectively. The local priority brands dechined 4%, with Beaulieu Vineyard down 18%, and Gordon's Gin down
6%, offset by good volume growth in other local priority brands. Volume of category management brands
declined due to intense price competition at the iower price points of some categories. Diageo chose not to pursue
volume at the expense of value.

Marketing investment increased 8% over the same period last year, driven by investmant behind Smimoff
Ice, Cuervo and Tanqueray. In addition to the increased investment in marketing, Diageo North Amerjca was able
to generate efficiencies from the move to a single media buyer and the increased market presence provided by the
addition of the Seagram brands.

Smirnoff volume was up 4%. Excluding RTD, volurne was up 8%. driven by continued strong growth of the
Smimoff flavoured vodka range. Smirnoff Red grew its share of the domestic vodka segment. Smimoff Ice
volume and net sales declined 8% and 5%, respectively. This was due to increasing competition in the RTD
category following the entry of a number of new branded RTDs, partially offset by increases in on-premise
distribution through the introduction of new packaging formats. While the RTD category has continued to grow
and now represents nearly 5% of the sales value of the beer category, Smirnoff lce’s share has declined in the
period. Approximately 60,000 equivalent cases of Smimoff Ice Triple Black were shipped in the peried prior 10
its launch in January 2003,

Johonie Walker volume increased 1% and net sales grew 7% during the period. This favourable mix was
caused by volume growth of 9% in Johnaie Walker Black Label and volume decline of 5% in Johnnie Walker
Red Label. However, Johanie Walker Red Label increased its share of the premium scotch category and Johnnie
Walker Black Label grew its share of the deluxe scotch category.

Baileys volume grew 12% during the period with net sales up 16%. Marketing investment was down 2%,
although media impact doubled as more ctfective media planaing ied to a shift from local to national
programming.

While J&B volume declined 1% in the period, net sales were level and contribution from the brand increased
20% as marketing investment was reduced 42%.

Tangueray volume increased 1% and net sales grew 5%. Price increases were achieved in key states and
marketing investrnent grew 29% following the launch of the “Distinctive Since” campaign.

Cuervo volume grew 4%, whilst net sales grew 2% reflecting the price decrease as the agave shortage started
1o alleviate. Marketing investment grew 14% focused behind brand building initiatives.

Volume of Captain Morgan was up 21% and Crown Royal was up 19% against the six months ended
31 December 2001 when, under the previous owners, trade stocks were reduced. For both brands, depletions in
the United States were still strong, up 10% and 11% respectively. Captain Morgan and Crown Royal have grown
shares of the rum and Canadian whiskey categeries. respectively.

The performance of the wine brands was mixed in a difficult market. Beaulieu Vineyard volume declined
18% due 10 temporary disruption caused mainly by changes in the distributor networks and an increasingly price
competitive market. In contrast, however, volume of Sterling Vineyards was up 28% as it faced the competitive
market with a stronger brand profile. The brand benefited from the increased distribution which has resulted from
its integration into the Diageo portfolio and increased marketing investment.
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Great Britain

Voleme up 7%
Turnover up 10%

Net sales up 6%
Marketing up 19%
Operating profit up 12%

Key drivers:

*  Volume growth achieved across the business

*  (lobal priority brands volume up 10%

*  RTD proifitability adversely affecied by duty increase in April 2002

Volume growth was achieved across Diageo’s business in Great Brismin. Global priority brands were up
10%, local priority brands were up 1% and category management brands were up 46. Similacly. spirits volume
was up 8%, Guinness was up 1% and winc was up 16%. This strong performance was the result of the
comprehensive restructuring of the field sales force carried out in the last vear and through continued investment
behind proven marketing campaigns. Diageo’s sales team now visit 34,000 outlets, up from 23.000, and, as a
result. on-trade distribution gains were evident for many priority brands. Marketing investment grew 19%.
including £9 miilion spent behind new brand launches, and operating profit was up 12% to £144 million.

Volume growth in the RTD category has been adversely impacted by the increase in excise duty in April
2002. Diageo’s RTD volume in Great Britain grew 4%. Volume of Smimoff Ive grew 7% and it has continued to
ouiperform the category with market share now 26%. This performance has been driven by successful renovation
through Smirncff Black Ice. However, volume of Archers Aqua fell 19% in the period. Operating margins on
RTD were adversely impacted by the absorption of the excise duty increase through price discounting and by
increased competition.

Smirnoff Red volume was up 11% with net sates up 19% as a result of a 6% price increase implemented in
September 2002. Smirnofl Red held market share at 33% despite increased price competition in the vodka
category.

Baileys continued to deliver impressive volume growlh. up 35%. Brand building activity was focused on
driving more regular usage. The launch of Baileys Minis continued this focus. Baileys. which is the clear leader
in the cream ligueur category, increased s share of the total spirits market.

Guinness volume was up 1% despite a 1% decline in the overall beer category. The brand has reversed the
1% volume decline seen in the six months ended 31 December 2001.

Volume of Gorden's Gin was up 6%, benefiting from the new advertising campaign and packaging.
However, the performance of Gordon’s Edge, which has sold about 20,000 equivalent cases since its launch in
May 2002, has been disappointing.

Bell's volume grew 2%, supported by the Jools Holland advertising campaign and strong promotional
activity.

Diageo’s wine brands grew strongly in the period driven mainly by the performance of Blossom Hill. where
volume grew 10%. Blossom Hill Red is now the best selling wine in the off trade in Great Britain.

Ireland

Volume down 2%
Turnover level

Net sales up 2%
Marketing up 12%
Operating profit level
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Key drivers:

*  Beverage aleohol market impacted by slowing economy
*  Guinness volume down 3%

*  Baileys volume up 1%

*  RTD volume up 23%

in Ireland, turnover was slightly increased on a reported basis, from £518 million in the six months ended
31 December 2001 to £3522 million in the six months ended 31 December 2002, Qperating profit was up from
£86 million to £8% million. Cn an organic basis, both turnever and operating profit were level

Continued cconomic weakness in Ireland has led to a significant slowdown in consumer spending. As a
result, the long alcoholic drinks sector declined 3% after a number of years of modest growth. Over 75% of
Diageo’s business in Ircland is in this sector and hence the overall volume decline of 2% refleets these trends,
Strong volume performance in Baileys. up 11%, Smirnoff, up 3%, including Smirmoff Ice, up 12%. was offsct by
a 3% decline in the volume of beer brands. Guinness volume declined 3% but it held market share, stabilising its
position after a number of years of market share declines. Despite the voluine decline. operating profit was level
as a result of price increases broadly in line with inflation. Marketing investment grew 12%. driven by increased
spend on Guinness and the renovation of the RTD portfolio with the launch of Smirnoff Black Ice. Smimoff
Black Ice and Smirnoff Ice on Draught together now represent 25% of Smirnoff Iee volume in Treland.

Spein

Volume down 11%
Turnover down 6%
Net sales down 7%
Marketing up 10%
Operating profit down 15%

Key drivers:
*+  Spirits market impacted by slowing cconomy
*  Market share gains in scotch, premium scotch. cream Iiqueur and dark rum

Spain reported twmover of £244 million in the six months ended 31 December 2002, up 9% versus the
£224 million reported in the prior period. On an organic basis, volume, tumover and net sales declined 11%. 6%
and 7%, respectively. The comparison against the same period last year was impacted by the buy-in which
occurred last year ahead of the duty increase in January 2002: this was estimated to be worth 5 percentage points
of volume growth in that period.

Reported operating profit was up £1 million as a result of the inclusion of Cacique, an ex-Seagram brand.
bul operating profit was down 13% on an organic basis. Qrganic operating profi1 growth was constrained by
increased investment in marketing. up 10%. including the launch costs of J&B Twist.

The pace of growth in the premium drinks business in Spain has been adversely impacted by the slowing
economy and increasing inflation, particularly in the on-trade. The introduction of an 8% increase in excise duty
on spirits in Janoary 2002 also negatively impacted the growth of the spirits industry. Within this overall
enviromment, Diageo has made clear market share gains in the scoich, premium seotch, cream liqueur and dark
rum categoriss,

The economic environment has particularly affected the standard scotch whisky category, which accounts
for 30% of the total spirits market in Spain and which declined in the period. However, although volume of J&B
has been affected by this trend and declined 11%. its market share grew. In addition, the premium and malt
whisky category continues to grow and Diageo’s market share is now over 50%.

98




DIAGEO PL.C AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Dark rum is the tastest growing category in Spain, and Diageo, with approximately a 45% share of this
increasingly important category, is well placed to maximise this opportunity. Cacique and Pampere have both
achieved volume growth, up 47% and 3%, respectively, and Diageo gained share in the dark rum category.

Key markets

Volume down 2%
Turnover level

Net sales level
Marketing up 3%
Operating profit up 5%

Key drivers:

*  Global priority brand velume up 1%

*  Tmpact of ditficult economic situation in Latin America

«  Strong volume and profit growth in Africa and Global Duiy Free

Reported turnover in the six months ended 31 December 2002 was £1,163 millior, up 6% on the prior
period figure of £1.097 million. On an organic basis, turnover was level. Overall growth in key markats. with
operating profit up 5% to £317 million, was constrained by the economic siluation in Latin America and the
decision to change distributors in South Korea. However, several markets performed strongly including Africa
and Global Duty Free, During the period, the Seagram brands acquired by Diageo, including Windsor Premier in
South Korea and Cacique in Venczucla, contributed £141 million to turnover and £39 million to operating profit.

Volume was down 2%. whilst net sales were level versus the same period last year with price increases
achieved jn Africa, principally Nigera, and in Thailand on Johnnic Walker, Markeling investment grew 3%,
driven by increased spend behind Guinness in Africa and Johnnie Walker in France. South Korea and Thailand.

Global priority brands achicved volume growth of 1% and net sales growth of 5% during the period. Volume
of Guinness was up 7%. reflecting the continued growth in Africa. Volume of Johnnic Walker Red Label
increased 7% due to strong performance in Australia and a weak comparative period in Brazil, when distributor
de-stocking took place. Volume of Johnnie Walker Black Label was level, with growth in Taiwan offsct by the
decline in Venezuela. J&B volume dectined 9%, mainly due to the Portuguese marker where, consistent with
Diageo’s strategy of maintaining value, it was decided not to foliow the large price reductions taken by
competitors.

RTD volume was up 22%. New RTDs launched in the period included Archers Aqua and Sroirnoll Ice in
Austraila, Johnnic Walker ONE in Brazil and Smirnoff Ice in Taiwan.

Local priority brand volume fell 6%, impacted by the change of distribution for Dimple in South Korea
deseribed below and a 46% decline it velume of Buchanan’s in Venezuela. Category management brands fell
4%, mainly driven by declines in VAT 69 in Venezuela and Spev Royal in Thailand.

Africa. representing nearly 40% of the key markets’ volume, grew 5% in volume terms and 15% in net sales
terms over the prior period. Guinness. which accounts for approximately 24% of African volume. continued to
perform well with volume up 7% and net sales up 29%. The continued success of the Michael Power campaign
resulted in double-digit volume growth in Ghana, Kenya, Uganda and Cameroon. Volume in Nigeria, however,
was level following a price increase taken in July 2002 and a tightening of economic conditions.

Diageo confirmed its position as the leading premium drinks business in Australia as market share grew to
35% in the spirits category and 33% in the RTD category. Overall, volume growth was 20% and net sales
increased 15%. There was 25% volume growth in priority brands, excluding RTDs, with Baileys volume up 1%,
Smimoff up 29% and Johnnie Walker up 32%. All priority spirits brands gained market share, and Diageo’s RTD
products grew strongly with volume up 35%. Margins in RTD declined as a result of the costs associated with
new product taunches and the decision o reposition prices to a maximum 30% premium to standard beer.
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In South Korea. Windsor Premier continued to perform strongly in a growing category and volume grew
25%. Windsor 17 leads the super premium category. and the Windsor Premier brand holds around 25% of the
totai scotch category. The transter of the distribution of the Dimple brand to Diageo Korea was successfaily
completed on 31 December 2002. As anticipated. this change to the new route to market necessitated the run
down of stock held by the provious distributor. As a consequence, Diageo recorded no sales of Dimple in the
period, a decline of 341,000 equivalent cases against the prior period, and market share fell from 23% w0 10%. It
is expected that market share will be rebuilt aow that the brand has moved 1o Diageo Korea: in the same way as
the performance of Johnnie Walker, Baileys and Smimoff, which were transferred from the previous distributor in
April 2002, have improved in the period, albeit from a smaller base.

In Taiwan, the continued strong growth of Johnnie Walker Black Label in the premium sector, with volume
up 17%. was the key driver of overall volume growth of 9%. As part of Diageo’s strategy to build improved route
1o market the sales force in Taiwan was reorganised by region and style of outlet. The reorganisation included the
creation of a dedicated RTD sales team and Smimeff Ice was launched in December 2002, The outlook for
Taiwan is uncertain following negative publicity there for an advertisement produced in Great Britain for the
Smirnoff Tee Christmas campaign. Diageo is working with the Taiwanese authorities to resolve this.

In Thailand, Johnnie Walker Black Label. which accounts for nearly 60% of net sales, grew both volume and
market share as a result of continued successful advertising and stock building in the wrade ahead of a duty
increase, Net sales grew 21% despite a 1% fall in volume as & result of volume decline in Spey Royal

The trading performance in Latin America reflects the current economic environsment. Overall volume and
operating profit declined 17%, driven primarily by the £11 million decline in Venezuela. Diageo’s policy of
actively destocking to reduce credit risk has alse negatively impacted volume growth in the period, while
substantially mitigating exposure to risk. Diageo is the leading premium drinks business in the region and the
strategy in the current environmen! i to coatinue o make market share gains.

The worsening economic and political conditions in Venezuela. as evidenced by industrial action and the
curreacy devaluation, which led te price increases on some Diageo brands of over 40%. have resubted in volume
down 46%. net sales down 42% and operating profit down approximately 30%. However, Diageo continues to
lead the premium drinks rmarket there and market share has increased in both the off- and on-trade in a number of
important categories such as standard and secondary scotch.

Global Duty Free volume increased 11% against the comparable period last year which included the impact
of September 11. World events continue to negatively impact the overall level of travel and the duty free market
remains very compelitive. particufarly in Europe. However, mix improved and net sales grew faster than volume
as a result of the strong performance of the global priority brands, which grew volume 14%.

Venture markets

Volume up 6%
Turnover up 11%

Net sales up 153%
Marketing up 28%
Operating profit up 13%

Key drivers;

»  Continued strong volume performance of global priority brands. up 12%

»  Strong performance of spirits brands in the Caribbean, parts of Europe and Asia
= Smimoff Ice launched in Germany. the Nordics and in several Caribbean markets

Reported wrnover was £683 miilion in the six months ended 31 December 2002, up 9% from £627 million
in the prior period. Organic operating profit increased 13%. led by rop ling growth in the Caribbean, parts of
Europe and growth of the spints brands in Asia.

100




DIAGEQ PL.C AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Volume increased 6% during the period, reflecting strong volume growth in priority brands as a result of
well executed Christmas campaigns together with the impact of the recent launch of Smimoff Ice in Germany and
the Nordics. In addition. volume benefited modestly from some forward buying in the Netherlands ahead of duty
increases and in the Middle East in response to the threat of war in the region. These two factors are estimated to
have improved volume growth by 1 percentage point.

Net sales increased 15%, due predominantly to the favourable mix impact. Marketing investment grew 28%.
mainly due to increased spend in brand building activities on Johnnie Walker Black Label and Baileys and
investment behind the Smirnoff Ice launches.

Global priority brands. which account for more than half of the total volume, performed well, with volume
growth of 12% and net sales growth of 23%. The mix improvement was driven by the growth of RTD formats,
primarily Smimoff Tece. Volume growth ol Johnmie Walker Black and Detuxe Labels. up 18%, with strong
performances across a number of markets. also improved mix. Baileys continued its growth., with volume up 11%
aad net sales up 10%, again across the majority of markets. Guinness volume declined 6%. Consumers in
Indonesia and Singapore continued to move away from stout to lager. Volume of Red Stripe in Jamaica, the
venture markets’ only local priority brand, grew 5% and net sales grew 6% as a result of increased brand building
nvestment.

European markets had strong performances in Belgium, the Nordics and Germany. In Germany, volume of
Johnnic Walker Black and Red Labels continued to be impacted by consumer reaction to the inflationary impact
of the Euro inroduction. Smirnoff Ice has sold 226,000 equivalent cases in the period, following its launch in
February 2002. It is now the leading RTD preduct in Germany.

Performance in Norway during the six months licence suspension was in line with expectations and has
benefited from the overall market uplifi following the alcohol tax reduction of 13%, implemented on 1 January
2002. Overall, the Nordics delivered a good performance, with strong growth in Baileys and the successful taunch
of Smirnoff Ice.

Markets in the Caribbean and the Middle East performed strongly as a resuit of improved sales exceution
and strong brand equity. particularly in the Johaniec Walker portfolio, Smirnoff and Baileys.

In Asja. comtinued growth of the spirits brands. particularly Johnnic Walker Black and Deluxe Labels,
generated mix improvement. However, Guinness in Asia continued 10 prove challenging with volume down 13%.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Exchange rates

Exchange rate movements during the six month peried, including the effect of the currency option cylinders,
beneficially impacted profit before exceptionat items and taxation by £1 million. The adverse impact on group
trading profit was £7 million {operating profit £6 million and share of profits of associates £1 mitlion). offset by a
beneficial impact on the interest charge of £8 miilion.

Post employment plans for year ending 30 June 2003

Diageo continues o comply with the current UK accounting standard on pensions, SSAP 24. in its primary
financial statements. The charge at operating profit level in respect of defined benefit schemes in the current year
is expected to be approximately £4 million (2002 — a credit of £27 million for continuing operations).

FRS 17

Under FRS 17, Diageo’s net deficit before taxation, applying current equity market values (for example
FTSE 100 at 3,700) and discounting liabilities at bond rates as at 7 February 2003, for all significant defined
benefit plans (United Kingdom, Ireland and United States), would be approximately £1,400 milion. The adoption
of the accounting provisions of FRS 17 for the year ending 30 June 2004, would result in a net charge to profit
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before exceptional items and taxation of approximately £120 million, compared with a restated £40 miilion net
charge for the year ending 30 June 2003.

Associates

The group’s share of profits of associates before exceptional items was £266 million for the peried compared
with £162 million for the same period last year. The 21.4% equity interest in General Mills coniributed
£157 million (2001 — £46 million for the two months ended 31 December 2001).

Goodwill

Geodwill amortisation in the period was £3 million (2001 — £10 million) of which £2 million (2001 —
£8 million) was in respect of discontinued operations.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items in the six month period amounted to a net charge before taxation of £1,500 million
comprising integration and restructuring costs of £104 million, a share of associales cxceptional charges of
£15 million. losses on disposals of fixed assets of £3 illion and a loss on the sale of businesses of
£1.378 nullion.

In the six month period. £89 million was incarred in respect of the integration of the Seagram spirits and
wine busingsses, acquired in December 2001 (vear cnded 30 June 2002 — £164 miilion). Approximately
£26 million of these costs were emplovee refated. £11 million were in respect of writedowns of fixed assets,
£23 million was incurred on the Next Generation Growth programme which includes distributor terminations in
the United States, and the balance included consultancy and systems costs. The majority of these costs were
mewrred in North America and the United Kingdom. It is expected that the total cost of restructuring and
integrating the busincss will be approximately $700 mitlion (£460 million) of which 5390 million (£390 million)
is expected to be cash. The majority of the balance of the cost will be incurred in the cighteer months ending
30 June 2004.

£15 miliion was incurred in respect of the restructuring of the UDV (spirits and wine} and the Guinness
(beer) businesses. Tt is expected that the total costs of this integration will be approximately £170 milhion and it is
anticipated that the remaining £33 million will be charged in the six months ending 30 June 2003.

Exceptional items for associates comprise £10 million for Diageo’s share of General Mills™ exceptional costs
incurred on its restructuring of the acquired Pillsbury business, and £35 million in respect of the restructuring of
Mo#L Hennessy.

Burger King was sold on 13 December 2002 for $1.5 billion (£0.9 billion). This sale generated a loss before
taxes of £1.395 million, after writing back goodwill previously written off o reserves of £673 million. Following
the disposal, Diageo retains $212 million (£132 million) of subordinated debt, with a ten vear maturity, from the
entity owning Burger King. In addition, Diageo has guaranteed up to $850 million (£528 million) of borrowings
of Burger King. Thesc loans have a term of five years although Diageo and Burger King agreed to structure their
arrangerments 1o encourage refinancing by Burger King on a non-guaranteed basis prior to the end of five years.

Interest

The interest charge in the period was £214 million, compared with £170 million for the comparable period
last year. The benefits of £65 million arising from the disposal of businesses and £8 million from the effect of
exchange rate movements were offset by other factors. These factors include the effect of the Seagram acquisition
of £57 million, the share of General Mills’ interest charge. which has increased £24 million compared with the
six months ended 31 December 2001, and the funding of the share repurchases of £31 million.
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Taxation

The effective rate of taxation on profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items for the period was
25%, the same as for the six months ended 31 December 2001. The charge is based on an estimate of the effective
tax rate for the financial year as a whole.

Dividend

Diageo will pay an interim dividend of 9.9 peace per share on 7 April 2003. an increase of 6.5% on Iast
vear’s interim dividend. Payment to US ADR holders will be made on 11 April 2003. The record date for this
dividend will be 7 March 2003, A dividend reinvestment plan is available in respect of this dividend and the plan
notice date will be 17 March 2003,

Cash flow

Free cash inflow was £301 million, compared with £288 million in the six months ended 31 December 2001.
Cash inflow from operating activities was £754 million compared with £821 million in the comparable period.
Discomtinued operations contributed £60 million to operating cash flow (2001 — £226 million). Cash flow from
operating activities was after £99 million of restructuring and integration costs and a £3540 miilion increase in
working capital mainly due to scasonal factors.

Net interest payments were £200 miliion against £184 million in the comparable period. Purchases of
tangible fixed assets in the period amounted 1o £199 million, a decrease of £13 million. Tax payments were
£13 million compared with £115 million in the six months ended 31 December 2001,

Sales of businesses generated £803 mitlion. arising principaily from the disposal of Burger King and from
the receipt of $89 million (£58 million) frenm the sale of options to General Mills over 29 million ordinary shares
of Diageo’s holding in that company.

Balance sheet

At 31 December 2002, total sharcholders’ funds were £5.222 million compared with £6.00]1 million at
30 June 2002, The decrease was mainly duc to the £763 million retained deficit for the period, and £552 million
costs of the repurchase and cancellation of own shares, offset by the release of £6735 million of goodwili
previously written off to reserves.

Net borrowings were £5,239 million, a decrease of £237 million from 30 June 2002. This decrease includes
the net cash inflow of £694 million on the purchases and sales of businesses and free cash flow of £301 miliion.
less £552 million on the repurchase of shares and £439 million equity dividend payment.

Diageo’s share repurchase programme has bean driven by a view of an efficient capital structure for Diageo
and a belief that the repurchase of shares represents intrinsic value for shareholders. Piageo has a target range for
interest cover of five to eight times. Under the current economic environment it is now appropriate for Diageo to
move towards the higher end of that range and the pace of the share repurchase programme will be varied having
regard to this policy and other factors.
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DIAGEO CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND L.OSS ACCOUNT

Turnover
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Operating costs
Operating profit
Continuing operations
Discominued operations

Share of associates’ profits
Trading profit

Disposal of fixed assets
Sale of businesses

Interest payable (net)

Profit/tloss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit/{ioss) after taxation
Minority interests

Equity

Non-eguity

Profit/(loss} for the period
Interim dividend

Transferred (from)/to
reserves

Pence per share
Basic earnings
Diluted earnings
Interim dividend
Average shares

Six months ended
31 December 2002

Six months ended
31 December 2001

Before Goodwill Before Goodwill
goodwill and and goodwill and and
exceptional  exceptional exceptional exceptional
items inems Total items items Total
£ million £ million £ million £ mithon £ million £ million
4.949 — 4,949 4,458 — 4,458
479 — 479 2,020 — 2,020
5,428 — 5,428 6.478 — 6.478
{4.18%) {107) {4,292} (5,242) (291) (5,533)
1,188 (105) 1,083 967 (283) 634
: 35 (2} 53 269 (&) 261
1.243 {107 1,136 1,236 (290) 945
266 (15 251 162 un 145
1.509 (1122 1387 1,398 (303) 1,090
(3 (3) (3) (5
(1.378} (1,378) 360 360
(214 — (214) (17 — {170
1.295 (1,503) (208) 1,228 47 1,275
(324) 113 {206) (307) {116} (423)
971 (1,383} (414 921 (69) 852
(28) — (28) (24) — {24)
a7 —_ (17 {18 — (18)
926 (1,385) 439 879 (69) §10
(304) — (304) {30%) — (309
622 (1,285) (763) 370 (69) 501
263p 44.)p (14.6)p 26.2p (2.1)p  24.1p
29.5p #4.)p (146)p 26.1p (2.0p 24.0p
99p — 9% p 93p — 9.3p
3.143m 3,358m
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DIAGEO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

Six months ended
31 December 2007

Six months ended
31 December 2001

£ million £ million

(LossYprofit for the period - group {583) 731
— assoclates 129 79

(459) 810
Exchange adjustments (140 {83)
Tax on exchange in reserves o 6
Total recognised gains and losses {599) 733
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DIAGEQO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and liquid resources

Creditors — duc within one vear
Borrowings
Other creditors

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liahilities
Creditors — due after one year
Borrowings

Other creditors

Provisions for liabilities and
charges

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Reserves
Shareholders” funds
Minerity interests
Equity

Non-equity
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31 December 2002 30 June 2002 31 December 2001
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million
4.496 5434 5.589
1,916 2.545 2,360
3,340 3,183 3,225
9.752 11,162 11.174
2,239 2,316 2271
3717 3419 3,817
1,360 1.596 2,286
7,316 7,331 8.374
(3,521} (3.718) (3,446)
(3,461} (3,645 (3.877)
{6.932} (7.363) {7,323)
334 (32} 1,051
10,084 11,130 12,225
(3,463} (3.711Y {4,132)
(62) (493 (62)
(3.525) (3,760 (4.194)
{804) (814) (488)
5,757 6,356 7.543
910 930 976
4312 5,071 3.993
5,222 6.001 6,969
183 184 189
350 371 385
335 553 574
373537 6.356 7.543




DIAGEO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Dividends received from associates

Returns or investients and servicing of finance
Interest paid {net)

Dividends paid to equity minority interests

Taxation

Capital expenditure and financial investiment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net purchase of own shares and invesiments
Sale of fixed assets

Free cash flow
Acquisitions and disposals
Purchase of subsidiaries
Sale of subsidiaries

Equity dividends paid

Cash flow before liquid resources and financing
Management of liquid resources

Financing

Issue of share capital

Own shares purchased for cancellation
{Decrcase)inerease in loans

Increase in cash in the period

Six months ended
31 December 2002

Six months ended
3t December 2001

£ million £ million £ million £ million
754 821
30 48
{200} (184}
(12 {21)
212y (205)
(13) (115)
(199 (212)
(78} {70
21 21
(256) {261)
301 288
{109 (3.302%
803 4,294
694 792
(459 1432)
336 628
237 (226}
] 4
(332) {279
(93} i1
(644} (264)
129 138

MOVEMENTS IN NET BORROWINGS

Increase in cash in the period
Cash flow from change in loans
Change in liquid resources

Change in net borroewings from cash flows
Exchange adjustments
Non-cash items

Decrease in net borrowings
Net borrowings at beginning of the period

Net horrowings at end of the period

Six months ended
31 December 2002

Six months ended
31 December 2001

£ million £ million
129 138

93 (1h

(237) 226
(15 353

241 176

1} (4

237 483
(5,496) (5,479
(3.259 (4,994)
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1.  Segmental analysis

2002 2001
Operating Operating
Turnover profit Turnover profit
£ million £ million £ million £ million
Class of business:
Major markets
North Amcrica 1476 413 1.147 253
CGreat Britain 861 144 843 i36
Treland 3522 39 518 86
Spain . 244 61 224 60
3,103 707 2,734 533
Key markets 1,163 317 1,097 287
enture markets 683 164 627 143
Premium drinks 494G 1,188 4.458 967
Discontinued operations 479 55 2,020 269
3428 1,243 6.478 1,236
Geographical area by destination:
Europe 2,365 439 2,428 433
North America 1.825 464 2.790 301
Asia Pacific 344 130 304 119
Latin America 213 113 403 120
Rest of World 381 97 353 63
5428 1,243 6.478 1,236

The above analysis of operating profit is before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items. The
geographical analysis is based on the location of the third party customers. The discontinued operations comprise
quick service restaurants (Burger King) and the packaged food businesses (Pillsbury).
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2002 2001
£ million £ million

Net assets by class of business
Premiurn drinks 8,501 8.772
Discontinued operations — 1,482
Net operating assets 8,501 10,254
Investments in associates 2,885 2,927
Tax. dividends and other 370) (644)
Net borrowings (3.259 (4,994)

5,737 7.543
Net operating assets by geographical area
Europe 4,046 4,090
North America 3,260 3430
Asia Pacific 216 286
Latin America 173 247
Rest of World 206 181

8.501 10,254

Weighted average exchange rates used in the translation of profit and Joss accounts were US dollar —
£l =31.55 (2001 — £1 = $1.44) and euro — £1 = €1.57 (2001 -~ £1 = €1.61). Exchange rates used to translate
assets and liabitities at the balance sheet date were US dollar — £1 = $1.61 (2001 — £1 = $1.46) and euro —
£l = €1.33 (2001 — £1 = €1.63). The group uses option cylinders and foreign exchange ransaction hedges 1o
mitigate the ¢ffect of exchange rate movements.

2, Goodwill and exceptional items

2002 2001

£ million £ million £ million £ million

Operating costs

Continuing operations Goodwill amortisation (N (2}
Seagram integration (89) (40)
Guinness UDV integration (13) 2
José Cuervo settlement — (220)
(105 {283)
Discontinued operations Goodwill amortisation VA {8)
{107) 291
Associates (15) (17)
Disposal of fixed assets (3} (5)
Sale of businesses
Continuing operations Premium drinks brands 16 (5
Guinness World Records — 35
16 34
Discontinued operations Burger King (1,395) —
The Pillsbury Company 1 326
{1,394} 326
(1,503} 47
—_————— ——
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3. Taxation

The £206 million total taxation charge for the six months ended 31 December 2002 comprises a UK tax
credit of £43 million. a foreign tax charge of £167 million and tax on associates of £82 million. Included in the
total UK credit is current tax payable for the six months ended 31 December 2002 amounting to £6 million.

4. Note of consolidated historical cost profits and lesses

There is no material difference between the reported loss shown in the consolidated profit and loss account

and the loss restated on an historical cost basis.

5. Movements in consolidated shareholders’ funds

(Loss)/profit for the period
Dividends

Exchange adjustrments

Tax on exchange in reserves

New share capital issued

Purchase of own shares for cancellation
Goodwill on disposals of businesses

Net movement in shareholders’ funds
Shareholders’ Funds at beginning of the period

Shareholders” funds at end of the peried

6. Net borrowings

Debt due within one year and overdrafis
Debt due after one vear
Net obligations under finance leases

Less:  — cash at bank and liquid resources

— interest rate and foreign currency swaps

Net harrowings
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2002 2001

£ miliion £ million

(439) 810
(304) (309)

{763 501
(140} (83

—_— 6

1 4
(352 (279}

675 1,697

(779 1,846

6,001 5.123

5222 6,969

31 December 20 June 31 December
2002 2002 2001
£ million £ miilion £ million
(3.521) (3.718) (3.446)
(3,463) {(3,711) (4,132)
— (28) (35)
(6,984 (7457 (7.613)
1,360 1,596 2,286
365 365 333
(3.259 (5.499) (4.994)
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7. Net cash inflow from operating activities

2002 2001

£ miliion £ million

Operating profit 1,136 943
Exceptional operating costs 104 281
Restructuring and integration payments 99 {70
Depreciation and amortisation chargs 147 166
Increase in working capital {340) {457)
Other items 6 (44)
Net cash infiow from operating activities 754 821

8. Basis of preparation

The interim financial information has been prepared on the basis of accounting policics consistent with those
applied in the accounts for the year ended 30 June 20062, The information is unaudited but has been reviewed by
the aoditors. KPMG Audit Ple, and their report is reproduced after these notes. The information does not
comprise the statutory accounts of the group. The statutory accounts of Diageo plc for the year ended 30 June
2002 have been filed with the registrar of companics. KPMG Audit Ple have reported on these accounts; their
report was unqualified and did not contain any statement under Section 237 of the Companies Act 1985,
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INDEPENDENT REVIEW REPORT TO DIAGEO plc
Introduction

We have been instructed by the company to review the financial information for the six months ended
31 December 2002 set out on pages 8 to 13'". We have read the other information contained in the interim report
and considered whether it contains any apparent inisstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial
information.

This report is made solely to the company in accordance with the terms of our engagement to assist the
company in meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Autherity. Our review has
been undertaken so that we might state to the company those matters we are required to state to it in this report
and for no other purpose. To the fuliest extent permitted by faw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company for our review work, for this report. or for the conclusions we have reached.

Directors’ responsibilities

The inerim report, including the financial information contained therein, is the responsibility of. and has
been approved by. the directors. The directors are responsible for preparing the interim report in accordance with
the Listing Ruies of the Financial Services Authority whick require that the accounting policies and presentation
applied to the interim figures should be consistent with those applied in preparing annual accounts except where
they are to be changed in the next annual accounts it which casce any changes. and the reasons for them, are to be
disciosed.

Review work performed

We conducted our review in accordance with guidance contained in Bulledn 1999/4: Review of Interim
Financial Information issued by the Auditing Practices Board. A review consists principally of making eaquiries
of group management and applying analyiical procedures to the financial information and underlying financial
data and, based thereon. assessing whether the accounting policies and presentation have been consistently
applied unless otherwise disclosed. A review s substantially less in scope than an audit performed in accordance
with Auditing Standards and therefore provides a lower level of assurance than an audit. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion on the financial information.

Review conclusion

On the basis of our review we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made o the
financial information as presented for the six months ended 31 December 2002,

KPMG Audit Ple
Chartered Accouniants
London, 19 Fehruary 2003

(I} Pages 104 10 171 in the information memorandum.
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TAXATION

The following is a summary of certain withholding waxation reatinents at the date hereof in relation 1o
paymenis of principal and interest in respect of the Instruments. The comnents are not exhaustive and do nor deal
with other Irish or United Kingdom tax aspects of acquiring, holding or disposing of lsrruments. The comments
relate only 10 the position of persons who are absolute beneficial owners of the Instruments and do not deal with
the position of certain classes of Holders of Instruments such as dealers. Prospeciive Holders of Instruments
should be aware that the particufar terns of issue of any series of Insrruments as specified in the relevant Pricing
Supplement may affect the wax treamment of thar and other series of Insruments. The following is a general guide
and should be trected with appropriaie cawrion. Holders of Insiruments who are in any doubt as to their rax
position should consult their professional advisers.

Holders who may be liable to taxation in jurisdictions other than the United Kingdom and Ireland in respect
of their acquisition, holding or disposal of the Instruments are particularly advised to consult their professional
advisers as to whether they are so liable (and if so under the laws of which jurisdictions). since the following
commaents relate only to certain United Kingdom and Irish taxation aspects of payments in respect of the
Instruments. In particular. Holders should be aware that they may be Hable to taxation under the laws of other
jurisdictions in relation t payments in respect of the Instruments even if such pavments may be made without
withholding or deduction for or on account of taxation under the laws of the United Kingdom and/or Ireland.

UNITED KINGDOM TAXATION
A. UK Withheolding Tax on UK-Source Interest

Payments of interest on the Instraments may be made without withholding or deduction for or on account of
United Kingdom income tax provided that the Instruments are and continue to be listed on a recognised
stock exchange. On the basis of the United Kingdom Intand Revenue’s published interpretation of the
relevant legislation, secutities which are to be listed on a stock exchange in a country which is a member
state of the European Union or which is part of the Buropean Economic Area will satisly this requirement if
they are listed by a competent authority in that country and are admitted to trading on a recognised stock
exchange in that couniry; securities which are to be Bisted on a stock exchange in any other country will
satisfy this requirement if they are admitted to trading on @ recognised stock exchange in that country. The
London Stock Exchange and the Irish Stock Exchange are recognised stock exchanges for these purposes.

Payments of interest on the Instruments may aliso be made without withholding or deduction for or on
accoun? of United Kingdom income tax if the maturity of the reievant Instrument is fess than 1 vear from the
date of tssue and the Instrument is not issued under arrangements the effect of which is to render such
Instrument part of a borrowing with a total term of 1 year or more. In addition. payments of interest on
Instruments issued by Diageo Enterprises will not be subject to United Kingdom withholding tax if the
interest does not have a United Kingdom source.

In other cases, income tax may have to be withheld at the lower rate (currently 20%) from paymenis of
interest on the Instruments, subject to any relief available under any applicable double taxation convention.

B. Payments by Guarantor

If the Guarantor makes any payments in respect of interest on the Instruments {or in respect of other
amounts due under the Instruments other than the repayment of amounis subscribed for the Instruments}
such payments may be subject to United Kingdom withholding tax at the basic rate (currently 22%) subject
o such reliel as may be available under the provisions of any applicable double taxation treaty. Such
payvments by the Guarantor may not be eligible for the exemptions from United Kingdom withholding tax
described in A above.

C. Payments under Deed of Covenant

Any payments made by the Issuers under the Deed of Covenant may not qualify for the exemptions from
United Kingdom withholding tax described in A above.
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Other Rules Relating to United Kingdom Withholding Tax

1. Instruments may be issued at an issue price of less than 100% of their principal amount. Any discount
element on any such Instruments will not be subject to any United Kingdom withholding tax pursuant
o the provisions mentioned in A above but may be subject to reporting requircments as outlined in
E below.

2. Where Instrumenes are to be. or may fali to be, redeemed at a premivm as opposed to being issued at a
discount, then any such element of premium may constituic a payment of intercst. Payments of
interest are subject to United Kingdom withholding tax as outlined above and the reporting
requirements outlined in E below.

fad

Where interest has been paid under deduction of United Kingdom income tax, Holders who are not
resident in the United Kingdom may be able to recover all or part of the tax deduceed if there s an
appropriate provision in any applicable double taxation treaty.

4. The references 1o “interest™ in this summary mean “interest” as understoed in United Kingdom tax
law. The statements in this summary do not take any account of any different definitions of “interest”
or “principal” which may prevail under any other law or which may be created by the terms and
conditions of the Instruments or any related documentation (e.g. sec Condition 6 of the Instruments).

LA

The above description of the United Kingdom withholding tax position assumes that there will be no
substitution of an Issuer and does not consider the tax consequences of any such substitution.

Provision of Information

Holders should note that where any interest on Instruments is paid to them (or to any person acting on their
behalf) by the Issuers or any person in the United Kingdom acting on behalf of the Issuers (a “paying
agent™), or is received by any person in the United Kingdom acting on behalf of the relevant Holder (other
than solely by clearing or arranging the clearing of a chegue) (a “collecting agent™), the Issuer {in the case
of Instruments issued by Diageo ple or Diageo Capital plc or Diageo Finance plc). the paying agent or the
collecting agent {as the case may be) may. in certain cases, be required to supply to the United Kingdom
Inland Revenue details of the payment and certain detzils relating to the Helder (including the Holder’s
name and address). These provisions will apply whether or not the interest has been paid subject to
withholding or deduction for or on account of United Kingdom income tax and whether or not the Holder is
resident it the United Kingdom for United Kingdom taxation purposes. Where the Holder is not so resident,
the details provided to the United Kingdom Inland Revenue may, in certain cases, be passed by the United
Kingdem Iniand Revenue to the tax authoritics of the jurisdiction in which the Holder is resident for taxation
purposes. For the above purposes, “interest™ should be taken, for practical purposes. as including payments
made by the Guarantor in respect of interest on Instruments. The provisions referred 1o above may also
apply. in certain circumstances, In relation to payments made on redemption of any Instruments where the
amount pavable on redemption is greater than the issue price of the Instruments. Further legislation is
expected 10 be introduced, as provided for by the Finance Bill published on 16 April 2003. w0 implement in
United Kingdom law the proposed EU Savings Directive (for details of which see the paragraph below on
the proposed directive).

IRISH TAXATION

The following summery in relarion ro Irish tax aspects of acquiving, holding or disposing of Instruments applies
only in respect of Instrumenis issued by Diageo Emerprises and not by any other Issuer.,

A.

Irish Stamp Duty on the Instruments

Stamp duty is not chargeable on the issue or the transfer by delivery of the Instruments. In the event of a
written transfer of the Instruments no stamp duty is chargeable provided that the Instruments:-
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(a) do not carry a right of conversion into stocks or marketable securities (other than Joan capital} of 2
company having a register in Ireland or into loan capital having such a right;

{b)  do not carry rights of the same kind as shares in the capital of a company, inciuding rights such as
voting rights, a share in the profits or a share in the surplas upon liguidation;

(c)  are redeemable within 30 years of the date of issue and not thereafter:

{(d) are issued for a price which s not less than 90% of their nominal value (thus bonds issued at a
discount may not qualify for this exemption); and

(¢) do notcarry a oght to a sum in respect of repayment or interest which is related to certain movements
in an index or indices specified in any Instrument or other document relating to the Instruments.

Irish Withholding Tax on the Instruments

Payments of principal, interest, discount and premium. made by a Paying Agent outside Ircland on
Instruments in bearer form and carryving a right w interest listed on a stock exchange will be made on behalf
of Diageo Enterprises (“DE™) under section 64 of the Irish Taxes Consolidation Act. 1997 {as amended)
without withhelding or deduction for or on account of any present taxes or duties of whatever nature
imposed or levied by or on behalf of Ireland and DE is not required to make any deduction or withholding in
respect of the payment of interest or principal on such Instruments.

A similar position applics under section 64 for payments of principal and interest on Instruments in beaver
form and carrying a right to interest listed on a stock exchange where the Paying Agent is within Ireland
and:

1. the Instruments are held in a recognised clearing sysiem: or

2. the person who is the beneficial owner of the Instruments and who is beneficially entitled to the
interest is not resident in Ireland and has made an appropriale declaration.

In the case of Instruments other than those referred to above (i.e. other than instruments qualifying under
section 64). DE will be required to deduct tax at the standard rate of incomme tax applicable in Ireland at time
of payment unless:

(a)  the interest is paid in the ordinary course of DE’s trade or business to a company resident in a country
with which Ireland has concluded a double tax agreerent or a company resident in an EU member
state except where such interest is paid to that company in connection with an Irish branch or agency
of that company; or

{b) the interest is paid to a resident of a country with which Ireland has concluded a double tax agreement
and authorisation 10 pay interest without deduction of tax if appropriate has been received from the
Revenue Commissioners under the terms of the double tax agreement; or

(c) theinterest is paid (by DE in the ordinary course of carrying on its financial operations in accordance
with the Certificate issued to it by the Irish Minister for Finance) prior to 31 December 2005 two
persons whose usual place of abode is outside Ireland. Withholding tax will not appiv to interest paid
on the Tnstruments after that date if the Instruments are issued prior to 31 December 2005 on terms
which oblige DE to redecm the Instruments within a period of 15 years from the date of tssue.

Irish Source Income

Notwithstanding the fact that DE may not be required te deduct tax at the standard rate of income tax in
accordance with the immediately preceding paragraphs. any interest, discount or premium on Instruments
issued in Ireland is Trish source income. Such income is within the charge to Irish income tax. Treland
operates a self-assessment system in respect of income and corporation taxes and any person, including a
person who is neither resident nor ordinarily resident, with lrish source income chargeable to tax comes
within it$ scope.
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Section 198 of the Irish Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997 (as amended) provides that a person not ordinarily
resident in Ireland wifl not be chargeable to income tax in respect of interest (including any uplift in
principal on redemption of indexed redemption Instruments) paid by a company in the course of carrying on
trading operations which qualify for the benefit of the 10% tax rate (which under existing Irish legislation
will continue for DE until 31 December 2005). For interest paid by DE after 31 December 2005, the
exemption from Irish income tax will continue to apply provided the Instruments were issued before
31 December 20035 on terms which oblige DE to redeem the Instruments within a period of 13 years from
the date of issue. There is also an exemption from Irish tncome tax where the recipient is a company resident
in another EU member state or in a country with which Ireland has concluded a tax treaty. Furthermore,
there s an exemption where the provisions of section 64 of the Irish Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997 (as
amended) apply (see above) and the recipicnt of the interest is the person who is resident in a member state
of the European Union {other than Ireland) or in a coumry with which Ireland has a double taxation
agreement. The exemption under Section 198 does not apply where the interest is paid to a foreign company
carrving on business in Irelard through a branch or agency or a permanent establishment to which intercst
paid by DE is attributable.

Trerest and discount payments which do not fall within the exemnptions outlined above wilt be subject to
Irish income tax. However in the absence of a withholding tax there is no mechanism to enable the Irish
Revenue Commissioners to obtain payment ot any lability from a non resident person and it has been the
practice of the Trish Revenue Commmssioners not to seek © collect the liability from such non resident
persons unless the recipient of the income has any other tax connection with Ireland such as a claim for
repayment of Irish 1ax deductled at source, an Irish agency, branch, trustee or trade.

A holder of an Instrument will be subject to Irish taxes on capital gains on a disposal of an Instrument unless
sich holder is a person neither resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland who does not have an enterprise, or
an interest in an enterprise. which carries on business in Ireland through a branch or agency. or a permanent
representative. 1o which or to whom the Instrument is attributable.

PROPOSED EU SAVINGS DIRECTIVE

On 21 January 2003 the EU Council of Economic and Finance Ministers anpounced that i1 had reached
political agreement to adopt a new directive regarding the 1axation of savings income. It is proposed thal.
subject to a number of important conditions being met, each Member State will be required to provide to the
tax guthorities of another Member State details of payments of interest or other similar income paid by 2
person within its jurisdiction to an individual resident in that other Member State; however, Austria,
Belgiuin and Luxembourg will instead apply a withholding system for a transitional period in relation to
such payments. The proposed directive may be subject to further amendment and/or clarification.
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

Instruments may be sold from time to time by an Issuer (o any one or more of Deutsche Bank AG London.
Lehman Brothers International {Europe), Merrill Lynch International, LP. Morgan Securities Ltd., Morgan
Stanley & Co. Inmternational Limited and UBS Limited (the “Dealers”). The arrangements under which
Instruments may from time to time be agreed to be sold by the Issuers to, and purchased by, Dealers are set out in
an amended and restated dealership agreement dated 7 May 2002 as supplemeated by a supplemental dealership
agreement dated 2 May 2003 ¢as further amended. supplemented or replaced from time to time, the “Dealership
Agreement™) and made between the Issuers, the Guarantor and the Dealers. Any such agreement will, inter alia,
make provision for the form and terms and coaditions of the relevant Instruments, the price at which such
Instruments will be purchased by the Dealers and the commissions or other agreed deductibles (if any) payable or
allowable by the relevant Issuer in respect of such purchase. The Dealership Agreement makes provision for the
resignation or (ermination of appointment or renewal of existing Dealers and for the appointment of additional or
other Dealers either generally in respect of the Programme or in relation to a particular Tranche of Instruments.
The Issuers may sell Instrurnents from time Lo fime to persons or institutions who are not Dealers.

United States of America: Regulation § Category 2: TEFRA D, unless TEFRA C is specified as applicable
in the relevani Pricing Supplement.

Instruments have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Secerities Act™) and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account
or benefit of, U.S. persons except in certain transactions exempt from, or not subject to, the regisrration
requirements of the Securities Act. Terms used in the preceding sentence have the meanings given to them by
Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Instruments in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requircments and may not be offered, sold or delivered
within the United States or its possessions or to U.S. persons, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S. tax
regulations. Terms used in the preceding sentenee have the meanings given 1o them by the United States Internal
Revenue Code and regulations thereunder.

Each Dealer has agreed that, except as permitted by the Dealership Agreement, it will not offer, seli or
deliver Instruments. (i) as part of their distribution at any time or (ii} otherwise until forty davs after the
completion of the distribution of the Instruments comprising the relevant Tranche, as certified to the Issue and
Paving Agent or the relevant Issuer by such Dealer (or, in the case of 2 gale of a Tranche of Instruments t0 or
through more than one Dealer, by each of such Dealers as to Instruments of such Tranche purchased by or
through it. in which case the Issue and Paying Agent or the relevant Issuer shall notify each such Dealer when all
such Dealers have so centified) within the United States or to or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons, and
such Dealer will have sent to each dealer to which it sells Instruments during the distribation compliance pariod
relating thereto a conflirmation or other notice setiing forth the restictions on offers and sales of the Instruments
within the United States or to or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons.

In addition, until forty days after the commencement of the offering of Instruments comprising any Tranche.
any offer or saie of Instruments within the United States by any dealer {whether or not participating in the
offering) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise
than in accordance with Ruie 144A under the Sccurities Act (if available).

United Kingdom: Each Dealer has represented and agreed that:

1Y No offer to public — listed Instruments: in relation to Instruments which have a matunity of one year
or more and which are to be admitted to the Official List of the UKLA, it has not offcred or sold and
will not offer or sell any such Instruments Lo persons in the United Kingdom prior to admission of
such Insiruments to listing in accordance with Part VI of the FSMA. except o persons whose ordinary
activities involve them in acquiring. holding. managing or dispesing of investments (as principal or
agent) for the purposes of their businesses or otherwise in circumstances which have not resulied and
will not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers
of Securities Regulations 1995 or the FSMA;
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(2)  No offer to public — Instruments not admitied to the Official List of the UKLA: in relation to
Instruments which have a maturity of one year or more and which are not to be admitted to the
Offictal List of the UKLA., it has not offered or sold and, prior to the expiry of a period of six months
from the Issue Date of such Instruments, will not offer or sell any such Instruments to persens in the
United Kingdom except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding.
managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) {or the purposes of their businesses or
otherwisc in circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the
United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Gffers of Securities Reguiations 1995;

(3)  No deposit-taking: in relation to any Instruments having a maturity of less than one year:

(i} it is a person whose ordinary activities involve it in acguiring, holding, managing or disposing
of investments {as principal or agent) for the purposes of its business; and

(it) it has not otfered or sold and will not offer or seil any Instruments other than to persons:

(a) whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of
investments {as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses: or

{b) who it is rcasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of investments {as
principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses,

where the issue of the Instruments would otherwise constitute a contravention of section 19 of the
FSMA by the reievant Issuer:

(4)  Financial promotion: it has only comumunicated or caused to be communpicated and will only
communicate or cause (0 be communicated any invitation or inducement o engage in investiment
activity {within the meaning of section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or
sale of any Instruments in circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the
refevant Issuer or the Guarantor: and

(3} General compliance: it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA
with respect to anything done by it in relation 10 any Insgruments in, from or otherwise involving the
United Kingdom.

Japan

The Instruments have not been and wiil not be registered under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan.
Accordingly, each Dealer has represented. wananted and agreed that it has not, directly or indirectly, offered or
soid and will noti. directly or indirectly, offer or sell any Instruments, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any
Japancse Person or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benetit of.
any Japanese Person excepl pursuant to an cxemption {rom the registration requirement of, and otherwise in
compliance with, the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan, and other relevant laws and regulations of Japan.
For the purposes of this paragraph, “Japanese Person” shall mean any person resident in Japan, including any
corporation or other entity organised under the laws of Japan.

Federal Republic of Germany

The Instruments have not been and will not be publicly offered in Germany and, accordingly, no securities
sales prospectus (Verkanfsprospekt) for a public offering of Instruments in Germany in accordance with the
Securities Sales Prospectus Actrof 9 September 1998, as amended (Wertpapier-Verkaufsprospektgesetz, the
“Prospectus Act”), has been or will be published or circulated in the Federal Republic of Germany. Each Dealer
has represented and agreed that it has only offered and sold and will only offer and sell the Instruments in the
Federal Republic of Germany in accordance with the provisions of the Prospectus Act and any other laws
applicable in the Federal Republic of Germany governing the issue. sale and offering of securities. Any resale of
the Instruments in the Federal Republic of Germany may only be made in accordance with the provisions of the
Prospectus Act and any other laws applicable in the Federal Republic of Germany governing the sale and offering
of securities.
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The Republic of France

Each of the Dealers and the Issuer has represented, warranted and agreed that (i) it has not offered or sold
and will not offer or sell. dircetly or indirectly, any Instruments to the public in the Republic of France and
(i1} offers and saies of Instruments will be made in the Republic of France only 1o qualified investors as defined
and in accordance with Articles L.411-1 and L.411-2 of the French Code monétaire er financier and
Decree no. 98-880 dated 1 October 1998 relating to offers to qualified investors.

In addition. each of the Dea}ers and the Tssuer has represented, wartanted and agreed that it has not
distributed or caused to be distributed and will not distribute or cause io be distributed in the Republic of France,
the Information Memorandum or any other offering material relating to the Instruments other than to investors to
whom offers and gales of Instruments in the Republic of France may be made as described as above.

The Netherlands

Each dealer has represented and agreed (and each further Dealer appoinied under the Programme wilf be
required to represent and agree; that, in order 1o comply with the Netherlands Securities Market Supervision Act
1995 (Wer roezich: effectenverkeer 1995, the “WTE™), it has only direcily or indirectly offered, sold or
wransferred and that iz will only directly or indirectly offer, sell or transfer Instruments tn The Nethertands:

{a}  to persons who frade or invest in securities in the conduct of their profession or trade (which includes
banks, securities intermediaries (including dealers and brokers), insurance companies, pension funds,
other institutional investors and treasury departments of commercial enterprises which as an ancillary
activity regularly invest in securities), provided that (i) the applicable Pricing Supplement and any
other documents and advertisements in which a forthcoming oftering of Instruments is publicly
announced states that the offer is exclusively made to those persons and {it} a copy of the applicable
Pricing Supplement is submitted o the Authority for Financial Markets (Aunforiteit Financiéle
Muarkren, the “AFM™) before the offer s made; or

{b)  with a denomination of at least EUR 50.000 (or the equivalent in any other currency) provided that if
such Instraments are issued:

(i}  at a discount. they may only be offered if their issue price is not less than EUR 50,000 {or the
equivalent in any other currency);

(i1}  on a partly-paid basis, they may only be offered if paid up by their initial helders at Ieast o an
amount of EUR 50,000 (or the equivalent in any other curency): or

(i) with a denomination of precisely EUR 50,000 {or the equivalent in any other currency), they
may only be offered on a fully-paid basis and at par or at a premivm; or

{c) if any other exemption from the prohibition contained in article 2 paragraph 1 of the WTE applies or if
the AFM has granted ap (individual) dispensation from the above prohibition and the conditions
attached o such exemption or dispensation are fully complied with.

freland

Each Dealer has represented and agreed (and cach further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be
required to further represent and agree) that:

(a) it will not knowingly sell or offer for sale any Instruments to any person, including any body
corporate, resident in treland or having its usual place of abode in Ireland {an “Irish Person™);

{b) it will not knowingly issue or distribute, or knowingly cause to be issued or distributed, to any Irish

Person the Information Memorandam or any other document offering Instruments for subscription or
sale;
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{c)

(d)

(H

otherwise than in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of
the Irish Companies Act, 1963 to 2001. it will not offer or sell any Instruments, in Ireland or, in the
case of Diageo Enterprises, in Ireland or elsewhere, by means of any document unless:

(i) inthe case of Diageo Enterprises, such Instruments have a maximum matarity of five years from
the date of tssue and such offer or sale is made only to persons whose ordinary business is to
buy or sell shares or debentures (whether as principal or agent); or

(i)  in the case of other issuers. such offer or sale is made only to persons whose ordinary business it
is to buy or sell shares or debentures (whether as principal or agent); or

(iii} if such Instruments are to be listed on the Official List of the Insh Stock Exchange, the offer or
sate is cffected by means of the Information Memorandurm or any other document comprising
listing particulars relating to the Instruments, prepared in accordance with the European
Communities {Stock Exchange) Regulations, 1984 (as amended) of Ireland and approved by the
Irish Stock Exchange and in each case accompanied by an application form for Tnstruments or
by means of a document. accompanied by an application form, which indicates where the
Information Memorandum (or such other document as aforesaid) may be obtained or inspected;

it has pot issued and will not issue any application form for Instruments other than the form
incorporated in the Information Memorandum or unless the form is accompanied by the Information
Memorandum (or such other document as aforesaid):

it will not make in Treland an offer of Instruments to which the Furopean Communities (Transferable
Sccurities and Stock Exchange) Regulations, 1992 of Ireland would apply. except in accordance with
the provisions of those regulations:

it has only issued or passed on. and will only issue or pass on. in Ireland. any decument received by it
in connection with the issue of Instruments o persons who are persons to whom the document may
otherwise lawfully be issued or passed on: and

it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the Investment Intermediaries Act,
1993 (as amended) of Ircland (the <1995 Act™) with respect to anything done by it in relation to the
Instruments if operating in, or otherwise involving, Ircland and. in the case of & Dealer acting under
and within the terms of un authorisation to do so for the purposes of EU Council Directive 92/22/EC
of 10 May 1993 (as amended or extended), it has complied with any codes of conduct made under the
1995 Act and. in the case of 2 Dealer acting within the terms of an authorisation granted to it for the
purposes of EU Council Directive 2000/12/EC of 20 March 2000 (as amended or ¢xtended), it has
complied with any codes of conduct or practice made under section 117(1) of the Central Bank Act,
1989 of Iretand (as amended).

General

Other than with respeet to the listing of the Instruments on such stock exchange as may be specified in the
Pricing Supplement. no action has been or wili be taken in any country or jurisdiction by the Issucrs, the
Guarantor or the Dealers that would permit a public offering of Tnstruments, or possession or distribution of any
offering material in relation thereto. in any country or jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required.
Persons into whose hands the Information Memorandum or any Pricing Supplement comes are required by the
Issuers, the Guarantor and the Dealers to comply with all applicable laws and regulations in each country or
jurisdiction in or from which they purchase. offer. sell or deliver Tastruments or have in their possession or
distribute such offering material. in all cases at their own expense.

The Dealership Agreement provides that the Dealers shall not be bound by any of the restrictions relating to
any specific jurisdiction (set out above) to the extent that such restricdons shall, as a result of change(s) or
changes in official interpretation, after the date hereof, in applicable laws and regulations, no longer be applicable
but without prejudice to the obligations of the Dealers deseribed in the paragraph headed “General” above.
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Seliing restrictions may be supplemented or modificd with the agreement of the Issuers and the Guarantor.
Any such supplement or modification will be set out in the relevant Pricing Supplement (in the case of a
supplement or modification relevant only to a particular Tranche of Instruments) or (in any other case) in a
supplement (o this document.
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Diageo Enterprises
APPLICATION FORM

THIS APPLICATION FORM IS ISSUED WITH THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM SOLELY TO
COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES (STOCK EXCHANGE)
REGULATIONS. 1984 OF IRELAND. IF YOU HAVE ALREADY MADE YOUR APPLICATION FOR
INSTRUMENTS OF DIAGEC ENTERPRISES OR 1F YOU HAVE ALREADY RECEIVED A
CONFIRMATION OF YOUR PURCHASE OF INSTRUMENTS OF DIAGEO ENTERPRISES YOU SHOULD
NOT TAKE ANY ACTION WITH REGARD TC THIS APPLICATION FORM.

NEITHER DIAGEC ENTERPRISES NOR ANY DEALER SHAIL BE BOUND IN ANY WAY
WHATSOEVER TO [SSUE QR SELL ANY INSTRUMENTS QF DIAGEQ ENTERPRISES TO ANY
PERSON WHO COMPLETES AND RETURNS THIS APPLICATION FORM.

To*
* Insert Name of Dealer

I/We offer 1o purchase Instruments of Diageo Enterprises on and subject to the terms and conditions
contained in this Informadon Memorandum.

COMPANY NAME FORENAME(S) (IN FULL)
MR MRS MISS OR TITLE

SURNAME

ADDRESS (IN FULL)

Any joint applicants should complete the following details:

COMPANY NAME
MR MRS MiSS OR TITLE

COMPANY NAME
MR MRS MISS OR TITLE

COMPANY NAME
MR MRS MISS OR TITLE

FORENAME(S; (IN FULL)

FORENAME(S; (IN FULL)Y

FORENAME(S) (IN FULL)

SURNAME

SURNAME

SURNAME

ADDRESS (IN FULL}

ADDRESS (IN FULLY

ADDRESS (IN FULL)

SIGNATURE

SIGNATURE

SIGNATURE

Listing Particulars relating 1o Instrumenis of Diageo Enterprises have been prepared, and have been approved by
the Irish Stock Exchange Limited in accordance with European Communities {Stock Exchange) Regulations,
1984 of Ireland. Copies of such Listing Particulars can be inspected at or obtained from the registered office of
Diageo Enterprises.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The trading of the Instruments on the London Stock Exchange will be expressed as a percentage of their
principal amount {exclusive of accrued interest). Any Tranche of Instruments intended to be traded on the
London Stock Exchange will be admitted 1o trading upon submission to the London Stock Exchange of the
relevant Pricing Suppiement and any other information required by the London Stock Exchange, subject to
the issue of the relevant Instruments. Prior to admission to ading, dealings will be permitted by the London
Stock Exchange in accordance with its rules. Transactions wiil normally be effected for delivery on the third
working duy in London after the day of the transaction.

However, Instruments may be issued pursuant to the Programme which will not be traded on the London
Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange or which will be listed on such stock exchange as the Issuers,
the Guarantor and the reievant Dealer(s) may agree.

Any Tranche of Instruments intended to be listed on the Trish Stock Exchange will be admitted to the
Othcial List of the Irish Stock Exchange upon submission to the Irish Stock Exchange of the relevant Pricing
Supplement and any other information required by the Trish Stock Exchange. subject to the issue of the
relevant Instruments, Transactions will nommally be effected for delivery on the third working day in Dublin
after the day of the transaction.

However, Instruments may be issued by Diageo Enterprises pursuant to the Programme which will not be
isted on the Insh Swock Exchange or any other swock exchange or which will be listed on such stock
exchange as the Issuers. the Guaranior and the relevant Dealer{s} may agree.

The establishment of the Prograrmme was authorised by a resolution of the Board of Directors of Diageo plc
passed on 29 Aprii 1998, by resolutions of a daly authorised Committee of the Board of Directors of Diageo
pl¢ and the Board of Directors of Diageo Capital pic, both passed on 29 July 1998 and by a resolution of the
Board of Directors of Diageo Finance pic passed on 4 August 1999 and by a resolusion of the Board of
Directors of Diageo Enterprises passed on 13 April 2000. The Issuers and the Guarantor have obtained or
will obrain from time to time all necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in connection with the
issue and performance of the Instruments.

The {nstuments have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, The
appropriate common code and the Duernational Securities Identification Number in relation to the
Instruments of cach Secries will be specified in the Pricing Supplement relating therete. The relovamt Pricing
Supplement shall specify any other clearing system as shall have accepted the relevant Instruments for
clearance together with any further appropriate information.

Bearer Instruments and any Coupon appertaining thereto will bear a legend substantiaily to the following
effect: “Any United States person who holds this obligation will be subject to limitations under the United
States income tax laws, including the limitations provided in Sections 163(j) and 1287(a} of the Internal
Revenue Code™. The sections referred to in such legend provide that a United States person who holds a
Bearer Instrument or Coupon generaliv wiil not be allowed to deduct any loss realised on the sale, exchange
or redemption of such Bearer Instrument or Coupon and any gain (which might otherwise be characterised
as capital gain) recognised on such sale, exchange or redemption will be treated as ordinary income.

The listing of the Programme on the Official List of the UKL A and the admission for trading by the London
Stock Exchange are both expected 1o take effect around 8 May 2003.

The listing of the Programme on the frish Stock Exchange is expected to take place on or around § May
2003

There are no, aor have there been, any legal or arbitration proceedings involving the Issuers or the Guarantor
or any of their respective subsidiaries {and no such proceedings are pending or threatened} which have or
may have had during the twelve months prior o the date of this document, individually or in the aggregate, a
significant effect on the financial position of the Issuers or the Guarantor or the Issuers or the Guarantor and
their respective subsidiaries taken as a whole,
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11.

13.

Other than disclosed herein, there has been no significant change in the financial or wrading position of
Diageo Capital pic. Diageo Enterprises or Diageo Firance ple and their respective subsidiaries since 30 June
2002 and no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of Diageo Capital plc, Diageo
Enterprises or Diageo Finance ple and their respective subsidiaries since 30 June 2002, the date of the last
published annual accounts of Diageo Capital plc. Diageo Enterprises and Diageo Finance ple.

Other than disclosed herein, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of
Diageo ple and its respective subsidiaries since 31 December 2002 and no matetial adverse change in the
financial position or prospects of Diageo plc and its respective subsidiaries since 30 June 2002, the date of
the last published annual accounts of Diageo ple.

KPMG Audit Pic has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the inciusion in the Information
Memorandum of its reports on Diageo Capital plc, Diageo Finance ple and the Diageo group in the form and
context in which they have been included and has authorised the conmtents of that part of the listing
particulars consisting only of these reports for the purposes of regulation 6(1)(e) of the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 {Official Listing of Securities) Regulations 2001.

KPMG has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this document and the inclusion
herein of its report on Diageo Enterprises and references to its name in the form and context in which it is
included and has authorised the contents of that part of the listing particulars for the purposes of Section 46
of the Irish Companies Act, 1963 to 2001 and regulation 6(1)c) of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 (Official Listing of Securities) Regulations 2001,

The financial information in relation to Diageo plc contained in this document does not constitute statutory
accounts within the meaning of Section 240 of the Companies Act 1985 (the “Companies Act™). Statutory
accounts for the vears ended 30 June 2002, 30 June 2001 and 30 Junc 2000 for Diageo plc and its
consolidated subsidiaries have been delivered to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales, The
auditors of Diageo ple have made reports under Section 233 of the Companies Act o such statutory
accounts which were not gualified within the meaning of Section 262 of the Companies Act and did not
contain any statements made under Section 237(2) or (3) of the Companies Act.

The financial information in relation to Diageo Capital plc contained in this document does not constitute
statulory accounts within the meaning of Section 240 of the Companies Act. Statutory accounts for the years
ended 30 June 2002. 30 June 2001 and 30 June 2000 have been delivered to the Registrar of Companies in
Scotland. Diageo Capital ple’s auditors have made reports under Section 235 of the Companies Act on such
statutory accounts which were not qualified within the meaning of Section 262 of the Companies Act and
did not contain any statements under Section 237(2) or (3) of the Companies Act.

The financial information in relation to Diageo Finance ple contained in this document does not constituie
statutory accounts within the meaning of Section 240 of the Companies Act. Statutory accounts for the years
ended 30 June 2002, 30 June 2001 and 30 June 2000 have been delivered to the Registrar of Companies in
England and Wales. Diageo Finance plc’s auditors have made reports under Section 235 of the Companies
Act on such statutory accounts which were not qualified within the meaning of Section 262 of the
Companies Act and did not contain any statements made under Section 237(2) or (3) of the Companics Act.

The financial information in relation 10 Diageo Enterprises contained in this document does not constitate
full accounts within the meaning of Section 19 of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1986 of Ireland. Full
accounts of Diageo Enterprises for the vear ended 30 June 2002, 30 June 2001 and 30 June 2000, have been
prepared and the auditors have given ungualified reports on such accounts. The accounts of Diageo
Enterprises for the vear ended 30 June 2002, 30 June 2001 and 30 June 2000 have been annexed to the
relevant annual returns delivered to the Registrar of Companies in Ireland.

Diageo ple has an accounting year end of 30 June. On 24 November 1998 KPMG Audit Plc were appointed
as sole anditors of Diageo ple.

The consolidated financial statements of Diageo pic in respect of the year ended 30 June 2002, 30 June 2001
and 30 June 2000 were audited. without gualification by KPMG Audit Ple. Charlered Accountants and
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Registered Auditors. The business address of KPMG Audit Ple is PO Box 695, 8 Salisbury Square, London
EC4Y 8BB.

The financial statements of Diageo Capital plc in respect of the vear ended 30 June 2002, 30 June 2001 and
30 June 2000 were audited without gualification by KPMG Audit Plc. Chartered Accountants and
Registered Auditors, in accordance with the laws of Scotland.

The financial statements of Diageo Finance plc in respect of the yvear ended 30 June 2002, 30 June 2001 and
30 Junc 2000 were audited, without gqualification. by KPMG Audit Plc. Chartered Accountants and
Registered Auditors.

The financial statements of Diageo Enterprises in respect of the year ended 30 June 2002, 30 June 2001 and
30 June 2000 were audited, without gualification, by KPMG, Chartered Accountants and Registered
Auditors. The business address of KPMG is 5 George’s Dock, IFSC, Dublin 1. Ireland.

This document includes a form of application for Instruments issued or to be issued by Diageo Enterprises
solely to comply with certain Irish legal requirements. Tt is not necessary for potential purchasers to
complete the application form to apply for Instruments. Neither Diageo Enterprises nor the Dealers will be
bound in any way whatsoever 1o issue or sell any Insuuments 1o any person who completes and returs such
application form.

For so long as the Programme remains in effect or any Instruments shall be outstanding, copies of the
following documents may be inspected during normal business hours at the specified offices of the Issue and
Paying Agent and the Irish Paying Agent and at the specified office of the Registrar (or the specified office(s)
of the Paying Agent(s)) in or near the City of London and from the registered offices of the Issucrs and the
Guarantor, namely:

(&) the constitutional documents of each of the Issuers and the Guarantor:

{b) the current listing particulars in relation to the Programme. together with any amendments:

{¢) the [ssuc and Paying Agency Agreement;

(d)  the Deed of Covesant.

{e) the Guarantee;

(f}  the Dealership Agreement;

(g)  the most recent publicty available audited financial statements and, if applicable, unaudited interim
stawments of each of the Issuers and the Guarantor;

(hY the audited accounis of each of the Issuers and the Guarantor (being consolidated accounts for
Diageo plc) for each of the two financial years preceding the publication of this Information
Memorandum;

(i)  reports, letters, balance sheets, valuations and statements of experts included or referred o 1n listing
particulars (other than consent letters): and

(i}  any Pricing Supplement relating to Instruments which are listed on any stock exchange. (In the case of
any Instruments which are not fisted on any stock exchange. copies of the relevant Pricing Supplement
will only be available for inspection by a Holder of or, as the case may be, a Beneficiary (as defined in
the Deed of Covenant) in respect of, such Instruments).

125




REGISTERED OFFICES OF THE ISSUERS AND GUARANTOR

Diageo plc
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Diageo Finance ple
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PAYING AGENTS
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1-2953 Luxembourg B-1040 Brussels
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IFSC House
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